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Lonmin is a primary_producer of Platinum
Group Metals. We create value by the
discovery, acquisition, development and

. marketing of minerals and metals.
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Financial Highlights

¢ |In a sustained strong market for Platinum Group Metals (PGMs)
we achieved:

- Record EBIT up 141% to US$842 million
~ Underlying earnings per share up 163% to 312.1 cents per share

— Strong improverment in cash generation with free cash flow of
US$290 million (203.4 cents per share)

* Record mine production of 1,017,137 ounces of Platinum in concentrate and
sales of 952,682 ounces of Platinum and 1,817,624 ounces of total PGMs

¢ First Platinum major to convert old order mining rights to new order mining
rights

¢ Growth target raised to around 1.4 million ounces of Platinum in 2012
e Effective conversion of US$215.8 million convertible bond

e Total dividend declarations of US$1.00 per share, an increase of 39%
(final dividend 55 cents per share)
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Notes:

1 EBIT is operating profit which is defined as revenue and other opearating expenses before net finance costs and before share of profit of
assaciate and joint venture.

2 Underlying earnings per share are calcuated on profit for the year excluding movements in the fair value of the embedded derivative
associated with the convertible bond, exchange on 1ax balances, profit on the sale of Marikana houses, an adjustment to the interest
capitalised in prior years and, for 2005, the effect of a change in the South African tax rate on the ocpening deferred tax balance and
reprganisation costs as disclosed in note 3 to the accounts.

3 Financials for the year 2002 1o 2004 are as prepared under UK GAAPR, For 2005 and 2006 the financiais are prepared under IFRS. Details cf
the nature of the changes under IFRS can be found in Note 35 to the Accounts in the Annual Report.

4 EBIT for 2002 to 2004 has been restated to exclude profit or loss from associate and joint venture consistent with IFRS.

5 Free cash flow is presented in the Financial Review,

1 Lonmin Plc Annual Report 2006

www.lonmin.com




Financial heview

Introduction

The financial information presented for 2006 has been
prepared on an IFAS basis for the first time. The comparative
information for 2005 has been restated based on the
accounting policies and adjustments as sat cut in detail in note
35 to the accounts.

Analysis of results

Income Statement

A comparison of the 2006 total operating profit with the prior
year is set out below:

Other cost changes (increase) / decrease:

Em
Total operating profit — 2005 350
Reorganisation cost — 2005 12
Underlying operating profit — 2005 362
Smelter insurance recovery ~ 2005 (22}
Price 579
Volume 37
Cost changes {126)
Underlying operating profit — 2006 830
Sale of houses — 2006 12
Total operating profit — 2006 842

The 2005 total operating profit of $350 million was acversety
impacted by rearganisation costs of $12 million however this
was offset by a non-recurring insurance recovery relating to the
2004 smelter incident. The key feature impacting profit in 2006
has been a very strong market with the average price realised
for the basket of metals sold at $30,916/kg up 55% on the prior
year. Sales volumes of PGMSs increased from 1,692,517 ounces
to 1,817,624 cunces and revenue amounted to $1,855 million.
After other cost changes of $128 million, which are explained in
more detail below, the resulting underlying operating profit was
$830 millicn up 129% on the prior year. This, when combined
with a $12 million gain resulting from the sales of company
owned housing, has resulted in a total operating profit for 2006
of $842 million.

$m

Safety, health, environment and community {{SHEC") (26)
Exploration and technical develcpment (14)
Inflation/other (59)
Remuneration restructuring and skills retention (18}
Plant running (15)
Change of costing basis (8)
Royalties ' (6)
Depreciation and amortisation {17)
Foreign exchange impact a7
(126}

Given the strong market conditions, and to meet our
obligations under our new order mining licence, the Group has
chosen to invest $40 million by developing the business in a
number cof areas. We have invested some $28 miflion in SHEC
projects to improve the safety, health and environment in which
our employees work and to enhance the communities in which
they live. We are pleased to have made significant reductions in
our injury rate, We have also made substantial investments in
mechanisation to develop our new generation platinum mines
which will become operational in 2007 and furthermore we
have increased our exploration funding.

During 20086 inflationary pressures have typically added some
7% to our cost base. This together with abnormal increases in
raw materials and other costs has adversely impacted
operating profit by $59 million. Furthermore, the booming
mining sector has created strong competition for skilled
resources. We have made significant changes in our
remuneration policy during 2006. This has involved
implementing skills retention programmes via share schemes
and adjusting the level of benuses. This approach has also
seen the closure of the UK defined benefit pension scheme to
new members which therefore limits the Group's future
exposure.
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Plant running costs increased in the year. This was partly
caused by running the smaller capagity (and higher cost)
Pyromet furnaces during the pericd of the smelter repair, but
also reflected the introduction of new plant to reduce our
environmental impact. As part of our implementation of SAP
we have moved from a weekly 1o monthly costing basis, This
resulted in a one-off catch-up of $8 million in 2006. Royalty
payments have increased by $6 million reflecting the profit
growth in the year, Depreciation and amortisation costs were
up $17 million which effectively reflected the full year effect of
the Limpopo mine following our acquisition of Southern
Platinum Corporation on 15 June 2005.

The C1 cost per PGM ounce sold net of by-product credits on
own production from the Marikana operations amounted to
R2.441 for 2006 compared with R2,243 for 2005, an increase
of 8.8%. However, as the South African Rand depreciated
against the US Dollar during the year by some 7% this resulted
in an increase in US$ unit costs of 2%. Further details of unit
costs analysis can be found in the operating statistics table
within the Annual Review.

Net finance costs in 2006 were $228 milion compared with
$34 million in 2005. In 2006 this includes a $227 million charge
for the fair value movement of the embedded derivative in the
convertible bond. Borrowing levels reduced towards the end of
the year although interest rates on average were higher than in
the previous year. interest cover remained strong at 23.1 times
(2005 - 15.1 times).

Profit before tax amounted to $633 miflion in 2006
compared with $319 million in 2005. Included in 2006 was
the $227 mitlion fair value adjustment on the convertible
bond noted above.

The 2006 tax charge was $202 million compared with $118
milfion in 2005. The corporate tax raté in South Africa has
remained at 29% during the year. The effective 1ax rate,
excluding the effects of exchange, and special items was 34%
compared with 38% last year mainly due to the utilisation of
brought forward losses in Limpopo. The overall tax charge
includes a credit of $67 million on the translation adjustment of
the deferred tax balance resulting from the 22% depreciation of
the closing Rand/$ exchange rates at the respective year ends.

Profit for the year attributable to equity sharehotders amounted
to $313 million {2005 ~ $158 million) and earnings per share
were 219.5 cents compared with 111.5 cents in 2005,
Underlying earnings per sharg, being earnings excluding
special items, amounted to 312.1 cents (2005 - 118.5 cents).

Batance sheset

Equity interests were $1,089 million at 30 Septernber 2006
compared with $838 millicn at 30 September 2005 principally
reflecting the profit attributable to equity shareholders of
Lonmin Plc of $313 million offset by dividends declared of
$124 million and a fair value uplift in our investment in Platmin
of $36 million.

Dividends are now recorded on a cash basis under IFRS and
thus the $124 million includes $60 million for the 2005 final and
$64 million for the 20086 interims.

Southern Platinum Corporation was acguired on 156 June 2005,
with a compulsory acquisition of the remaining shares on 28
July 2005. During the current financial year the 8.5% minority
interest in Limpopo was acquired for $13 million. The fair value
assessment on the acquisition of Southern Platinum
Corporation was finalised during the year. This resulted in an
allocation of $60 miliion to goodwill and a restatement of the
relevant opening balances in accordance with IFRS.

Net debt amounted to $458 million at 30 September 2006 with
the main components being the convertible bonds of $216
million and bank loans of $288 million. Gearing was 27%
compared with 41% at 30 September 2005, calculated on net
borrowings attributable to the Group divided by those
atiributable net borrowings and the equity interests
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

As at 15 November 2006 Lonmin Plc has given notice to force
redemption of all outstanding convertible bonds at their
principal amount. Given the expected differential between
prevailing share prices and the conversion price of £12.33 it is
expected that this will lead to the issue of 10,576,944 shares
subsequent to the balance sheet date and a reduction in
non-current financial liabilities of $211 milon. This will further
strengthen the Group balance sheet.
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Financial heview s
continued

Cash flow
The following table summarises the main components of the cash flow during the year:

2006 2005
Total Total

$m $m

Cash flow from operations 722 377
Interest and finance costs (31) (27)
Tax (185) {79
Trading cash flow 506 27
Capital expenditure (182) (190)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 28 -
Dividends received from associate - 2
Dividends paid to minority - {62) 27)
Free cash flow 290 56
Acquisitions” {14) (212)
Financial investments (36) 1
Shares issued 15 B
Equity dividends paid (124) (102)
Cash inflow/{outilow) 131 {251)
Opening net dabt (585) {272)
Exchange (4) @
Net dabst in subsidiaries acquired - (60)
Closing net debt {458) {585)
Trading cash flow (cents per share) 354.9¢ 191.2c
Free cash flow (cents per share) 203.4c 39.5¢

* 2005 comparative includes $15 million on intangible non-current assets acquired in 2005,

Cash flow from operaticns was $722 million during 2006, a 92% increase on last year's figure of $377 million. Included was an
outflow on working capital of $202 million compared with an outflow of $44 miliion last year. This was due to a build up in debtors
resufting from price increases and the high volume of concentrate sales in the last quarter of the year which have significantly longer
credit terms than spot metal sales. This will be reversed in the first half of the new financial year. After interest and finance costs of
$31 million and tax payments of $185 million, trading cash flow amounted to $506 million in 2008 against $271 million in 2005, with
trading cash flow per share of 354.9 cents in 2006 against 191.2 cents in 2005.

Capital expenditure of $182 million was incurred during the year, broadly in line with the prior year. Associate and minority dividends
receivad and paid represented dividends from and to Incwala. Free cash flow amounted to $290 million with free cash flow per
share at 203.4 cents (2005 - 39.5 cents). Acquisitions of $14 million in 2006 principally represented the buyout cost of the minority
interest in Limpopo at $13 million. Financial investments primarily represented the purchase of a 22% stake in Platmin. After
accounting for shares issued on the exercise of share options of $15 million and equity dividends paid of $124 million, the cash
inflow was $131 million during 2006 and net debt amounted to $458 millicn at 30 September 2006.

Dividends

As dividends are now accounted for on a cash basis under IFRS the dividend shown in the accounts represents the 2005 final of
42 cents and the 2006 interim of 45 cents making a total of 87 cents for the year. In addition the Board recommends a final dividend
of 55.0 cents (2005 - 42.0 cents).

Financial risk management
The Group’s functional currency remains the US Dollar and the share capital of the Company is based in US Dollars.

The Group's business is mining and # does not undertake trading activity in financial instruments.
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Interest rate risk

Monetary assets and labilities are subject to the risk of movements in interest rates. The borrowings at 30 September 2006
represented $211 million of long-term borrowings in the form of US Dollar 3.75% convertible bonds due 2008 in the UK. In South
Africa, a long-term bank loan of $288 million was drawn together with an overdraft of $18 million. Cash deposits represented
balances of $47 million in the UK and $14 milion in South Africa.

Liguidity risk

Liguidlity risk measures the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due and, therefore, its ability to
continue trading. The Group's palicy on overall liquidity is to ensure that there are sufficient committed facilities in place which,
when combined with available cash resources, are sufficient to meet the funding requirements in the foreseeable future. At the
2006 year end, the Group had $1.411 million of committed facilities in place, of which $499 million were drawn down.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when movements in exchange rates, particularly the US Dollar against the South African Rand, affect
the transactions the Group enters into, reported profits and net assets. Most of the Group’s operations are based in South Africa
and the majority of the revenue stream is in US Dollars. However, the bulk of the Group's costs, and taxes, are Rand driven. Most of
the ¢cash held in South Africa is in US Dollars and is normally remitted to the UK on a regular basis. Shori-term working capital
facilities required in South Africa are drawn primarily in US Dollars.

Fluctuations in the Rand to US Dollar exchange rate can have a significant impact on the Group's results. A strengthening of the
Rand against the US Dollar has an adverse effect on profits due to the majority of costs being denominated in Rand. The
approximate effect on the Group's results of a 10% movement in the Rand to US Dollar 2006 year average exchange rate would be
as follows:

EBIT B . +%8m
Profit for the year £ $51m
EPS (cents} + 35.8¢

These sensitivities are based on 2008 prices, costs and volumes and assume all other variables remain constant. They are
estimated calculations only.

Commodity price risk

Commoadities trade on worldwide commodities markets and are subject to price fluctuations, Therefore, the prices obtained are
dependent upon the prevailing market prices. Any change in prices will have a direct effect on the Group’s trading results. Forward
sales are undertaken where the Board determines that it is in the Group's interest to secure a propoertion of future cash flows. The
Group has undertaken a limited number of forwards on Nickel and Copper by-product sales as disciosed in note 21 to the financial
statements.

The approximate effects on the Group's results of a 10% movement in the 2006 year average market prices for platinum {Pt),
palladium {Pd} and rhodium (Rh) would be as follows:

Pt Pd Rh
EBIT - + $103m _+ $13m + $53m
Profit for the year o _+$60m £$8m 2 $3Im
EPS (cents) +42.1¢c t+ 54c¢ t 21.5¢

The above sensitivities are based on 2006 volumes and assume all other variables remain constant. They are estimated
calculations only,

John Robinson
Chief Financial Officer
14 November 2006
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 30 September 2006

Principal activities of the Group

The principal activities of the Group during the year continued
to be mining, refining and marketing of platinum group metals.
Analyses of revenue, operating profit, principal activities and
geographical origins appear in note 2 to the accounts and a

list of the principal subsidiary undertakings, indicating their
main activities, appears in note 36. This Directors’ Report
should be read in conjunction with the chairman's staternent,
the Chief Executive's Review and the Review of Operations,
each contained within the separately published Annual Review,
which together give a fair review of historic and likely future
developments in the business of the Compary and the principal
trading operations of the Group. There were no material changes
from 30 September 2006 to the date of this report.

Lonmin Plc cperates in South Africa as a branch, which is
registered in that country as an overseas company, in addition
to the business conducted by its subsidiary undertakings.

Scheme of arrangement to acquire Messina Limited
minority shareholding

As a result of the Company’s acauisition of Southern Platinum
Corp. in July 2005, the Company acquired a 91.5% interest in
Messina Limited, a company incorporated and fisted in Scuth
Africa which operates PGM mines in the Limpopo province,
The Company made a cash offer in Septermber 2005 of R33.00
per share for the outstanding shares in Messina, following
which the Company implemented a scheme of arrangemert
on 9 December 2005 to acquire all the Messina shares not
held by the Company or its subisidiaries. The offer price was
increased to R45.00 per Messina share. The scheme of
arrangement was approved by 88.1% of Messina minority
shareholders on 16 January 2006 and was subseguently
sanctioned by the High Court of South Africa on 24 January
2006. Messina Limited was delisted from the JSE on

7 February 2006.

Business Review and Group Results

The Directors present a Business Review, as required by

Section 234ZZB of the Companies Act 1985. This comprises:

* The sections of the Chairman’s Statement (on pages 2 and
3 of the Annual Review) entitted strategy, transformation and
empowerment and markets;

* The Chief Executive's Review on pages 4 to 7 of the
Annual Review.

* The Review of Operations on pages 10 1o 19 of the
Annual Review;

* The key performance indicators on page 23 of the Annual
Review together with the Operational Statistics and
Summary Financials on pages 28 10 29 and 30 to 31
{respectively) of the Annual Review,

* The Financial review on pages 2 to 5 of this Annual Report

* The discussion of Principal Risks and Uncertainties on
pages 12 to 14 of this Annual Report.
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Dividends

The Board recommends a net final dividend of 55 US cents per
share o be paid, subject 1o approval by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, on 9 Febuary 2007 to shareholders
on the registers at the close of business on 12 January 2007.
With the net interim dividend of 45 US cents paid on 4 August
20086, this would make a total dividend for the year of $1 per
share (2005 - 72 US cents).

Directors’ responsibilities

A statement of the Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
preparation of financial statermnents is given in the Corporate
Governance section within this Annual Report.

Accounting policies

The Lonmin Group financial statements are presented in
accordance with adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards. As the Group's functional currency is the US Doallar,
this was also adopted as the Group’s reporting currency in
1998,

Share capital and reserves

The authorised and issued share capital of the Company at

30 Septamber 2006 and matters relating thereto is set out

in note 26 to the accounts. The total share capital and reserves
of the Group amounted to $1,089 million at 30 September
2006. This compares with $838 million at 30 September 2005
(as restated).

At the Annual General Meeting held on 26 January 2006,
shareholders approved an authority for the Company to make
market purchases of its own shares, up to a maximum of
14,200,000 shares (being approximately 10% of the issued
share capital), at prices not less than the nominal value of each
share (being $1} and not exceeding 105% of the average mid-
market price for the preceding five business days. The
Company made no purchases of its own shares during the
year, and no shares were acquired by forfeiture or surrender or
made subject to a len or charge.

During the year, the Company allotted 850,350 ordinary shares
of $1 each, for cash, following the exercise of options granted
under the Company's savings-related and executive share
option schemes and the conversion of the Company’s
convertible bonds.

Resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Maeting seeking shareholders’ consent to the
allotment of equity securities, a limited dis-application of the
statutory pre-emption rights and an authority for the Company
to make market purchases of its own shares. Further details
are set out in the circular accompanying this document.

Directorate

The present Board of the Company and biographical details
are set out on pages 26 and 27 of the Annual Review. All those
named held office throughout the year,




At the forthcoming Annuai General Meeting Brad Mills, lan
Farmer and Peter Godsoe retire by rotation, as does Roger
Phillimore who is now subject to annual re-election having
already served threa three-year terms as a Director. Being
gligible, each offers himself for re-election. The Board has
carried out formal performance evaluations of all the Directors
seeking re-election and has concluded that all of the Directors
reviewed are effective and demonstrates commitment to his role.
Further information on those seeking re-election is contained

in the Annual General Meeting circular accompanying this
document, and the Directors’ bicgraphies in the Annual Review.

Directors’ interests

Na Director had at any time during the year a material interest
in any contract of significance in relation to the Company’s
business. The interests of the Directors who held office at the
end of the year are recordad in the Company’s Register of
Directors’ Share and Debenture Interests and are shown in
the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 28 and 289.

No Director held any interests in the convertible bonds issued
by the Company, or any beneficial interests in the share capital
of any other Group company.

Substantial shareholdings

The Company had been notified of the following interests in 3%
or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital up to
14 November 2006:

Percentage of

the Company's

Number issued share

of shares capital”

Prudential plc and group companies 21,431,219 15.06

Capitat Group companias 10,232,561 710
Zurich Financial Services and

Group companies 6,979,850 4.91

Lansdowne Partners Limited 5,755,746 4.00

Morgan Stanley Securities Limited 4,452,815 3.09

* Percentages as at date of nolification

Charitable and political donations

No political donations were made during the year. Charitable
donations made by the Group during the year in the United
Kingdom amounted to £15,060 ($27,459) (2005 - £41,566
($76,452)). The Group provides funding to the Lonmin
Deveiopment Trust, through which a number of social wetfare
and community development issues are addressed. This
funding is a fixed percentage of local South African profits
averaged over the three preceding years, and therefore varies
with the Group's historic profitabitity. The Group’s contributions
for the year amounted to R21 million ($3.1 million) (2005 -
R42.4 million ($6.8 milliony). A fuller explanation of this
expenditure is contained in Lonmin’s Sustainable Development
Report for the year ended 30 September 2006 available from
the Company Secretary, or which can be downloaded from the
Company’s website.

The Group now focuses its social welfare efforts in Scuth
Africa through the Lonmin Development Trust.

Research and development

Group companies cantinue to be actively involved in research
and deveiopment projects in the areas of mineral extraction
and refining. Further information is given in the Review of
Operations contained in the Annual Review.

Policy on the payment of creditors

The Campany complies with, and has registered its support of,
the Better Payment Practice Code, available from the Better
Payrment Practice Group website, www.payontime.co.uk. The
Company has a consistent policy and practice of paying its bills
in accordance with contracts by settling the terms of payment
with its suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction,
either by accepting suppliers’ standard terms of payment or by
proposing alternative terms, out in either case then abiding by
the agreed payment terms. Trade creditors of the Company at
30 September 2006 represented 9 days (2005 - 4 days) of
annual purchases.

Annual General Meeting

The 2007 Annual General Maeting will be held at 11.00am on
Thursday 25 January 2007 at the QEIl Conference Centre,
Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE. A separate
circular containing the Notice of Meeting, together with an
explanation of the items of special business, is enclosed with
this Annual Report.

Auditors

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as
auditors of the Company wilf be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Rob Bellhouse
Company Secretary
14 November 2006

Lonmin Pl

4 Grosvenor Place
London SW1X 7YL
Registered in England
Number 103002
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Lorporate Governance

The Combined Code

The Board is fully committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance, which it believes creates the basis of
business integrity needed to deiiver robust and sustainable
business results. This report, together with the Directors’
Report, Remuneration Committee Report, Audit Committee
Report and the Nomination Gommittee Report, has been
prepared by reference to The Combined Code on Corporate
Governance published by the Financial Reporting Council in
July 2003. During the year to 30 September 2006 and to the
date of this report, the Company has in all respects complied
with the provisions of section 1 of the Combined Code.

The purpose cf this report is to exptain how the Company has
applied the principles of good governance so far as these
relate to listed cormpanies. These caver four subject areas:

* Directors.

¢ Directors’ remuneration.

* Accountability and audit.

+ Relations with shareholders.

Directors

The Board

The Company is led and controlled by the Board of Directors.
The Board currently has nine members, comprising an
independent non-executive Chairman, five non-executive
Directors, all of whom the Board judges to be independent,
and three executive Directors.

Details of the individuals' skills and experience are containad in
the Directors’ biographies ¢n pages 26 and 27 of the Annual
Review.

The Board meets regularly, normally on six occasions during
the year and more frequently if necessary, including two
meetings in South Africa. The Board provides the
entrepreneurial leadership, direction and control of the
Company; is the custodian of the Company’s strategic aims,
vision and values; and ensures that the necessary financial and
human resources are, and will continue to be, In place to
enable the Company to meet its otjectives. It has a formal
schedule of matters reserved for its decision, the most material
of which fall into the key areas listed below:

Strategy and managemert.

Financial reporting and control.

Social, envircnmental and ethical matters.

Contracts and financial commitments.

External communications.

Corporate governance.

Remunetration.

Board composition and membership.

- & & & 8 0 8

Whilst all Directors have equat responsibility in law for
managing the Company’s affairs, it is the role of executive
managemaeant 1o run the business within the parameters iaid
down by the Board and to produce clear, accurate and timely
reports to enable the Board to assess management's

08 Lonmin Plc Annual Regort 2006

performance. The executives make full use of the expertise and
experience that the non-executive Directors bring from their
business careers. The Chairman routinely holds discussions
with non-executive Directors without the executive Directors
being present.

All Directors freely express their views and may ask that these
be recorded in the minutes where appropriate. The Company
maintains, at its expense, a directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance pelicy to afford an indemnity in certain
circumstances for the benefit of Directors and other Group
personnel. The insurance policy does not provide cover where
the Director or officer has acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

In 1988, the then Board of the Company put in place
indemnities 1o protect all past, present and future officers of the
Company from ali costs and expenses incurred in the defence
of any civil or criminal procedings in which judgement is given
in their favour or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of
without a finding of fault or the successful application to court
for relief from liability, to the fullest extent permitted by law.
These indemnities remain in full force and effect.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are clearly separated
and set out in writing. The Chairman, who is an independent
Director, is responsible for leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness and seiting its agenda, and for ensuring that there
is effective communication with all shareholders. The Chairman
alsc facilitates the effective contribution of all Directors, and
ensures that there is a constructive relationship between the
exacutive and non-executive Directors. The role of the Chief
Executive is to provide leadership to the executive team in
running the business and to develop proposals for the Board to
consider in all areas reserved for its judgement.

Board balance and independence

The Board believes that it has sufficient members to contain a
balance of experience and skills, but is not 50 large as to be
unwieldy. The quality of the individual Directors and the
balance of the Board's composition ensures the Board’s
effectiveness with no cne individual or group of individuals
being able to dominate the decision taking. The Board keeps
the membership of its committees under review, 1o ensure
gradual refreshing of skills and experience. It is satisfied that all
Directors have sufficient time to devote to their roles and that it
is not placing undue reliance on key individuals.

Sir John Craven and Roger Philimore have each served on the
Board for a period of more than nine years. The Combined
Code suggests (but does not explicitly state) that tenure beyond
nine years may indicate that those individuals may no longer be
saen as independent. The Board believes that independence is
a state of mind and cannct be measured objectively. it is fully
satisfied that both individuals and the other non-executive
Directors demonstrate complete independence in character,
judgement and action in fuifiling their duties and the Board




resolved unanimously to offer fourth terms in office to both Directors. The Deputy Chairman, Roger Philimaore, in his capacity as
Senior Independent Director, is available to shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels has failed
to resolve, or for which such contact would be inappropriate.

The board performance evaluation process is designed to identify whether the Board possesses the relavant skills, knowiedge and
experience to fulfil its mandate, so enabling it to manage succession issues.

Appointments to the Board

To ensure a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointmenit of new directors to the Board, a Nomination
Committee has been empowered. Its work is more fully described in its report on page 34. Appointments are made on merit and
against objective criteria. In the case of candidates for non-executive directorships, care is taken to ascertain whether they have
sufficient time available to meet their Board and, where relevant, committea responsibilities. As part of this process, candidates
disclose all other time commitments and, on appointment, undertake to inform the Board of any changes. The terms and conditions
of appointment of non-executive Directors are available for public inspection, and a sample letter of appointment is provided on the
Company's website,

Board Committees

The Beard has established four committees and provides sufficient resources 1o enable them to undertake their duties.
Membership of these committees during the year to 30 September 2008 and to the date of this report is shown below.

Remuneration Audit Nomination Risk & SHEC!

Non-executive Directors

Sir John Craven Member?

Peter Godsoe Member Member

Sivi Gounden Chairman?®
Michael Hartnall Member Chairman Member

Roger Phillimore Chairman Member Chairman

Karen de Segundo Membsr

Executive Director

Brad Mills Member?

1 The Risk & SHEC Committes comprises a number of senior managers in addition 1o those noted above
2 Member from 9 November 2005
3 From 10 November 2006, Prior to this date the committee was chaired by Mr Mills.

Information and professional development

The Board is supplied with regular and timely information in a form and of a quality that enables it to discharge its duties.

All Directors are encouraged to make further enquiries as they feel approgriate of the executive Directors or management. Certain
of the executive Directors are also directors of the principal operating subsidiaries, which provides them with further insight into the
affairs of the Group. The Chairman ensures that all Directors continually update their skills and knowledge, and develop the
familiarity with the Company's cperations needed to fulfil their role. The Company provides the necessary resources for developing
and updating all Directors” knowledge and capabilities, both on appointment and subsequently as necessary. This includes a full,
formal and tailored induction programme, briefings on the legal, regulatory, financial and competitive environments in which the
Company operates and, when appropriate, the opportunity of meeting a range of major shareholders and external advisors. There
is a procedure in place for Directors 10 take independent professional advice, if they judgs this to be necessary, at the Company's
expense. In addition, Board committees are provided with sufficient resources, plus the power to co-opt such additional support as
they may require from time to time, to undertake their duties. All Directors have access to the services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for information flows to the Board, facilitating induction and assisting with professicnal development as required,
ansuring compliance with Board procedure and applicable laws and regulation and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. The appointment or removal of the Company Secretary is a Board decision.

Performance evaluation

The Board has evaluated its own performance, that of the Board committees and of individual Directors. The review comprised
informal contacts with individual Board members initiated by the Chairrman throughout the year, and a formal session of the full
Board at which individuai Directors led the Board through a tailor-made guestionnaire. The purpose of the evaluation was to assess
the effectiveness of the Board process, information flow, Board composition and whether each Director continued to contribute
effectively and demonstrate commitment 1o their role. There were no items arising from the review on which the Board felt the
Chairman should act.
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Corporate Governance
continued

The Board met during the year under the chairmanship of the
Senior Independent Dirgctor, without the Chairman being
prasent, to assess the effectiveness of the Chairman. The
unanimous conclusion was that the Chairman was fully
committed to Lonmin and was effective in the role.

Succession planning

The Board formally reviews succession plans for all key
managemant roles including executive directorships, on an
annual basis. The purpose of this is twofold - firstly, to mitigate
the risk of key roles not having one or more identified
successors and secondly, 1o review potential development
opportunitiess and career plans for talented individuals.

Attendance at Board meetings

The non-executive Directors make themselves available to
management whenever required and there are numerous
regular contacts outside the Board mesting schedule. The
Board met formally on six occasions during the year.
Attendance at these meetings was as follows:

Number of
maeetings held Number of
during time meetings
Director in office attended
Sir John Craven B 6
lan Farmer B 6
Peter Godsoe 6 6
Michael Hartnall 6 6
Brad Mills B8 B
Roger Phillimore 6 6
John Rohinson 6 6
Karen de Segundc 6 6
Sivi Gounden 5] 6

In addition, a further nine ad hoc meetings were held to issue
formal approvals, or deal with other matters of a routine or
administrative nature, which did nct require attendance of the
full Board.

Re-election of Directors

All Directors are required by the Company's Articles of
Association to submit themselves to shareholders for re-
election after first appointment and thereafter by rotation at
least once every three years. Sufficient biographical and cther
information {including, in the case of a non-executive Director
seeking re-election, a statemant as to their continued
effectiveness and commitment) is provided to enable
shareholders to make an informed decision.

Directors’ remuneration

While the Board is ultimately responsible for Directors’
remuneration, the Remuneration Committee, consisting solely
of independent non-executive Directors, is respensible for
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determining the remuneration and conditions of employment
of executive Directors and senior exacutives. A report on
Directors’ remuneration, including a more detailed description
of the role and activities of the Remuneration Committee is set
out on pages 15 to 30.

Accountability and audit

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
lincluging a Directors’ Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement) and the group and
parent company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and
parent company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they are required to prepare the group financial
statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and
appiicable law and they have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

The parent company financial statements are required to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the parent company.

In preparing each of the group and parent company financial

statemnents, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

¢ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

« for the group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
EU;

« for the parent company financial statements, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the parent company financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
untess it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the
parent company will continue in businass.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent company and enable them to
ensure that its financial statements corply with the Companies
Act 1985, They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.




Disclosure of information to auditors

As required under Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985,
so far as each current Director is aware, there is no information
relevant to the audit of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he or
she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or
herself aware of any such information and to ensure that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ approach

The Board's objective is to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s position and
prospects, particularly in the Annual Review, interim Report
and other published documents and reports to regulators.
The Board has established an Audit Committee to assist with
this obligation. A report from the Audit Committee describing
its work fully is set cut on pages 31 to 33.

Going concern

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources
to continue operating for the foreseeable future, and that it is
therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. The Directors have satisfied
themselves that the Group is in a sound financial position and
that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet the
Group’s foreseeable cash reguirements.

Internal control

The Company has complied and continues to comply with the
provisions of the Combined Code on internal controls, and the
relevant parts of the Turnbull and Smith guidance. There is an
ongoing process in place for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks facing the Group that has been
in place throughout the year under review and to the date of
approval of the accounts. This process has been reviewed
regularly by the audit committee and the board, and accords
with the guidance appended to the Code.

For the avoidance of doubt, while the Board has overall
responsibility for the Company’s system of internal control,
management is responsitle for implementing agreed Board
policies. Systemns of internal control can only be designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the
business objectives, and cannot provide absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Company has an
internal audit function which, to maintain independence and
abjectivity, is outsourced to an external provider.

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
systern of internal control, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and systems for the identification and
management of risk, and has (with the assistance of the Audit
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Committee) undertaken such a review as part of the process
of compiling this report. Whilst the Audit Committee routinely
meets with both the internal and external auditors and
discusses matters of internal control, it also performed {on
behalf of the Board} a specific review of the internal control
environment following the year end. This included reviewing the
work of the numerous external assurance providers
responsible for assessing the business and its control
environment and considering progress made by management
in mitigating the key risks facing the Group. This supplements
all the other management reporting and discussion of risk and
reports provided to the Audit Committee by the external
auditors and other specialist advisors by way of combined
assurance on the Group's risk and control environments.
Action has been, or is being, taken where necessary to remedy
any significant failings and weaknesses identified in the review
of effectiveness of the internal control system.

Relations with shareholders

The Combined Code encourages a dialogue with institutional
sharehotders based on the mutual understanding of objectives.
The Directors have regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders, where they believe this to be in the interests of
shareholders generally. Detailed feedback from these visits is
shared with the Board, and a summary of the views expressed
is presented to the next Board mesting. In addition, the
Chairman routinely offers key shareholders the opportunity of
meetings with either himself or the Senior Independent Director
to discuss governance, strategy or any other matters
sharehclders wish 1o raise. Copies of analysts’ notes on the
Company are circulated to all Directors and senior executives,
as are summaries of analysts’ opinions collected ancnymously
by the Company's financial PR adviscrs. The Combined Code
urges boards to use the annual general meeting to
communicate with private investors and to encourage their
participation, as well as offering some detailed guidance on
procedure in connection with annual general meetings. The
Board has followed these particular principles for many years.
We give shareholders the opportunity to vote on every
substantially different issue by proposing separate resolutions
and use electronic poll voting on all resolutions. This enables
the votes of alt shareholders to be taken into account, whether
they are able 10 attend the meeting or not, as well as providing
a more discreet and democratic method of voting at the
meeting. In recognition of the needs of private sharsholders,
the Company's website contains a range of investor relations
materials, including up-to-date information on the Group’s
activities, copies of all presentation materials given to
institutional investors and further explanation of the matters
contained in the annual repariing documents.

This report was approved by the Board on 14 November 2006.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Introduction

Risk is an inevitable facet of business. Lonmin faces many risks
to the delivery of its intended business cutcomes. Lonmin has
a formal process that identifies and reviews risks and devises
mitigation plans to address the known risks, with progress
against these action plans being reviewed regularly. The
Campany's strategy takes int¢ account these known risks, but
risks will exist of which we are currently unaware. As required
by law, there is a discussion below of the principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group based on our current
understanding, but readers should be aware that this is not an
exhaustive list, and new risks may emerge or the severity or
probability of the occurrence of known risks may change from
time to time.

Risks and uncertainties specific to Lonmin

Strategic risk - the Board of the Company has adopted its
present strategy as it believes it is the one most likely to add
the greatest value for shareholders and cther stakeholders.
The strategy is a product of our current understanding of the
balance between supply and demand for Platinum Group
Metats (PGMs), the implications of this for the pricing of the
individual metals in the future, and the-risk of successfully
executing the strategy. It is possible that, with time, factors
become known that indicate that the strategy currently being
pursued is not the most efficacious and that alternative
strategies may have been more appropriate.

Strategy execution risk — the Group has set stretching targets
for the organic growth of its operations and for its growth
generally. This will necessitate considerable capital investment,
both to secure the rescurces and to build out mines and
associated metaliurgical processing capacity. The Group’s
existing operations will require continued capital expenditure
both to maintain and expand abave the current level of
production. While the Group enjoys excellent relationships with
its lenders and is currently able to support the level of debt it
plans to carry, there is a risk that this changes in the future. In
addition, the opportunity to acquire new resources that will
provide the increased levels of production targeted by the
Company may not arise, or may be priced at such a ievel that
the Company decides not to pursue these. There is inherent
uncertainty in any forecast, and therefore there will be
uncertainty that forecast operational performance will be
achieved. This may be due to changes in project execution risk
that could result in high costs and delays. The Group is also
leading the industry in terms of its commitment to
mechanisation and automation. While well understoed in the
mining industry globally, the PGM sector in South Africa has
not tended to adopt such strategies and there is inevitably risk
associated with pioneering any new operational methcdology.
Finally, all of the expansion envisaged by the Group will require
additional skilled people, at all levels of the organisation. In view
of the globat commeodities boom, there is a significant shortage
of skills in our industry and severe competition 10 secure the
best people. There is therefore a risk that the Group may not
be able to attract and retain the skilled people it needs to
execute its strategy.
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Adequate ore reserves and resources — in order to access
the ore body, shafts need to be sunk and all of the underground
infrastructure built ahead of time. This work is generically
referred to as ‘development” and requires considerable capital
investment to access ore reserves, the quality of which is based
on geological estimates. There is therefore risk associated with
the variability in any cre body such as the Bushveld Igneous
Complex, and while wa have significant experience of our cre
body, and have the bengiit of a relatively constant ore body
thickness and grade, there is no absoclute assurance that we wili
not encounter variability in future. The Group's reserve
estimates take into account actual exploration and production
results, depletion, new information on geology and fluctuations
in production, operating and other costs and economic
parameters such as platinum price. As a control, the Group
undertakes an annual audit of ore reserves by a competent
person working to globally accepted standards, with
independent confirmation occurring in every alternate year.
These factors could result in reductions in its ore reserve and
resource estimates, which could impact on our fife of mine
plans and conseqguently on the net present value of the Group.

Risks of disruption to production — while all mining
companies are exposed to the risk of disruption to production
(see the description on mining sector risks), there may well be
risk factors specific to Lonmin that cause such interruptions

to occur. The Group suffered explosions at its main smelter in
December 2002 and November 2004 and while the method

of operation of this critical bottleneck plant has been materialty
altered since that time and there is ongoing investment in
alternative smelting capacity, the risk of further incidents
cannot be ruled out. The smelter and associated base and
precious metal refineries represent a critical bottleneck in the
Group's processing capabilities with any material interruption
to production at these sites having a material impact on the
overall performance of the Group. While intermediate products
could be sold externally to mitigate the impact of any such
interruptions, this is likely to be at a lower margin than would be
achieved were the materials fully processed in the Group's own
operations. There may alsc be other Lonmin-specific factors
such as industrial relations, power supply interruptions or
natural phenomena that also lead to short-term production
disruption.

Risks of cost inflation — there is a risk that the Group will not
be able to implement its chosen strategy either successfully or
quickly enough and as a consequence will suffer cost inflation
in absolute terms and consequent margin erosicn, leading to a
reduction in its net present value. There is also a risk that
Lonmin responds less well to industry-wide cost pressures
(which are discussed in the section on mining sector risks) than
its competitors. Such relative cost increases could result from
Lonmin-specific faciors (such as a deterioration in industrial
relations, failure to imptement mechanisation and automation
quickly enough, poor purchasing negatiating skills) or from our
competitors being able to address such cost pressures faster
or more effectivaly.




Risks and uncertainties relating to the PGM industry
Market conditions : demand - demand for platinum,
palladium and rhodium is primarily driven by the autocatalysis
sector, with the main factors being the emissions standards
imposed by legislation, the global trend towards diesel-engined
vehicles {(which predominantly use platinum as their catalyst)
and increases in the number of cars manufactured globally.
There is also somae effect on demand from the engine size of
the vehicles being manufactured and there will be changes in
demand for each of the individual metals as the weightings
used for catalysis alter with technological innovations. The
platinum jewellery sector tends to be price-sensitive, although
within this the bridal jewellery market shows less sensitivity to
price. In recent years, the price-led reduction in demand for
platinum jewellery has led to the birth of a market for palladium
jewellery, s¢ increasing demand for that metal. The remainder of
the demand for PGMs comes from a variety of industrial
applications, many of which are relatively new, and for which the
demand sensitivity to price through the full commodity cycle
has yet ta be fully experienced and understood. Although the
overall demand for PGMs generally is forecast to remain strong,
there is a risk that the demand for each of the individual metals
for use in autocatalysis wiill remain static or may even decline as
the amount of material available from recycling continues to
grow, and one metal is substituted with another, There is also a
risk of a technological breakthrough enabling the wholesale
replacement of PGMs as the primary material for autocatalysis.
Within the jewellery sector, there is the risk of a reduction in
demand for PGMs in general, and platinum in particular, due to
increased substitution by cther precicus metals.

Market conditions : supply - clearly an over-supply of PGMs
would have the same economic impact on cemmaodity pricing
as a reduction in the level of market demand. The vast majority
of the world’'s PGM resources are in South Africa (which
currently hosts over 75% of total worldwide platinum
production), although there are significant commercial PGM ore
bodies in Zimbabwe, Russia, Canada and the USA. At the
macro-economic level, the relative levels of country risk
associated with each jurisdiction may have an impact on the
quantities of PGMs produced in each year, with the risk that
there may be fluctuations in the level of supply caused by local
economic and regulatory conditions. The decisions made by
each of the major PGM producers will also have an effect on
the overall ievel of market supply, and althcugh each of the
industry majors has an aggressive growth profile and a number
of smaller competitors have ambitious plans, there must be
significant uncertainty as to whether or not all of the projects
currently planned by the PGM industry will ultimately be
developed to full production. There remains a degree of risk
that a major new ore body will be discovered that would
fundamentally alter the balance between supply and demand,
and therefore the long-term price of PGMs in general and
platinum in particular.

Market conditions : commodity price — the market price for
platinum can fluctuate widely, both from the impact of the
normal supply and demand factors, but also as a consequence
of speculation in the individual metals. Therefore there is a risk
that the price of any given metal may fall and that speculation

may accentuate this trend. The price of platinum may also be
affected by various other uncertain market factors, such as
financial market expectations regarding interest and inflation
rates and movements in the relative worth of currencies,

Risks and uncertainties relating to the mining sector
generally

Cost pressures - labour, steel, fusl, power, consumables,
chemical reagents, explosives and tyres form a relatively large
part of the operating costs of any mining company. The Group
is not immune to these cost pressures and increases in any or
all of these would have a profound impact on operating costs
and, in the absence of mitigating economic fluctuations, result
in significant increases in total expenditure, reduction of profit
margins and thereby reduce the net present vafue of the
Company. These cost pressures are exacerbated by two
additional trends. Firstly, most underground mines are now
generally {acing the challenge of extracting minerals from
greater depths, which requires higher levels of support (and
therefore greater use of steel and other materials) and greater
ventilation and air cooling, which requires additional power.
Industry-wide, costs are therefore rising more quickly than
would otherwise be the case. Secondly, most mining
companies are looking to expand production during the current
global commodities boom, which has significantly increased
demand for all of these key inputs and led to price rises.

The Group's labour costs are incurred primarily in South Africa,
and although cost inflation in that country is now well
controlled, almost all employees are members of recognised
trades unions, and there is a risk that wages may increase by
more than the rate of inflation. As a consequence, the Groug
must strike the right balance between risking interruptions to
production and the additional costs that would be incurred in
meeting the wage demands made by our employees’ trade
unions. There is also a long term decling in employee
productivity faced by the entire industry which further
exacerbates the cost trend. The Group's response has been to
develop a strategy for the mechanisation and automation of its
mines, but labour costs will remain a material expense for the
Group for the foreseeable future.

The cost of executing planned capital projects is affected by all
of these factors, and is additicnally exposed o the risks of
delay in bringing the new capacity into producticon. Currently
high levels of demand mean that certain typas of equipment
are difficult to source without significant delay, and there is a
significant risk of cost over-runs on capital projects caused by
both the underlying cost pressures and the delay in installing
critical plant. There is therefore a risk that capital projects are
not pursued as planned, are deferred to a later time or, if
implemented, fail to deliver the expecied financial benefits or to
deliver production on time.

Risks of disruption to production — Mining is susceptible to
numerous events that may have an adverse impact on the
performance of the Group, either by causing severe damage to
capital assets, or require the suspensicn, or even termination of
operations. These events include, but are not limited to the
availability of critical inputs (including power and water),
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Principal RiIsKs ana uncertainties

continued

environmental hazards, industrial accidents, underground fires,
labour disputes, encountering unexpected geological
formations, unanticipated ground and water conditions,
accidents in underground operations, failure of mining pit slopes
and tailings dam walls, legal and regulatory restrictions and
changes to such restrictions, seismic activity; and other natural
phenomena, such as floods or inclement weather conditions.

Employee-related risks - as noted above, mining cperations
in South Africa are highly unionised, and in Lonmin’s case a
single union represents the vast majority of the Group’s
workers. There is therefore a risk that strikes or other types of
conflict with unions or employees may occur which, if material,
could have an adverse effect on the Group's performance and
its financial congition. HIV/AIDS remains the major healthcare
challenge faced by the Group's operations, with a 2003
epidemniological survey (one of the largest ever undertaken in
South Africa) suggesting that 26% of our employees are HIV
positive. In response, the Group has initiated a programme of
anti-retroviral drugs for those whom it might benefit, backed up
by appropriate encouragement to undertake an HIV test
through a voluntary counselling and testing programme. While
the results of this have been very encouraging, with the vast
majority of those who may benefit now on ART and generally
pack at work, HWV/AIDS will pose an ongoing and conceivably
increasing risk for the foreseeable future. The other principal
challenges facing the Group are tuberculosis and other
occupational lung diseases, particularly among those who
have previously worked in South Africa’s gold mines.

Land claims - because of historical factors, the ownership of
land in Scuth Africa can be subject to challenge from those
alleging that they ware wrongfully dispossessed of the land. In
common with the rest of the industry, the Group faces a
number of such claims. Successful land claims on property
falling within the Group’s mining licence areas could increase
the Group's cost base as compensation would be payable to
land owners for any loss or damage suffered by themas a
result of prospecting or mining operations conducted by the
Group on their property.

Macro-economic factors

Risks associated with the countries in which we operate —
the Group operates in three countries and has joint venture
interests in two others. In each jurisdiction, the tegal and
regulatory regimes will continue 1o evolve in response 16
extarnal events, and the Group must address the obligations

and responsibilities that this creates. While the Group does and

would lobby for change where appropriate, any such changes
are ultimately driven by the governments of these courntries
and are cutside the Group’s control. There is therefore a risk

that change may be introduced which materially disadvantages

the Group, and with which it must comply.
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Market conditions : foreign exchange and financial risk —
The Group also faces the risk of fluctuations in profitability
caused by movements in foreign exchange rates and is
particularly sensitive to movements in US Dollar / South African
Rand currency pair. Most of the Group's operations are in
South Africa and so incur costs in Rand, while the revenue
stream is almost wholly denominated in US dollars. Further
information about how the Group manages foreign exchange
risk is included in the Financial Review. The Financial Review
also provides details of other financial rigks including interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk.

Legislative and regulatory risk — Mining companies globally
are subject to a variety of local industry-specific laws and
regulations. If these laws and regulations were to change and
material additional expenditure were required to comply with
such new laws and regulations, it could adversely affect the
Group’s performance and its financial condition,

World economic conditions - demand for the Group's
products is a factor of world economic conditions — for
example, during a consumer boormn more autormobiles will be
sold, creating greater demand for PGMs. However, during a
world economic slowdown or recession, it is possible that
demand for all products, including those containing, or made in
processes requiring the use of, PGMs would reduce and
commodity prices generally would fall. As a consequence, the
Group's prosperity is intricately linked to general economic
conditions and there is a risk of material deterioration in the
Group's performance and finances during such macro-
econamic events,




Remuneration Committee Report
for the year ended 30 September 2006

The report below has been prepared by the Remuneration

Committee and approved by the Board. KPMG Audit Plc have

audited the following items stipulated in law for their review:

¢ The table of Directors’ remuneration and associated
footnotes on page 18, and the disclosure of the items
comprising the Directors' benefits in kind.

* The table of Directors’ defined benefit pensicn entitlements
and associated footnotes on page 21.

* The disclosure of Directors’ defined contribution pension
arrangements on page 20.

* The tables of Directors’ share options and awards and
associated footnotes on page 29.

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committes is a formal committee of the

Board, and has powers delegated o it under the Articles of

Association, 1ts remit is set out in terms of reference formally

adopted by the Board, which were last reviewed in November

2005. A copy of the terms of reference is available on the

Company’s website. The primary purposes of the Remuneration

Committee are set out in its tarms of reference and are:

* to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
framework of executive remuneration;

* to determine individual remuneration packages within that
framework for the executive Directors and certain senior
empioyees;

* {0 oversee the administration of the Company’s incentive
schemes;

* to review Directors’ expenses; and

* to oversee the Company's executive pension arrangements;

all of which it carries out on behalf of the Board.

The Committee is authorised to seek information from any
Director or employee of the Group and co-opt any resources
{including external professional assistance) it sees fit in order to
fulfil its duties. Minutes of all meetings of the Committee are
circuiated to all Directors, and supplemented by a verbal
update from the Committee Chairman at the next Board
meeting, identifying any material matters which arose from the
Committee’s work. The Committee presents a summary of its
activities to shareholders and other interested parties by
means of this report, and the Committee Chairman attends the
Arnual Genera!l Meeting to answer any questions on the
Committee’s activities.

Composition of the Remuneration Committee
Allindependent Directors, with the exception of the Chairman
of the Board, are eiigible to become members of the
Committee. The Board is empowered to appoint or remove
members. Any two members of the Committee form a quorum.
The Committee comprised the following members during the
year and to the date of this report, except where stated
otherwise:

* Roger Phillimore — an independent director, who has been a
member of the Remuneration Committee and its Chairman
since September 2002.

* Peter Godsce - an independent director who has been a
memiber of the Remuneration Committee since September
2002.
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* Michael Hartnall — an independent director, who has lreen a
member of the Remuneration Committee since May 2003.

Given their diverse backgrounds and experience, the Board
believes that the Committee members are able to offer a
balanced view on executive remuneration issues. Each
member receives an annual fee of £5,000 for serving as a
member of the Committee or, in the case of the Chairman,
£10,000. These fees are included in the table of Directors’
remuneration on page 18 and a detailed breakdown is also
provided on page 19. All members of the Committee are
provided with a full induction into the role of the Committee and
the operation of its terms of reference on first appcintment,
Access to training is provided on an ongoing basis to ensure
that members are able to discharge their duties. Throughout
the year, the Committee was assisted in its work by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, an independent firm of remuneration
consultants who were appointed by, and report to, the
Committee. PricewaterhouseCoopers had no other material
involvement with the Company or Group during the year. The
Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee. In
addition, the Committee received recommendations from the
Chief Executive in refation to remuneration of executive
Directors and senior managers. Meetings of the Committee are
attended by the Chief Executive, the Vice President - Human
Capital and the Company Secretary, none of whom do so as of
right and who do not attend when their own remuneration is
being discussed.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee normally meets four times annually, and

reports its material findings to the next Board meeting. The

principal business of these meetings is:

* November: approval or review of changes affecting those
within the Committeg’s purview, salary review for executive
Directors and senior executives based on performance
appraisal data, external salary benchmarking review, approval
for payment cf short-term incentives for the prior year,
consideration of detailed design of the short-term incentive
plan for the current year, approval of offer of Deferred Annual
Bonus Plan (DABP) awards including settling the performance
condition, review of status of performance conditions
attaching to outstanding options and awards, approval of the
Remuneration Committee Report and any relevant Annual
General Meeting business, review of Directors’ expenses for
the quarter to end September.

* March: approval or review of changes affecting those within
the Committee’s purview, review of projected short-term
incentives for the current year, review of status of
performance conditions attaching 1o outstanding options
and awards, review of Directors’ expenses for the quarter to
end December.

* April; approval or review of changes affecting those within
the Commiittee’s purview, review of projected short-term
incentives for the current year, approval of awards to be
made under the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Stay &
Prosper plans, review of status of performance conditions
attaching to outstanding options and awards, review of
Directors' expenses for the quarter to end March,
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* September: approval or review of changes affecting those
within the Committee's purview, review of projected short-
term incentives for the current year, review of initial design of
the short-term incentive plan for the new financial year,
raview of status of performance conditions attaching to
outstanding options and awards, review of Directors’
expenses for the quarter to end June, review of the
effectiveness of the Committee and its Chairman.

In addition to the routine business described above, the
Committee also undertook the following activities during the
year and in the period to the date of this report in discharging
its responsibilities:

* Raview of remuneration strategy and development of
proposals to better align senicr executives’ pay with
shareholders’ interests by replacing definad benefit pension
provision with a new defined contribution scheme and an
increase in the weighting to performance-related reward

* Consideration of the corporate governance implications of
the Company’s remuneration programme, including
svaluating feedback from institutional shareholder
consultations

* Review of the Group’s talent assessment process and
outcomes, and consideration of the results of the half- and
fuli-year performance appraisal exercises

* Approval of amendments to the Committeg’s terms of
reference

* Approval of an offer of savings relatad share options

+ Approval of one-off awards under the Scarce Skills
Retention Plan

» Review of the hedging position of the Company's employee
benefit trust

* Development of propesals for amendment of tha DABP and
the introduction of a formai Co-lInvestment Plan (CIP) for
adoption by shareholders at the 2007 Annual General
Meeting.

The committee met four times during the year. Attendance at
these meetings was as follows:

Number of
meetings held Mumber of
during time meetings
Director in office attended
Pater Godsoe 4 4
Michael Hartnall 4 4
Roger Phillimore 4 4

In addition, a further six ad hoc meetings were held to issue
formal approvals, or deal with cther matters of a routine or
administrative nature for which full attendance was not
required.

The Combined Code

The Directors consider that the Company has, throughout the
year, complied with the provisicns relating to Directors'
remuneration set out in the Combined Code.

Relations with shareholders

The Committee is strongly commitied to open and transparent
dialogue with shareholders on remuneration matiers. During
the year, the Committee Chairman met with a number of our
institutional investors and separately wrote to them and to
various representative bodies such as the ABI to discuss
oroposed changes to the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior executives.

Remuneration policy and practice

Non-executive Directors

The Board, with the benefit of independent professional advice,
determines the fees of the non-executive Directors. When
deciding an appropriate level of fee for each non-executive
Director, the Board considers the responsibility and time
commitment required of each individual, taking into account
the number of meetings each attends, the time required for
reading Board and other papers, their membership or
chairmanship of Board Committees or (in the case of Sir John
Craven) chairmanship of the Board, and the significant
overseas travel required of all non-executive Directors by the
Company.

Executive Directors and senior executives

The Committee's remunaration policy is gaared towards
providing a level of remuneration which attracts, retains and
motivates Directors and senicr managers, but at the same time
ensures remuneration is consistent with best practice and
aligned with the interests of the Company’s shareholders.
Importantly, no Director plays any part in setting his own
remuneration.

In setting the remuneration of individuais within this framework,
the Committee seeks 10 give the individuals every
encouragement to enhance the Company’s performance whilst
ensuring that they are fairly, but responsibly, rewarded for their
individual contributions. It also takes into account levels of pay
and rates of annual increase elsewhere in the Group. The
Committee's strategy is a carefully balanced blend of fixed and
performance-related pay geared to deliver over the short,
medium and long term. The structure of the remuneration
offered to the executive Directors and senior executives and
the underiying principles on which the package is predicated
are detailed opposite.
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Objective Performance period

Basis of delivery

Base salary .

Reflects market median  * Reviewed annually
levels based on role

and individual skill

and experience

Pay is linked to

performance as

measured in annual

performance review

(APR) process

* [ncrease linked to APR result and then
benchmarked against other UK listed
companies of comparable size and
(where appropriate} a peer group of
international companies in mining sector

* individual performance and contribution
recognised to ensure market
competitiveness

Pension * Provides a market * Cost increases in ling » Defined contribution benefits or
compaetitive level of with salary growth cash-settled salary supplement at the
provision with good exacutive's choice
flexibility while minimising
risk to the Company

Bonus ¢ |ncentivises achievement + Reviewed annually » Balanced scorecard based on
of annual cbjectives combination of corporate and personal
consistent with the objectives (further details on page 22}
medium to short
term strategic needs
of the business

DABP ¢ Incentivises * Annual deferrals and « iHalf of award subject to demanding
high performance matched awards EBIT targets

+ Forces alignment with * Three year * Half of award subject to demanding
shareholders' interests performance pericd RTSR targets (further details on page 23)
by requiring executives » Maximum reward will only occur
to put value at risk for upper quartile performance
through mandatory
deferral

* Retention incentive

LTIP * Incentivises long * Annual awards » Half of award subject to demanding
term value creation * Three year EBIT targets

* Alignment with performance period ¢ Half of award subject to demanding

shareholders’ objectives

* Retention incentive

Upper quartile perfarmance
should lead to potential
upper quartile total reward

RTSR targets (further details on page 24)
* Maximum reward will only occur
for top decile performance

Benchmarking methodology

The Committee is alert to the danger of paying more than is necessary, and monitors closely both basic pay and total remuneration
for executive Directors and senior executives in the light of individual and corporate performance, to ensure that the Company's
reward structures remain appropriate and that total reward is capable of reaching top quartile levels, where justified by

performance.

The Committee routinely analyses remuneration practices in two groups of comparable companies, the first being UK listed
businesses of comparable size and scope to Lonmin, the second being direct international peers in the mining sector with whom
we are in direct competition in the recruitment of experienced executive talent. The aim of the Remuneration Commiittee is to ensure
that our remuneration framework is competitive with the latter without being out of step with the former. In this way, the Committee

aims to avoid generating excessive reward for Lonmin's Directors and senior executives,

Full details of each element of the Directors’ remuneration package are set out on page 18 together with an analysis on page 19
showing the various elements of remuneration as a percentage of base salary.
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Performance graphs
The primary role of the Directors is to deliver value to shareholders, and it is against this backdrop that their remuneration must be

| assessed. The graphs below show the value, at 30 September 20086, of £100 invested in Lonmin's shares five years previously,
compared with the current value of the same amount invested at the same date in the FTSE Mining Sector and the FTSE All Share
index, assuming dividends are reinvested in each case. The Company is a constituent of both these indices, and the Board believes
that these comparisons most fairly ilustrate the Company’s performance in delivering value to shareholders relative to both the
market as a whole and its UK listed peers.

TSR v FTSE Mining £ TSR v FTSE All-Share £
400, —— Lonmin - net total return 400, —— lLonmin - net total retum
FTSE All-Share Mining - net total return FTSE Ali-Share - net total return
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Directors’ remuneration

In respect of the year ended 30 September 2006 the Directors’ remuneration settled in cash or at a cash cost to the Company was
as shown in the table below. In addition, tha executive Directors participated in pension arrangements and received long-term share
incentives as detailed elsewhere in this report. A reconciliation of total remuneration {or each executive Director is shown in the
charts opposite.

Cash payment Total for Totat for
Salary Benefits in lieu of Short-term year to year o
or fees' in kind pension? incentives QOther? 30.09.06 30.09.05
Directors £ £ e £ £ £ £
Executive Directors
Brad Mills 573,000 141,104 225,000 530,477 111,836 1,681,417 2,123,936
lan Farmer 302,525 49,688 32,500 205173 589,886 445,694
John Robinson 318,965 38,361 48,750 227273 633,349 462,226
Non-executive Directors
Sir John Craven 204,436 - - — - 204,436 200,000
Peter Godsoe 60,000 - - - - 60,000 67.673
Sivi Gounden 51,154 - - — - 51,154 -
Michael Hartnal 80,000 - - — - 80,000 80,000
Roger Phillimore 110,000 - - - - 110,000 110,000
Karen de Segundo 57,500 = - - — 57,500 24179
Total 1,757,580 229,153 306,250 962,923 111,836 3,367,742 3,513,7087
Notes:

1 Salaries disclosed for the executive Directors are based on the period Octeber 2005 to March 2006 (Brad Mills; £546,000, lan Farmer: £280,050 and John
Robinson: £312,930) and the six months April 2006 to Septernber 2006 (Brad Mills: £600,000, lan Farmer; £325,000 and John Robinson: £325,000). The salary
figure disclosed for Sivi Gounden includes a payment made in the year of £1,154 which relates to fees for the period 23 to 30 September 2005.

2 Cash payments to lan Farmer and John Robinson relate to the six months April to September 2006 following their withdrawal from the LSS pension scheme. The
Company's pension contributions for the first six months of the yaar (lan Farmer: £34,473 and John Robinson: £38,583) are reflected in the pension disclosure on
page 21, The payment of £225,000 in respect of Brad Mills comgrises a cash payment of £105,000 for the period Qctober 2005 to March 2006 and a payment of
E120,008 for the six months April 2006 1o September 2006 into the defined contribution scheme.

3 The amount disclosed under *Other” in the table is the final cash payment to Mr Mills in partiat compensation for the 10ss of long-terrn share incentives conseguent
upon his resignation from the employment of BHP Billiton

4 No director received any expense allowances or any compensation for loss of office during the year.

5 Although the Group's functional currency is US Dollars, these figures are stated in Sterling as the Directors’ emoluments are paid in this currency.

6 Benefits in kind comprise cars, fuel, healthcare, medical, and, in the case of Brad Mills, accommodation and, in the case of lan Farmer, a children's education
allowance {paid until 5 April 2006).

7 Restated to exclude Directors who left during the prior year.
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Non-executive Directors’ fees

The fees payable to the non-executive Directors are set by the Board and are designed to ensure the Company attracts and retaing
individuals of the highest calibre. The Board commissions an independent review of non-executive Direclors’ fees every two years,
the most recent of which was conducted in August 2005. No change was made to the non-executive Directors’ fees, which have
not been increased since 2002. A detailed breakdown of the fees paid to non-executive Directors during the year is provided:

Chairmanship
Fees [£) Diraclorship fee  Remuneration Audit Nomination Risk & SHEC Total
Sir John Craven 50,000 C 150,000 M 4,436 204,436
Peter Godsoe 50,0600 M 5,000 M 5,000 60,000
Sivi Gounden 51164 51,154
Michael Hartnall 50,000 M 5000 C 17500 M 7,500 80,000
Roger Phillimare 50000 D 35000 C 10,000 M 7,500 C 7,500 110,000
Karen de Segundo 50,000 M 7500 57,500

Key: C = Chairman, D = Deputy Chairman, M = Member

Make up of executive Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration attributable to each of the three continuing executive Directors in respect of the year was comprised of the
following broad elements:

Brad Mills W 25% Base salary lan Farmer B 34% Base salory John Robinson W 349% Base salary

£573.000 - £30z2 525 £318,965
23% Annual cash bonus 23% Annwual cash bonus 25% Annual cash bonus
£530,477 £205.173 £227.273

B 12% Deferred annual B 4% Deferred annual M 4% Deterred annual
bonus match bonus match Lonus match
£279.370 £35.481 £40.461
23% Lorg-termm incentve plan 17% Long-term ncentive plan 12% Long-term incentree plan
£536,047 £148.264 £111.826

O 10% Pensicn 0 17% Pension O 20% Pensicn
£225.000 £157,465 £188.993

M

7% Benefits-in-kind

7 5% Benafits-in-kind {3 5% Benefits-in-kind
. 141104 ‘ £49,688 £38,361

Total partormance-related pay=58% Total performance-related pay=44% Total pedormance-related pay=341%

Benefits in kind are stated at their taxable value or the cost incurred by the Company where nol taxable.

The cash bonus amount is the pre-tax amount payable in respect of the year and is stated before partial deferral into the DABP.

The DABP Matched Award is the amgount of bonus deferred and is stated at the fair value as required by IFRS. However, if the threshold conditions noted elsewheare
in this repart are not obtained, no payment will be made.

4 The valuation of the LTIP award made during the year has followed the same principles as the DABP Matched Award and is similarly at risk.

5 Pansion is (1) for defined benefit provision, the additional accrual of nension earned in the year capitalised at a ratio of 20:1 in line with the statutory methodology
used to calculate the Lifetime Allowance under the new tax rules less the amount contributed by the employee in the year, and/or (2) cash amounts paid either to
the exacutive or (at their option) into a defined contribution pension scheme.

LN —

Fixed pay for executive Directors and senior executives

Basic pay

Whilst the Remuneration Committee tends {0 have regard to total compensation, including performance-related elements,
individuals inevitably focus on headling basic pay, especially at the point of recruitment. For this reason, the Company needs to offer
salaries at around median market levels so that it is able to attract and retain suitable directors and executives, but without paying
mare than is necessary.

Salaries are reviewed once annually, as at 1 October, taking into account annual performance review data and this together with the
restructuring of the Directors’ remuneration and contracts resulted in year-on-year changes in their sataries of 10% in the case of
Brad Mills, 16% in the case of lan Farmer and an increase of 4% in respect of John Robinson. Increases in salaries of the senior
exacutives and individuals in the United Kingdom increased between 3% and 5%. The salaries of our general workforce in South
Africa increased by CPl + 2% due under the New Era Labour Agreement.

In additicn to the arnual salary review, a more comprehensive review of remuneration strategy was carried out in South Africa
following which the packages for senior executives and managers was restructured. The remuneration policy in force previously
was in line with common practice in South Africa, however, in order to simplify the package structure and to make consistent with
international norms, certain historic fringe benefits were rolled into a clean basic salary figure without the need for additional
compensation,
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Not including the executive Directors, the remuneration of twenty
one other senior executives, the majority of whom are employed
in South Africa, fall within the purview of the Remuneration
Cormmittee. The base salaries of those individuals based in the
United Kingdom and the new fully inclusive salaries of individuals
employed in South Africa fall within the following bands:

Number of
Salary band axecutives
up to £50,000 0
£51,000 to £100,000 5
£101,000 to £150,000 1A
£151,000 to £200,000 2
£201,000 to £250,000 2
£251,000 to £300,000 1

Benefits in kind

Benefits in kind for the executive Directors comprise the
provision of a fully-expensed car, the provision of annual health
checks and private medical insurance and, in the case of

Mr Farmer, until 5 April 2008, a children’s education allowance.
Mr Mills also benefited from life assurance in excess of the
Intand Revenue earnings cap. All three executive Directors
were provided with a limited amount of independent financial
planning and tax advice. Mr Mills was also provided with
accommodation in London. Finally, the Company purchases
permanent health insurance in respect of all senior employees
in the London office, including the UK-based executive
Directors.

Pensions

Pensions in context of total compensation

The Committee wishes to provide executives with access to
market-competitive pension products, without exposing the
Company to the potentially open-ended obligations associated
with defined benefit pension provision. To this end, the
Committee took advantage of changes to the taxation of
pensions in the United Kingdom that took effect on 6 April
2006 to offer new remuneration packages to all executives who
participated in the UK final salary pensien plan, the lLonmin
Superannuation Scheme. In essence, members were asked to
withdraw from future accrual of pensionable service in return
for a new remuneration package which transferred much of the
wealth-creation opportunity from pensions and other fixed pay
to performance-related pay. New contracts were entered into
with the individuals concerned, on standard terms. The
opportunity was also taken to address certain anomalous
benefits that were being provided at that time. The revised
levels of basic salary and total compensation were
benchmarked against relevant peer groups (dependant on role)
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and the Committee was satisfied that the revised packages
offered appropriate, but not excessive, pay that was clearly
linked to performance. The total levels of compensation
offered were not increased in this process. The Lonmin
Superannuation Scheme was closed 1o new entrants with
effect from 6 April 2008.

The executive Directors and senior executives who opted out
of the Lonmin Superannuation Scheme retain a final salary link.
This means that the pension earned during their pensionable
service will continue to increase in line with increases in their
base salaries until such time as they either leave the Company
or begin to draw a pension. They also continue to receive
death in service and ill health early retirement benefits in ling
with the rules of the defined benefit scheme.

Under the new packages, UK-domiciled executives are
provided with an amount of cash, expressed as a percentage
of their basic pay, paid at the beginning of the Company's
financial year either as additional cash compensation or,
subject to prevaifing tax rules and at the executive’s option,
into a new defined contribution pension vehicle that was
implemented during the year. The significant defined benefit
pension accrual of lan Farmer and John Robinson mean that
they are affected by the lifetime allowance and are therefore
unable to accrug any further tax-effective pension benefits.
For this reason, neither has joined the new defined contribution
pension plan and they receive 20% and 30% respectively of
their annual base salary in cash. Brad Mills is entitled to a
salary supplement of 40% of his base salary and elected, from
April 2006 onwards to have these funds invested in the
Company's defined contribution pension scheme.

Defined contribution arrangements

During the year, the Company implemented the Lonmin
Retirement Plan in the UK. This is a registered (tax-approved)
defined contribution pension arrangement which operates as a
group personal pension scheme. As noted above, Brad Mills
opted to join this scheme with effect from April 2006 and the
Company contributed £120,000 (2005 - Nil) into this scheme
as an employer contribution.

The Group is affiliated to an industry-wide defined centribution
pension scheme in South Africa, in which none of the executive
Directors participates.

Defined benefit arrangements

As noted above, tan Farmer and John Robinson participated in
the Company's UK final salary pensicn arrangements until

5 April 20086, from which date they were provided with new
remuneration packages, including a cash supplement offered




in lieu of further pensionable service in this scheme. The defined benefit pension plan has a normal retirement age for all members
in service at or atter 1 April 1998 of 80 : members in service prior to that date can opt {o retire at 65. Members can request early
retirement once they reach age 50 {or at any time due to incapacity), with their accrued pension being subject to actuarial reduction
for earty payment. Commutation of pension on retiremeant enables members to exchange part of their pension for a tax-free lump
sum, subject to tax limits. No discretionary benefits have been awarded to any Director.

Pensions in excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension accrued prior to 6 April 1997 will (once in payment) increase annually by
the lower of 3% and the increase in UK retail price inflation (RPI), while that element accrued since 6 April 1997 will increase each
year by the lower of 5% and the increase in RPI.

In the event of death:

¢ Whilst in service, a lump sum equal to four times salary is payable together with a pension to a gualifying spouse or dependant of two-
thirds of the pension that would have become payable to the member at their normal retirement age. In certain circumstances where
there are young children or children in full-time education or vocational training, an allowance may also become payable to them

e After leaving service, but prior to retirement, a pension would be payable to a qualifying spouse or dependant equal to two-thirds
of the member’s deferred benefit revalued to the date of death in line with RPI (or, in the case of the two Directors and other
senior executives while still in the Group's employment, salary growth)

e After retirement, a spouse’s pension of two-thirds of the member’s pre-commutation pension would be payable, revalued to the date of
death. If the member's death occurs within five years of retirement, the balance of the five years’ unpaid pension would also be payable.

Further details of the executive Directors’ defined benefit pension entittements accrued untit 6 April 2006 are:

Disclosures required by Schedule

Disclosuras required by the Listing Rules 7A Companies Act 1385
increase in
transfer
value
Additonal net of
pension Transfer Employee  inflation Transfer Transter
Additicnal earnad valug of contri- and value value
Accrued Accrued pension inthe additional butionemployee's of accrued  of accrued increasein
pensionat  pension at earned vearnet  pension paid in contri- pension at  pension at transfer
30.09.05 30.09.068 intheyear of inflation' egamed theyear butions® 30.09.05 30.09.06 vatue?
Directors e £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
lan Farmer 95,023 101,616 6,583 3,337 42910 6,895 36,015 1,101,370 1,282,860 181,490
John Robinson 150,187 157,585 7,398 2,251 39,620 7,717 31,803 2,340,330 2,701,790 361,460

Notes:

1 This additional pension earned in the year is stated after making allowance for UK retail price inflation of 3.43% year-on-year. There were ng changes 1o the basis
on which benefits accrued during the period to 6 April 2006.

2 The pension antitament shown above is that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 60, but based on pensionable service 1o 6 April 2006. The normal
retirement date for lan Farmer is 25 March 2022 and for John Robinson is 4 August 2014,

3 Theincrease in transfer value represents the increase over the year in the capital ameount that the Director would He entitled 1o transfer to another pension scheme
on leaving the Company. Changes in this value arise from a number of sources including the increase in the executive’s accrued pension over the year, investroent
returns on the transter value at the start of the year. and changes in actuarial assumptions. The figure therefore reflects prevailing market conditions at the date on
which it is evaluated. For clarily, it is not & sumn due to the Director nor can it meaningfully be added to the Director's remuneration for the year.

4 This adjusts the increase in transfer value to reflect both inflation and the fact that the Director has shared in the funding of the increased pensicn provision by contributing
5% of his pensionable pay 10 the scheme. (The pension entitlements shown exclude any benefits that might be attributable to additional voluntary contributicns.)

Pensions generally

No element of any Director’s remuneration other than basic salary is pensionable. Except as disclosed above, the Company has given
no undertakings to arrange or bear the cost of any other pension benefits for any Director. No former Director enjoys pension benefits
in excess of those provided, in accordance with the provisions of the trust deeds and rules, to all members of the relevant scheme.

Life assurance

lan Farmer and John Robinson remain members of the Company’s defined benefit pension scheme for death in service benefits,
and as such are entitled to life assurance of four times their base salary, and the level of spouse’s pension earned during their
pensionable service in that Scheme. Brad Mills is entitled to life assurance benefits of four times his annual salary under his contract
of employment. Until 6 April 20086, Brad Mills was a 'life assurance only’ member of the Lonmin Superannuation Scheme in respect
of salary up to the Infand Revenue earnings cap, and was provided by the Company with unapproved lite assurance on his salary in
excess of the cap, the premium for which is a benefit in kind and included as such in the remunsration table, From 6 April 2008, the
Company provided all three Cirectors with life assurance benefits by way of excepted life arrangements.
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Performance-related pay for executive Directors and senior executives

Short-term incentive arrangements

The Committee believes that participation in a short-term incentive scheme enhances the focus of the executive Directors and key
senicr executives by providing a meaningful incentive to out-perform. The Company provides the opportunity to earr an annual
cash bonus through a batanced scorecard approach, assessing performance under four broad headings, being as follows (the
weighting generally attaching to each component is quoted as a percentage of overall bonus opportunity):

Executive Directors

Percentage of
bonus opporiunity  Actual payment

on oiter for the year

for target (% of honus
Coemponent and constituent elements performance opporiunity)
SHEC matters (15%)
o Safety — number of fatalities at Marikana 2.5% 1.9%
* Safety — improvement in lost time injury frequency rate 2.5% 3.1%
* Environment — notifiable events and fines 50% 0.0%
» Community — score in annual baseline survey 5.0% 7.5%
Shareholder alignment (40%)
o Bonusablg EBIT 20% 10.8%
® Free cash flow 20% 25.4%
Production and growth (5%)
¢ Primary mine production of platinum 2.0% 0.0%
» Capital projects — on time and within budget 0.5% ¢.5%
¢ Capital projects - total spend measure 0.5% 0.5%
¢ (1 unit costs 2.0% 0.0%
Personal objectives (40%)
¢ Delivery of key projects 40% 34.0%'
Total 100% 83.7%

1 Average for the three executive Directors.

The bonus elements and relative weightings detailed above were selected as these best captured the steps needing to be taken to
improve the delivery of value to shareholders, and all were capable of abjective measurement and independent verification.

For each individual element, three levels of attainment were set:

° Threshold - the minimum level of attainment for which the committes felt payment could be warranted, with generally 75% of
the ‘target’ amount for that element being payable.

* Target - based on the Company's budget, at which 100% of the bonus for that element becomes payable.

= Stretch -~ representing a significant level of cutperformance and alse acting as a cap on the bonus due for that element, with
150% of the ‘target’ amount for that element being payable.

The scheme design provides for payment of 80% of base salary to executive Directors (100% in the case of the Chief Executive) for
overall performance at the target level with the bonus therefore being capped at the stretch level of 120% of base safary (150% in
the case of the Chief Executive). All results have been independently reviewed (including where appropriate scrutiny by the external
auditors} and the committee has subjected the scorecard to a detailed assessment before authorising payment. Of the bonus
resulting, two-thirds is settled in cash and a minimum of one-third {on an after tax basis) is invested in the Company's deferred
annual bonus plan on behalf of the executive concerned.

Of necessity, the design of bonus plans will avolve from year to year, in line with the Company’s strategic needs. The Committes
monitors the competitive environment and will devise amended or new plans in future years to ensure that the Company can
continue to recruit, retain and motivate the most able senior executives, and that they are given the clearest possibie incentive to
deliver exceptional value to shareholders. However, the plan for the year to 30 September 2007 is substantially similar in design to
that of the prior year.
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Deferred Annual Bonus Plan (DABP)

As noted above, a minimum of one-third of the net cash bonus
due to each exgcutive is invested in this plan, with executives
able 10 elect to invest any greater amount up to the whole of
their net bonus. The funds invested are used to buy Lonmin
shares in the open market via the Company's employee benefit
trust. At the date the shares are purchased, the trusteas make
& ‘matched award' 10 the executive which, subject to the
attainment of performance conditions, could enable matching
of the number of shares bought by the executive of up to one
for one, on an after tax basis. The purpose of the plan is
therefore 1o provide Directors and executives with a direct
personal stake in the delivery of value to shareholders, and to
ensure that the interests of management and shareholders are
demonstrably and fully aligned.

The performance condition comprises of two independent
components with three levels of attainment, threshold, target
and stretch and straight-line interpolation between these
points. The two measures are Relative Total Shareholder
Return (RTSR) and growth in Earnings Before Interest and Tax
{EBIT) relative to the prior financial year end:

RTSR

component

RTSR released

Level {50% of award) %
Threshold 50th percentile (median) 50
Target £60th percentile 75
Stretch 75th percentile (upper quartile) 100
EBIT

component

EBIT released

Level {50% of award) %
Threshold % profit 50%
Target growth targets over 75%
Stretch FY 2005 100%

These measures were chosen because the Committee falt they
best reflected both the key imperative on management, the
delivery of operating profit and also provided an equal focus on
the delivery of value to shareholders. Further discussion of how
the Committee implements the EBIT performance condition is
given on page 25.
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The Commitiee does not intend to disclose the EBIT growth
targets for reascns of commercial sensitivity ang because of
regulatory constraints, but will do so retrospectively at the
conclusion of the refevant performance period. It believes the
profit growth targets to be stretching, yet realistic.

On 15 December 2005, awards were made under this Plan to
the executive Directors and to a numbar of senior executives.
The mid market closing share price on that date was 1592p.
Details of the awards are included in the table of directors’
interests.

Co-Investment Plan (CIP)

The DABP forms the basis of a CIP entered into with Brad Mills
when he joined the Company in March 2004. The arrangement
provides Mr Mills with partial compensation for the loss of his
long-term share incentives upon leaving the employment of
BHP Billiton. Mr Mills is the sole participant in this arrangement
which applied from the date of his appointment, and under
which the Company paid £1,205,994 into its employese benefit
trust on 19 May 2004. The trustees applied this money 1o the
purchase of 124,362 Lonmin shares in the open market on the
same date, which will be held in trust for three years and are at
risk of forfeiture if his employment is terminated by the
Company with cause during that period. The trustees made a
‘matching award’ of up to a maximum of 104,869 Lonmin
shares to Mr Mills (having a matching value at the time the plan
was first agreed), which may be transferred to him at the end of
the three-year period, if stretching performance conditions are
met. The CIP can be settled using either market-purchased or
newly-issued shares. Half of the award is linked to the RTSR
growth target used in the Company's DABP with the vasting of
the other half linked to absolute growth in the Company's share
price over the period:

Percentaga of

Share price growth element
Level (50% of award) released
Threshold +20% 50%
Target +35% 75%
Stretch +50% 100%

www.lonmin.com




Remuneration Committee Report

continued

Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

This Plan is designed to ensure that the Company can offer
long-term incentives to executive Directors and senior
executives that do not rely on share price appreciation to
deliver the desired benefit, as is the case with traditional share
option schemes. The Committee believes that it is vital to be
able to offer such incentives to ensure that those best placed
to deliver value tar shareholders have a direct personal interest
in 50 doing. An award under this Plan entitles the recipient to
receive shares at no cost, subject to attainment of stretching
performance conditions which are detailed further below.

As with the DABP, the performance condition for the 2006 LTIP
award also comprises two independent compeonents, as
detailed below:

Percentage

of RTSR

RTSR componeant

Level {50% of award) released
Threshold 50th percentile {median} 35%
Target 75th percentile (upper quartile} 60%
Stretch 90th percentile {top decile} 100%
Percentage

of EBIT

2008 EBIT component

Lavel {50% of award) released
Thrashold Absolute 35%
Target level 63%
Stretch of profit 100%

Whereas the DABP EBIT performance condition is expressed
as growth in percentage terms over the base year, the LTIP
condition targets an actual level of audited EBIT for FY2008,
fully reflecting the impact of metal prices and foreign exchange.
Further discussion of how the Committee implements the EBIT
peformance condition is given on page 25.

As with the DABP EBIT performance condition, the Committee
feels unable to publish the targets, however, it is satisfied that
they should prove stretching, yet realistic, and there will be full
retrospective disclosure, including that of the market forecast
range and consensus at the time the targets were set.
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Awards were made to the executive Directors and a number of
senior executives on 17 August 2006. The closing mid-market
share price on that date was 2767p. Details of the awards are
included in the table of Directors’ interests. Additional awards
were made to senior executives during the year on 31 March
2006 and 29 September 2006. The closing mid-market share
price on thase dates were 2663p and 2559p respectively,

When the LTIP was introduced, we indicated that awards
would be limited in value to 150% of base salary, save in
exceptional circumstances, although the LTIP rules do not
specify a maximum limit. Awards were made to John Robinson
and lan Farmer equivalent to 75% and 100% of their respective
annua! base salaries. Having reviewed the competitive
remuneration conditions in comparable companies, the
Committee concluded that exceptional circumstances existed
and made an award to Brad Mills equal in value to 200% of his
annual base salary.

Stay & Prosper Plan

The Committee regularly reviews the incentive arrangements
offered to managers, particularly in South Africa where there is
severe compaetition for the best executive talent, to ensure the
Group is able to provide an appropriate level of reward and
incentive, whilst remaining consistent with current best
practice. Following such a review in 2005, the Committee
concluded that the existing share schemes did not adequately
mest the requirements for this category of employees and
therefore a cash based incentive plan was implemented in
2005 for the Group's South African employees, the purpose of
which was to provide a significant retention tool whilst also
providing sufficient incentive opportunity to align the interests
of managers with those of shareholders.

When first introduced, the Plan consisted of two components.
75% of the award, called the performance award, was subject
to a performance condition whilst the remaining 25% retention
award was subject to a continued employment condition.
Following a further review in 2006, the Committee determined
that a more significant retention incentive was necessary in
view of the increasingly global competitive market for skilled
and experienced individuals. The weighting of the pian was
changed to a 50% EBIT retention award and a 50%
performance award using the same performance condition
and vesting schedule as that applicable to the 2006 LTIP
award. There are no good leaver provisions attached to the




retention award and vesting of the performance award in good
leaver situations is subject to the discretion of the Committee.
Awards are linked to a notional number of shares which are
awarded at nil cost and participants receive cash at the end of
three years based on the prevailing market value of that
proportion of the total award that vests.

Percentage

of EBi¥

componant

Level 2008 EBIT! released
Threshold Absolute 20%
Target level 54%
Stretch of profit 100%

1 Asnotedin the LTIP section, there will be full retrospective disclosure of this
performance condition.

An award was made on 16 August 2006 to senior managers
based in South Africa. The executive Directors do not
participate in this Plan.

Scarce Skills Retention Plan

One of the key findings resulting from the 2006 review referred
to earlier was that many of the individuals who had been
identified as having rare and valuable skills necessary to the
Company's future vision were at significant risk of poaching by
our global competitors. In order to mitigate this risk and at the
same time encourage loyalty, the Committee impiemented a
bespoke retention plan, the Lonmin Scarce Skills Retention
Plan. This was a one-off award made to 74 senior managers,
the vast majority of whom are based in South Africa. The
executive Directors did not participate in this Pian.

Awards made under this Plan comprise a notional share based
award which is settled in cash provided the individual is still
employed by the Company three years after the award. There
is no performance condition and there are no good leaver
provisions. The Comrnittee does not envisage that any further
awards will be made under this Plan.

Performance condition philosophy

With the exception of the 2006 Stay & Prosper award and the
Scarce Skills Retention Plan, each of the share plans
mentioned above use relative total sharshoider return as part
or the whole of the performance condition. The Committee
believes that this measure links the actual returns delivered to
shareholders with the executive remuneration due as a result of
the delivery of our strategy. In addition, the Committee believes
that this test provides a measurable and objective reflection of
true performance for sharehclders in light of the variability
introduced intc reported results by metal prices and exchange
rates {particularly between the South African Rand and the

US Dollar).

The Committee also recognises that the underlying financial
performance of the business is an irmportant driver of
sharehaolder value and in order to provide an effactive and
robust link between the business’ needs and the remuneration
of the Company's executives and managers, the EBIT test was
introduced for awards made during the year under the DABP,
LTIP and the Stay & Prosper Plan. The Committee believes that
growth in EBIT is independent of stock market conditions and
is a key operational metric by which the business is measured.

Where the Group acquired new businesses, the EBIT impact
would normally be excluded from the assesment of
performance conditions by the Committee, unless the targets
had previously been adjusted to specifically include acquired
profits or losses. The Cormmittee would also have regard to the
cost of capital associated with such acquisitions, to ensure that
shareholder value was properly taken into account in this
context.

The comparator group of companies

The Remuneration Committee regularly reviews the
comparator group used for the Company's long-term incentive
arrangements to ensure that it remains relevant to the
Company’s stated strategy and therefore aligns executives
appropriately with shareholders. For awards made during the
year the Committee decided to broaden the group to twenty
comparator companies to provide a more statistically sound
and relevant comparator group.
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C1P/2004 DABP/2004 LTIP

2005 LTIP/
2005 Stay & Prosper/
2005 DABP

2006 LTIP/2006 Stay & Prosper

Nature of company/reason for change

Anglo American pic

Anglo American plc

Anglo American plc

FTSE 100 mining company/
SA exposure

Anglo Platinum Limited

Anglo Platinum Limited

Anglo Platinum Limited

SA PGM producer

AngloGold Ashanti Limited

AngloGold Ashanti Limited

AngloGold Ashanti Limited

SA mining company

Aguarius Platinum Limited

Aquarius Platinum Limited

SA PGM producer

- - Antofagasta FTSE 100 mining company

- - ARM Platinum SA PGM producer

- - Agquarius Platinum Limited SA PGM producer

BHP Billiton plc BHP Billiton plec BHP Billiton plc FTSE 100 mining company
CVRD Major global mining company

Engelhard Corporation Engelhard Cerporation - Acquired by BASF

- Gold Corp Specialised mining company

Gold Fields Limited

Gold Fields Limited

(Gold Fietds Limited

SA mining company

Impala Platinum Holdings
Limited

Impala Platinum Holdings
Limited

SA PGM producer

inco Limited

Inco Limited

Inco Limited

Nickel/PGM mining company

Johnson Matthey plc

Johnson Matthay plc

Johnson Matthey plc

PGM processor

JSC MMC Norilsk Nickel

JSC MMC Norilsk Nickel

Nickel/PGM mining company

Kumba Resources Limited

Kumba Resources Limited

SA mining company

Lion QOre

Nickel mining company

Northam Platinum Limited

SA PGM producer

Rio Tinto plc

Rio Tinto plc

Rio Tinto plc

FTSE 100 mining company

Stillwater Mining Company

Stillwater Mining Company

North American PGM producer

Umicore

PGM processor

WMC Resources Limited

Acquired by BHP Billiton

Xstrata pic

Xstrata plc

FTSE 100 mining company

13 companies

15 companies

20 companies

Progress against performance conditions
The Company’s performance to date compared to the various performance conditions described earlier is set cut below.

Growth to date

Award' Date of award Normal vesting data {as at 30.08.06) Ranking level
CIP {50% RTSR) May 2004 May 2007 310% 4" out of 14
CIP {50% Share Price) May 2004 May 2007 187% Above stretch
LTIP July 2004 July 2007 306% A" out of 14
LTIP September 2004 September 2007 294% 3 out of 14
LTIP September 2005 September 2008 250% 34 out of 16
LTIP {50% RTSR)! August 2006 August 2009 104% 12" out of 21
LTIP (50% RTSRY September 20086 September 2009 - —
DABP matched award December 2004 December 2007 2809% 3¢ out of 14
DABP matched award (50% RTSR)' December 2005 December 2008 210% 3 out of 16
Stay & Prosper September 2005 September 2008 250% 39 out of 16

1 EBIT performance conditions not included,
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Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS)
The Committee does not currently expect to make any future grants under these schemes, following the introduction of the LTIP,

DABP and the Stay & Prosper Plan and no options were granted during the year.

The purpose of these legacy schemes is to align Directors’ and employees' interests with those of shareholders. Since 1994, this
has been achieved by making the exercise of options by all participants subject to stretching but realistic performance conditions
relating o the delivery of value to shareholders, which must be met before the option can be exercised. Details of these for the
Company's various tranches of exacutive share options that remain outstanding are as follows:

Options granted in or after 1998 but before 2002 - exercise is subject to attainment of a performance condition that the total
return to shareholders over a consecutive thirty-six month period must be greater than the total return on the Mining Sector of the
FTSE Actuaries Share Indices. The conditions attaching to the options granted in 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001 were attained in
2001, 2002, 2003 and 2008 respectively and these oplions became exercisable.

Options granted in or after 2002 - whilst exercise remains subject to achievement of total shareholder return greater than that on
the Mining Sector of the FTSE Actuaries Share Indices, this must be achieved in one of the periods of three, four, five or six years
following the date of grant, in each case relative to a fixed base year.

The test for the 2003 grant was satisfied during the year and these options are now exercisable. The formal re-test of the 2002
grant was carried out on 1 July 2002 and was not met. For indicative purposas only, a test carried out at the end of the year shows
the Company would have met the performance condition but the next formal re-test will not occur until 1 July 2007, Detaits of the
results are provided below.

FTSE Actuaries
TSR growth Mining sector

Scheme Date of award First normal exercise date  {as at 30.09.08) TSR growth
ESOS June 2001 June 2004 303% 289%
ESQOS July 2002 July 2005 262% 258%
ESOS September 2003 September 2006 306% 233%

Lonmin Plc Share Plan

In September 2001, the Company introduced the Lonmin Plc Share Plan, under which shares were conferred on selected key
managers of Lonmin Platinum (but not the Campany) over a five-year period. The Plan operates through options granted by the
trustee of the Company's employee benefit trust at a price of £0.01 per share. This is designed as an employee retention scheme,
although there is an inherent incentive element since participants will benefit from any increase in the Lonmin share price. Following
the introduction of the new long-term incentive arrangements, no further awards are intended to be made under this scheme.

Sharesave

The Company has historically offered an Inland Revenue apgroved Savings Related Share Option Scheme to all UK-remunerated
employees, inciuding the executive Directors. Under this Scheme, the participant enters into a savings contract and in return is
granted an option over the Company's shares to be funded by the balance on their savings account at the end of the contractual
savings period. The option price may, at the Committeg’s discretion, be at a discount of up to 20% to the prevailing mid-market
price at the date of invitation. The Company has historically granted all such options with a 20% discount, including those held by
John Robinson and lan Farmer. The award made during the year was not offered at a discount.
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Share schemes generally

Except under the Shargsave scheme and the Lonmin Plc Share Plan, ne options have been granted that have an exercise price at
a discount to the market price at the time the exercise price was set. No options or awards of any kind have been granted to non-
executive Directors. Directors are strongly encouraged to hold the shares issued to them upon the exercise of options.

Dilution

Options granted under ESOS and Sharesave (described above} are satisfied with newly issued shares, whilst the newer plans
operated by the Company such as the LTIP, DABP or the Stay & Prosper Plan are either satisfied with market purchased shares via
the Company's off-shore employee benefit trust (or where appropriate newly issued shares) or are cash settled.

The table below shows the Company's current commitrment to issue new shares in respect of its share option schemes assuming
all performance conditions are met and all option holders remain in employment to the vesting date:

Undiluted 30.08.05 % AGE OF ISC 30,0006 % AGE OF ISC
Issued share capital {refer to note 26} 142,064,482 142,914,832

The Lonmin Executive Share Option Scheme 3,203,722 2.26 2,216,758 1.55
The Lonmin Share Option Scheme 56,642 0.04 28,656 0.02
The Lonmin Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1994 31,059 0.02 46,099 0.03
Total 3,291,423 2.32 2,291,513 1.60

The table above reflects share awards which the Company is obliged to settle using newly issued shares. Full details of ali
outstanding share awards are given in note 27 to the accounts.

Directors’ sharehoiding obligation

Uitimately, the Committee believes that the most powerful way of ensuring that the actions of the Directors are best aligned with
shareholders’ interests is for the Directors to build up and retain personally significant holdings of the Company’s shares. As a
matter of policy, the Board expects all Directors to acquire a shareholding {including vested but unexercised share incentives) by
30 September 2008 equal in value to 100% of their basic pay {or, in the case of non-executive Directors, fees), and 150% in the
case of the Chief Executive. In this way, shareholder value becomes a paramount principle underlying all Board decisions, since
real personal wealth will be at stake. Failure to achieve these targets may resuit in exclusion from participation in some or all of
the incentive schemes that the Company operates.

Directors’ shareholdings
The beneficial interests of the Directors in office during the year are shown telow:

30.09.05 30.00.06
Executive Directors
Brad Mills 141,596 152,707
John Robinson 25,491 27,032
lan Farmer 12,681 14,022
Non-Executive Directors
Sir John Craven 93,808 93,808
Roger Phillimore 18,614 18,826
Michaet Hartnall 4,000 4,000
Peter Godsce 3,360 3,360
Karen de Segundo - 1,488
Sivi Gounden - -
Total 289,550 315,243

1 MrMills” holding of 124,362 shares under the CIP is, as explained above, at risk of forfeiture if his employment |s summartly tarminated with cause
2 There were no changes in the serving Directors' interests from 30 September 2006 to the date of this report, save a dividend re-investment in John Robinson's
PEP under a standing election resulting in an additionat 11 shares acquired on 2 October 2006 at a price of 2699.75p
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Directors’ options and awards
The options and awards held by Directors over ordinary shares of the Company are set out in the table below:

Date from
Perform- m ewcm Date ot ::Anirekﬁ; Noticna!  Markat value
ance Date of Exefcisable As at Exercised/ As at fvesting Expiry exorcise/  daleof  pre-lax as at
Schamae £ondition grant Prica |p) 30.09.05 Granted released Lapsed 30.09.06 date data vesing exgrcise gainiQ 30.09.06(C)
Brad Mills?
CIP 1A {c) 19.05.04 - 124,362 - - - 124,362 19.05.07 19.05.07 - - - 3,182,424
CIP MA (c) 19.05.04 - 104,869 - - — 104,869 19.05.07 19.05.07 - - - 2,683,598
DABP MA {d 20.12.04 - 28,210 - - - 28,210 2042.07 20.12.07 - — - 721,894
DABP MA {e) 15.12.05 - - 17897 - - 17,897 2112.08 2112.08 — - - 457984
LTIP [d) 20.07.04 - 78,451 - - - 78,451 20.07.07 20.07.07 - — = 2,007,561
LTIP (d) 30.09.05 - 67500 - - - 67500 30.08.08 30.08.08 - - - 1,727,325
LTIP {fy 17.08.06 - - 44,100 - - 44100 17.08.09 17.08.09 — — - 1,128,510
Total — 403,392 61,997 - - 465,389 - - - 11,808,305
John Robinson
ESOS? fa) 010702 1,150.00 27,000 - - - 27000 01.07.05 010712 - — - 380,430
ESOS (@ 30.09.03 94200 27,000 - - - 27000 30.09.06 30.09.13 - - - 436,590
SAYE () 1512.03 840.00 1,886 - - - 1886 01.02.09 01.08.09 - - - 32420
DABP MA {d 20.12.04 - 7,928 - - - 7828 201207 201207 ~ — - 202,878
DABP MA (e) 15.12.05 ~ - 2,592 - - 2,592 211208 2112.08 - — - 66,329
LTIP {d) 20.07.04 - 30,266 - - - 30,266 200707 20.0707 - - - 774,507
LTIP (d) 30.09.05 - 26,000 - - - 26,000 30.08.08 30.09.08 - - -~ 665,340
LTiP {f) 17.08.06 - - 8,200 - - 9200 17.08.09 17.08.09 - - - 235,428
Total - 120,080 11,792 - - 131,872 — — — 2,793,922
lan Farmer
ESOS® (& (1.07.02 1150.00 27,000 - - - 27000 010705 01.0712 - - - 380,430
ESOS (@) 30.09.03 894200 27,000 - - — 27000 30.03.06 30.09.13 - - - 436,590
SAYE {b) 05.01.05 705.00 2,343 - - - 2,343 01.0210 01.08.10 - - - 43439
DABP MA (d) 2012.04 - 8,433 - - - 8,433 201207 20.12.07 - - - 215,800
DABP MA () 15.12.05 - - 2,273 - - 2273 211208 211208 - - - 58,166
LTIP (d} 20.07.04 - 28,773 - - - 26,773 20.07.07 20.07.07 - - - 685,121
LTe {d) 30.08.05 - 23,000 - — - 23,000 30.08.08 30.09.08 - - - 588,570
LTIP (f} 17.08.06 - - 12,200 - - 12,200 17.08.09 17.08.09 - — - 312,198
Total — 114,549 14,473 - - 129,022 - - - 2,720,314

Rows that are not shaded indicate that options have vested and are capable of exercise.

The value is calcutated using the clasing middle market quotation for Lonmin shares at 30 September 2006 of 2559p and is stated {where relavant) net of exarcise costs.
W Mills' invested award of 124,362 shares under the CIP is at risk of forfeiture if his employment is summarily terminated with cause

The test relating to the 2002 executive share option was not satisfied and is therefore not currently capable of being exercised

No options or awards held by the Directors were exercised or lapsed during the year, There were no changes in the serving directors' interests from 30 September
2006 to the date of this report

The clostng mid-market quotation for the Company's ordinary shares, as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List, was 2559p on

30 September 2006, and the price ranged between 1247p and 3093p during the financial year

PRIV R

o

The schemes under which these awards/options were granted are:

ESOS - Options granted under the Lonmin Executive Share Option Schemes (Inland Revenue approved and unapproved)
SAYE - Options granted under the Lonmin Savings Related Share Option Scherne

DABP MA - Deferred Annual Bonus Plan Matched Awards made under the Sharsholder Value Incentive Plan

LTIP - Long Term incentive Ptan Awards made under the Shareholder Value Incentive Plan

CIP A - Co-Investment Plan Invested Award made under the Shareholder Value Incentive Plan

CIPMA - Co-Investment Plan Matched Award made under the Shareholkder Value Ingentive Plan

The peformance conditions are fully explained in earier narrative, but are briefly:

(a) TSR exceeds that achieved on the FTSE mining sector over 3. 4, 5 or 6 years

(b} No performance condition is attached to SAYE options

{r) 509% of awards linked to same TSR condition as in (d} below and remaining 50% of award linked o absotute growth in the Company's share price over 3 year pariod

{d) TSR exceeds TSR of comparator companias over 3 years with vesting schedules as descrined

(e] 50% of awards linked to TSR exceeding TSR of comparator companies over 3 years with vesting schedute as described and remaining 50% of award tinked to
growth in EBIT

) 50% of awards linked to TSR exceeding TSR of comparator companies over 3 years with vesting schedule as described and remaining 50% of award linked to EBIT
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Non-Group directorships

Save as noted below, no executive Director holds any executive directorship or appointment outside the Group. It is both the
Company’s policy, and generally a requirement of the individual's contract of employment, that no executive Director may take up such
an appointment without the approval of the Board. The Board befieves that in the right circumstances the halding of non-executive
directorships and similar appointments by executive Directors can be useful and appropriate if they help those involved gain additional
skills and experience, or promote the interests of the Group, and do not necessitate an excessive time commitment. The Board would
not normally agree to an executive Director taking on more than one non-executive directorship of a FTSE100 company, or the
chairmanship of such a company. Whilst it would be considered on a case-by-case basis, any individual holding such a role outside
the Group would generally be permitted to retain any fees or other payments refating to that appointment. lan Farmer is a non-
executive director of Incwala Resources (Pty} Limited, the International Platinum Association and, until 29 September 2006, of Furuya
Matals Co. Ltd, a Japanese company undertaking significant research and development into uses for PGMs in which Lonmin has an
equity investment. Mr Farmer has not received and does not receive any remuneration in respect of his services to any of these
organisations.

Service contracts

The Company complies fully with the provisions of the Combined Code relating to service contracts. The Remuneration Committee
would be responsible for settling any payment to be made if an executive Director's employment ended, and would have fult regard
to the provisions of the Combined Code and other components of best practice in this area.

Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment

Expiry date of current service gontract or etter of

Date of contract/letter Unexpired tarm appoinbment and termination arrangements

Executive Directors

Brad Mills 4 February 2004 Relling contract Contract terminable on expiry of 12 months’ notice
{amended from the Company and 6 months from Brad Mills. The
19 November 2004) contract also contains provisions for ‘gardening leave’

and payment in lieu of notice {being salary and benefits
for one year at the rate then in force plus an estimate of
any bonus due for that year), at the discretion of the

Company.
lan Farmer 6 April 2006 Rolling contract Contracts are terminable on 364 days’ prior written
John Robinson 6 April 2006 Rolling contract notice given by either the Company or the

individual, except for gross misconduct or in certain
other circumstances which may result in dismissal.
In the event that employment is terminated by the
Company without notice and not for reasons of gross
misconduct, the Directors are entitled to receive a
payment equivalent to the value of the annual basic
salary and contractual benefits which would have
been earned during this unworked notice period.

Non-executive Directors

Sir Joehn Craven 1 March 2003 Letters of appointment provide for a fixed period of
Peter Godsoe 28 June 2005 appointment of three years, subject to the Company’s
Sivi Gounden 28 September 2005 years, subject to the Company's Articles of Association
Michael Hartnall 8 May 2003 relating to retirement by rotation. No compensation
Roger Philimore 7 July 2005 is payable to non executive Directors for loss of office.
Karen de Segundo 22 April 2005

This report was approved by the Board on 14 November 2006.

Roger Phillimore
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
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Auadit Committee Report

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a formal Committee of the Board, and

has powers delegated to it under the Articles of Association. Its

terms of reference were reviewed by the Board in May 2004

and are compliant with the provisions of the Combined Code.

A copy of the terms of reference is available on the Company’s

website and sets out the primary purposes of the Audit

Committee, which are:

¢ To monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and announcements relating to its
financiat performance, reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements.

* To keep under review the effectiveness of the Gompany's
internal controls and risk management systems.

= To monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function
and review its material findings.

* To oversee the relationship with the external auditors,
including agreeing their remuneration and terms of
engagement, monitoring their independence, objectivity and
effectiveness and ensuring that policy surrounding their
engagement to provide non-audit services is appropriately
appled,

The Committee is authorised to investigate any matters within
its terms of reference, access all Group documents and
inforrmation, seek information from any Director or employee of
the Group and co-opt any resources {(including external
professional assistance) it sees fit in order to fulfit its duties,
However, the Committee has no executive function and its
primary objective is to review and challenge, rather than
assume responsibility for any matters within its remit. Minutes
of all mestings of the Commitiee (save those recording private
discussions with either the internal or external auditors) are
circulated to all Directars, and supplemented by a verbal
update from the Committee Chairrnan at the next Board
meeting, identifying any matiers in respect of which action or
improvement is required, and making recommendations where
appropriate. The Committee presents a summary of its
activities 10 shareholders and other interested parties by
means of this report, and the Commiitee Chairman attends all
general meetings of the Company's shareholders to answer
any questions on the Committee's activities.

The Committee assessed its effectiveness at a meeting in
September 20086. To do so, members of the Committee, the
internal and external auditors and members of the
management team who assist the Audit Committee in their
work all provided their opinions on the effectivenass of the
Committee, the flow of information, relationships with
managemen! and advisors and the appropriateness of the
terms of reference. All of these views were summarised into a
formal report to the Beard by the Chairman. The Committee
separately discussed the effactiveness of the Chairman of the
Commities {in his absence), which also formed part of the
report to the Board. There were no matters arising which the
Committee or Board felt necessitated change.
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Composition of the Audit Committee

Allindependent Directors, with the exception of the Chairman

of the Board, are eligible to become members of the

Committee. The Namination Committee will recommend any

appointments or removals to the Board, which is responsible

for the composition of the Committee. The Committee has at

least three members, all of whom must be financially literate,

and any two members form a quorum. The Committee

comprised the following members during the year and to the

date of this report, except where stated otherwise:
Michael Hartnall - an independent Director and a chartered
accountant, Mr Hartnall was for 16 years until 2003 the
finance director of Rexam plc, a multinational manufacturer
of consumer packaging where his responsibilities included
finance, internat control, risk management and corporate
governance. He was also a member of the Hampel
Committee which produced the first version of the
Combined Code in 1998. The Board has judged that he has
the significant, recent and relevant financial experience
necessary to chair the Committee.

* Roger Philimore — an independent Director and a member
of the Audit Committee since May 1998,

* Karen de Segundo ~ an independent Director and a
member of the Audit Committee since 29 April 2005.

Biographical dstails of each Director are set out on page 26
and 27 of the Annual Review which accompanies this
document. Each member receives an annual fee of £7,500 for
serving as a member of the Committee or, in the case of the
Chairman, £17,500. In addition, Mr Hartnall receives a fee of
£7,500 for attending meetings of the Company's Risk and
SHEC Committee. These fees are included in the table of
Directors’ remuneration on page 18 of this document. All
members of the Committee are provided with appropriate
induction inta the role of the Commitiee and the operation of its
terms of reference on appointment. Access to training is
provided on an ongoing basis to ensure that members are able
to discharge their duties.

Meetings of the Committee are attended by the Chief
Executive, the Chief Financial Officer, the Vice President -
Finance, the Vice President — Risk and Treasury and Assistant
Company Secretary (who acts as secretary to the Committee),
none of whom do so as of right. The external auditors attend all
Committee meetings and a private meeting is routinely held
with them to afford the opportunity of discussions without the
presence of management, The internal auditors attend all
Committee meetings held in South Africa and are similarly
afforded private mestings with the Committee.

Internal audit

Throughout the year, Ernst & Young acted as internal auditors to
Lonmin. They were also commissioned 1o advise on the internal
control environment that would be required in order to
successfully implement a new enterprise resource planning
system. The Committee sees this activity as wholly appropriate
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Audit Committee Report
continued

for the internal auditors to perform. A total of 22 assignments
were undertaken during the year across a broad cross-section
of activities identified by both management and the Audit
Committee. Internal audit reports are agreed with operational
management and then delivered to the president of Lonmin
Platinum and to the Chief Financial Officer, with material findings
and recommendations then summarised to the Audit
Committee, who receive regular updates on progress in
addressing the matters raised by internal audits. The Audit
Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal auditors
annually.

External audit

KPMG Audit plc acted as the external auditors to the Lonmin
Group throughout the year. The lead audit partner is based in
London and supported by a second audit partner based in
Johannesburg. The external auditors may not be engaged on
any material non-audit work without the prior approval of the
Audit Committee, who are responsible for the annual work plan
and fee budget for the auditors. As policy, the Committee
would not aliow the external auditors to perform any work that
they may subsequently need to audit, or which might otherwise
create a conflict of interests. The Committee also monitors the
balance between audit and non-audit related spend to ensure
that auditor independence can be shown to be maintained.
The Chief Financial Officer is permitted to engage the external
auditors on matters that do not create such conflicts or
otherwise compromise the audit firm subject to an annual fee
ceiling of $100,000.

Nan-audit fees incurred during the year amounted to $0.6
milion (2005 — $0.5 million), equating to approximately 55%
{2005 ~ 56%) of the total Group audit fee, and relate primarily to
the provision of taxation advisory services and advice on
accounting practice, including the transition to international
financial reporting standards. The Committee is satisfied that
the overall level of non-audit fees is not material relative to the
income of the audit offices and firm as a whole, and that the
nature of the services provided are appropriate and in ling with
the Company's policies in this area.

The Audit Committee appraised the expertise, resources,
independence and objectivity of KPMG and also reviewed their
effectiveness as external auditors before reaching the
recommendation to the Board that their re-election should be
proposed to shareholders.

Activities of the Audit Committee

The Committee normally meets four times annually, aithough

one additional meeting was held in January 2008. The

Committee reports its material findings to the next Board

meeting. The principal business of these meetings is:

o November: consideration of the letter of representation from
management to the externat auditors relating to the
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accounts; receive a report from the external auditors
following their review of the full year accounts; assessment
of any material exercises of judgement by management;
consideration of the ‘going concern' statement; review of
the annual reporting documents (including the accounts)
and consider whether to recommend the same to the
Board: review of the independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the external auditors and formulation of a
recommendation to the Board as to whether or not their re-
appointment should be proposed to shareholders; review of
the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management
systems during the year prepared by management; receive
an update on the work of the Risk and SHEC Committee
and any material matters arising; private meeting with the
external auditors.

January: review of implications of adoption of IFRS, review
of external auditor's report on the IFRS restatement,
approval of restated financial statements under IFRS relating
to the previous financial year.

March (in South Africa): review of matters arising from the
prior year audit; approval of scope of the external auditors’
proposed review of the interim accounts and the fees to be
charged; approval of the scope and fees for the external
audit of the full year accounts; review of non-audit services
to be provided by the external auditors; approval of the
terms of the external auditors’ engagement letter; review of
the work of the internal auditors in the year to date and their
principal findings; receive an update on the work of the Risk
and SHEC Committee and any material matters arising;
private meeting with the internal auditors.

April: consideration of the letter of representation from
managemeant ta the external auditors relating to the interim
accounts: receive a report from the external auditors
following their review of the interim accounts; assessment of
any material exercises of judgement by management; review
of the interim report (including the accounts) and consider
whether to recommend the same 1o the Board; receive an
update on the work of the Risk and SHEC Committee and
any material matters arising; private meeting with the
external auditors.

September {in South Africa): review of the effectiveness of
the internal auditors; review of the work of the internal
auditors and their principal findings; approval of the scope
and focus of the internal audit programme and internal audit
fees for the forthcoming financial year; further review and
final confirmation of the external auditors’ plan for the year
end audit; receive an update on the work of the Risk and
SHEC Committee and any materiat matters arising; review
of the key risks facing the Group following ‘top down’ and
‘bottorn up’ risk reviews; review of the renewal terms and
scope of cover of the Group’s insurance programime; review
of the effectiveness of the audit committee and the
Chairman, private meeting with the internal auditors.




tn addition to the routine business described above, the
Committee also undertook the foliowing activities during the
year and in the period to the date of this report in discharging
its responsibilities:
+ Endorsement of the appointment of a new external audit
partner
Review of the impact of the Flint review of Turnbull Guidance
Review of the Company’s legal and regutatory compliance
Updates on the OFR and Business Review requirements
Consideration and approval of the Group’s capital
expenditure control procedures and further review of the
capex reporting process.
* Review of the audit findings on the financial and statutory
managemeant of the Lonmin Development Trust
» Review of matters reported to the independent
ethics hotline
* Review of risk assessment report and work-plan for annual
‘bottom up’ risk review
* Receive status report on implementation of
enterprise resource planning system and the internal
control environment
+ Receive report from external auditors on controls reporting
and interface with internal auditors
* Update from external auditors on incoming legislation in
South Africa
» Approval of non-audit work undertaken by external auditor

The Committee met five times during the year. Attendance at
these meetings was as foflows:

Number of
meetings held Number of
during time meaetings
Dirgctor in offica attendad
Karen de Segundo 5 5
Michael Hartnall 5 5
Roger Phillimore 5 5

This report was approved by the Board on 14 November 2008.

Michael Hartnall
Committee Chairman
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Nomination Committee Report
for the year ended 30 September 2006

Role of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is a formal Committee of the
Board, and has powers delegated to it under the Articles of
Association. Its remit is set out in terms of reference that were
formally adopted by the Board in November 2005. These are
available from the Company, and displayed on its website. The
primary purpose of the Committee is, in consultation with the
Chairman, to recommend any proposed changes to the
composition of the Board, and to instigate and manage the
recruitment process.

Composition of the Nomination Committee

The Committee comprises Roger Phillimore {chairman), Peter
Godsoe and, from @ November 2005, Sir John Craven. All
three members are non-executive Directors whom the Board
considers to be wholly independent, The quorum for a meeting
of the Committee is two members. Each member receives an
annual fee of £5.000 for serving as a member of the
Committee or, in the case of its Chairman, £7,500. These fees

are included in the table of Directors’ remuneration on page 18.

The Committes is supported by the services of the Company
Secretary, who acts as secretary to the Committee and it has
full access to the Chief Executive. It is also empowered to
appoint search consultants, legal, tax and other professional
advisors as it sees fit to assist with its work, and to co-opt
such resources as it requires to fulfil its duties.

Activities of the Nomination Committee

All recommendations for Board appeintments are made on
merit and against objective criteria. A job specification is drawn
up which includes, in the case of non-executive appointments,
an estimate of the time commitment required. Generally, the
Committee will engage executive search cansultants to ensure
objectivity. Thera were no new appointments to the Board
during the year.
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At a meeting in November 2005, the Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the
Company's 2006 AGM. Sir John Craven, Michael Hartngll and
Karen de Segundo were deemed to be able, committed and
effective in their roles. No such assessment could be made in
respect of Sivi Gounden as he had only recently joined the
Board, but the Committee had every confidence in his abilitites.
The Committee also assessed its effectiveness and, in his
absence, that of the Chairman of the Committee. The views
expressed were summarised to the Board. There were no
matters arising which the Committee or the Board felt
necessitated change.

In August 2006 the Committee approved the offer of a fourth
term of office to Mr Phillimere, who did not attend this meeting
in view of the subject matter.

The Committee met twice during the year. Aitendance at this
meeting was as follows:

Number of
meetings held Number of
during time meetings
Director in office attended
Peter Godsoe 2 2
Roger Phillimore 2 1
Sir John Craven 1 1

This report was agproved by the Beard on 14 November 2008.

Roger Phillimore
Committee Chairman




Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Lonmin Plc
We have audited the group and parent company financial
statements {the "'financial statements"} of Lonmin Plc for the
year ended 30 September 2006 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Staternent, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Balance Shests, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, Statement of Recognised Income and Expense and
the related notes, These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We
have also audited the infarmaticn in the Directors’ Remuneraticn
Report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’'s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report
and the group financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financiat Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and for preparing the parent
company financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set
out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsitilities on page 6.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the
part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory reguirements
and internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
staterments give a true and fair view and whether the financial
staternents and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation. We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’
Report is consistent with the financial statements. The information
given in the Directors' Report includes that specific information
presented in the Business Review that is cross referred from the
Business Review section of the Directors’ Report.

in addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement
reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of
the 2003 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does
not. We are not required to consider whetner the board's
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statements on internal control cover alf risks and controls, or
form an opinion on the effectiveneass of the group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report
and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. Cur
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amaounts and disclosures in the financial
statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to
be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate 10 the group’s and company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit s0 as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

* the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of
the group's affairs as at 30 September 2006 and of its profit
for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation;

+ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair
view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company’s
affairs as at 30 September 2006;

s the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985; and

* the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent
with the financial statements.

KPMG Audit Pic
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

l.ondon 14 November 2006
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 September

Special Special
2006 items 2006 2005 iterns 2005
Underlying' {note 3) Total Underlying (note 3) Total
Continuing operations Note sm sm $m $m $m $m
Revenue 2 1,855 - 1,855 1,128 - 1,128
EBITDA" 911 12 923 429 {(12) 417
Depreciation and armortisation (81) - (81) (67) - (67)
Qperating profit/(lass) 2 830 12 842 362 12 350
Finance income 8 12 - 12 1 — L1
Finance expenses 5 (34) (206) {240) (37) (8) {45)
Share of profit of associate and
joint venture 13 19 - 19 3 - 3
Profit/{loss) before taxation 827 (194) 633 339 (20) 319
Income tax expense" 7 (280) 78 (202) (129) 11 {118)
Profit/{loss) for the year 547 (116) 431 210 9} 201
Attributable to:
- Equity shargholders of Lonmin Plc 445 (132) 313 168 (10) 158
- Minority interest 102 16 118 42 i 43
Earnings per share 8 312.1¢ 219.5¢ 118.5¢ 111.5¢
Diluted earnings per share” 8 307.7¢ 216.4c 118.3¢ 111.3¢
Dividends paid per share 9 §7.0c 72.0c
Statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 30 September
2006 2005
Total Total
Note $m $m
Profit for the year 431 20
Change in fair value of available for sale financial assets 14 46 —
Amounts charged to hedging reserve 28 4) -
Actuarial {losses)y/gains on post retirement bengfit plan 15 (6) 7
Total recognised income for the year 467 208
Attributable to:
- Equity shareholders of Lonmin Pic 28 350 165
— Minority interest 28 117 43
28 467 208
Footnotes:

i Underlying eamings are calculated on profit for the year excluding movements in tha fair value of the embedded derivative associated with the convertible bond,
exchange on 1ax balances, profit on the sale of Marikana houses. an adjustment to the interest capitalised in prior years and, for 2008, the effect of a change in the
South African tax rate on the opening deferred tax balance and reorganisation costs as disclosed in note 3 to the accounts.

i EBITDA is operating profit before depreciation and amartisation.

i Operating profit is defined as revenue and other operating expenses befere net finance casts and before share of profit of associate and joint venture.

iv The incame tax expense relates to overseas only and includes exchange gains of $82 miition (2005 - losses of $2 million) as disclosed in note 7 o the accounts.

v The calculation of diluted EPS includes adjustments for the movemants in fair valua an the embadded derivative within the convertible bond subject to the limitation
under IAS 33 - Earnings per share, that this cannot thereby create a figure exceeding basic EPS.
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Consolidated balance sheet
at 30 September

2005
2006 Restated'
Note Sm 3m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 113 100
Intangible assets 11 328 319
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,463 1,339
Investment in associate and joint venture 13 13 91
Financial assets:
- Available for sale financial assets 14 98 15
— Other receivables 14 19 22
Employee benefits 15 6 12
2,140 1,898
Current assets
Inventories 16 135 110
Trade and other receivables 17 396 147
Assets held for sale 18 6 16
Tax recoverable 3 4
Cash and cash equivalents 32 61 1
601 288
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft repayable on demand 32 (18} {1)
Trade and other payables 39 (209} (133)
Financial liabilities:
— Interest bearing loans and borrowings 22 - (86)
— Derivative financial instruments 23 @ -
Tax payable (91) {28}
(322) (248)
Net current assets 279 40
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefits 15 7 (1)
Financial liabilities:
- Interest bearing loans and borrowings 20 {499) (506)
-~ Derivative financial instruments 21 (268) (41)
Deferred tax fiabilities 23 (294) (344)
Provisions 24 {39) 42)
(1,107) (934}
Net assets 1,312 1,004
Capital and reserves —
Called up share capital 28 143 142
Share premium account 28 26 12
Other reserves 28 84 88
Retained earnings 28 836 596
Attributable to equity shareholders of Lonmin Ple 28 1,089 838
Attributable to minority interest 28 223 166
Total equity 28 1,312 1,004
Footnota:

i 2005 has been restated under IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, following the finalisation of the fair values arising upon the acquisition of Southern Platinum

Carporation (note 33).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 November 2006 and were signed on its behalf by:

Sir John Craven Chairman J N Robinson Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 September

2006 2005
Note $m $m
Profit for the year 43 201
Taxation 7 202 118
Finance income B (12) (11)
Finance expenses 6 240 45
Share of profit after tax of associate and joint venture 13 (19) (3)
Depreciation and amortisation 81 67
Change in inventories (25) (30)
Change in frade and other receivables (249) (22)
Change in trade and other payables 74 5
Change in provisions (2) 3
Profit on sale of assets held for sale 4 (12} -
Other non cash charges 13 4
Cash flow from consolidated operations 722 377
Dividend from associate - 2
Cash flow from operations 722 379
Interest received 1 2
Interest paid (32) (23)
Tax paid (185) (79)
Cash flow from operating activities 506 279
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries {net of cash acquired) (14) {197)
Purchase of intangible asset (21) (27}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (161) (178)
Proceeds from available for sale financial assets - 3
Purchase of available for sale financial assets (36) 2)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 28 -
Cash used in investing activities {204) {401)
Cash flow from financing activities
Equity dividends paid to Lonmin shareholders (124) (102}
Dividends paid to minority (62) (27}
Proceeds from current borrowings - 85
Repayment of current borrowings (86) -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 288 204
Repayment of non-current borrowings (296) (26)
Finance costs - (6)
Issue of ordinary share capital 15 5]
Cash used in financing activities {265) 134
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 37 12
Opening cash and cash equivalents 32 10 2)
Effect of exchange rate changes (4) —
Closing cash and cash equivalents 32 43 10
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Notes to the accounts

1 Statement on accounting policies
Basis of preparation
Lonmin Pl (the “Company”) is a company incorparated in the UK.

The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*Adopted IFRSs”). The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial
statements in accordance with UK GAAP; these are presented on pages 76 to 83. The parent company financial statements
present iniormation about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
group financiat statements and in preparing an opening IFAS balance sheet at 1 October 2004 for the purposes of the transition to
Adopted IFRSs.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value: derivative financial instruments, financial instruments classified as fair value through the profit or loss or as available-for-
sale. Non-current assets and disposai groups held for sale are stated at the lower of previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The Group is preparing its financial statements in accordance with Adopted IFRS for the first time and these statements are,
therefore, covered by IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. In general, for the first-time adoption
of IFASs, the standards are applied retrospectively. However, there are a number of optional exemptions avaitable under IFRS 1,
First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, from full retrospective application. The Group's approach to
these exemptions is detailed below:

I. Business combinations which occurred prior to the transition date of 1 October 2004 have not been restated in accordance with
IFRS 3, Business Combinations. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of businesses acquired before 1 October 1998 has been
charged directly to reserves. Goodwill ariging on the acquisition of a business acquired after 1 Qctober 1998 and before 1
October 2004 is included in the balance sheet at original cost, less accumulated amortisation and any provisions for impairment
as at 30 September 2004.

1. Cumulative translation differences for foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the transition date. Any gains or losses on the
subsequent disposal of such operations will not include translation differences arising before the transition date.

IIl. The net book value of assets which had been revalued prior to the transition date have been treated as deemed cost at that
date.

IV. IFRS 2, Share Based Payment, has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 Novernber 2002 that remained
unvested as at 1 January 2005.

IFRS 1 allows first-time adopters an exemption from providing comparative information under 1AS 32 Financial Instruments
disclosure and presentation and 1AS 39 Financial Instruments recognition and measuremant. The Group has restated comparatives
on financial instruments in accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39 in order to benefit the user of the accounts and has not taken
advantage of the exemption.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company {its
subsidiaries) and incorporate the restilts of its share of associates and jointly controlled entities using the equity method of
accounting and jointly controlled assets and operations using proportional consolidation.

Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financiat and operating policies of an entity in order to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made tc the financial statements of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has an equity interest and over which it has the ability to exercise significant influence.
Investments in associates are carried at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate,
less any impairment in value. The income statement reflects the Group's share of the results of operations after tax of the associate
{the equity method).
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Notes to the accounts
continued

1 Statement on accounting policies continued

Joint ventures

The Group undertakes a number of business activities through joint ventures. Joint ventures are established through contractual
arrangements that require the unanimous consent of each of the venturers regarding the strategic financial and operating poficies of
the venture {joint control). The Group's joint ventures are of two types:

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly cantrolled entity is an entity in which the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring
unanimaus consent for strategic financial and operating decisions. Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity
methad. The censolidated financiat statements include the Group's share of the income and expenses after tax of the jointly
controlled entity.

Jointly controlled assets and operations

A jointly controlled asset of operation is a joint venture in which the Group has certain contractual arrangements with other
participants to engage in joint activities that do not create an entity carrying on a trade or business of its awn. A jointly controlled
asset is a joint venture in which the venturers have joint control over the assets contributed or acquired for the purpose of the joint
venture. The Group includes its share of the assets, liabilities and cash flows in such joint arrangements, measured in accordance
with the terms of each arrangement.

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environmert in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in US
Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions. Nen-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the historic rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the closing exchange rate.

Revenue

Revenue is derived from the sale of goods and is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, after deducting
discounts, volume rebates, value added tax and other sales taxes. A sale is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have passed. This is when title and insurance risk have passed to the customer, and the goods have been delivered to a
contractually agreed locatfon.

Revenue derived from the sale of part processed stocks is based on the payable metal sold.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principle cutstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.
Dividend income from investrments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights 1o receive payment have been established.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised in respect of goods and services received.

Research and development
Research expenditure is charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.

Development expenditure which meets the recognition criteria for an intangible asset under IAS 38 Intangible Assets, is capitalised
and then amortised over the useful economic life of the developed asset, otherwise it is charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred on individual projects is capitalised when the future economic benefit of the project
can reasonably be regarded as assured. These costs are amartised from the point at which production capability commences over
their expected useful lives or the life of mine, if shorter, to residual value.

Exploration costs are expensed if they relate to expenditure necessary to delineate and quantify the reserves and resources
required to replace those extracted or in the case of expansion and new opportunities, until a probable reserve has been defined
and confirmed by a Competent Person. At that point, further costs are capitalised and amortised over their expected useful lives or
the remaining life of mine, if shorter, to residual value.
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1 Statement on accounting policies continued

Share-based payment

The cost of providing equity-settlied and cash-settled share-based payments to employees is charged to the income staternent over
the vesting period of the related share options or share allocations. The cost is based on the fair value of the options or shares
allocated and the number of awards expected to vest. The fair value of each option or share is determined using either a Black-
Scholes option pricing mode! or a Monte Carlo projection model, depending on the type of the award. Market related performance
conditions are reflected in the fair value of the share, Non market related performance conditions are allowed for using a separate
assurmption about the number of awards expected to vest; the final charge made reflects the numbers actually vested on the basis
that market conditions are met.

Business combinations and goodwill

At the date of acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking, associate or joint venture fair values are attributed to the acquired identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Provisional fair values are finalised within twelve months of the acquisition date, Goodwil,
which represents the difference between the fair value of the purchase consideration and the acquired interest in the fair values of
those net assets, is capitalised and is subject to annual impairment testing in accordance with the policy set out below. Any
negative goodwill is credited to the income statement in the year of acquisition. f an undertaking is subseguently sold, the amount
of goodwill carried on the balance sheet at the date of disposal, is charged to the income statement in the pericd of disposal as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill in respect of subsidiaries and joint ventures is included within intangible fixed assets. Goodwill relating to associates is
included within the carrying vaiue of the associate.

Goaodwill that was eliminated against reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1898 has not been reinstated and will not be included in
determining any profit or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately or from a business acquisition are capitalised at cost and fair value respectively. Where
amortisation is charged on these assets, the expense is taken to the income statement through operating costs.

Amortisation of mineral rights is provided on a units of production basis cver the remaining life of mine to residual value (20 to 40
years).

Other intangibles are amortised over their useful economic lives subject to a maximum of 20 years.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is included in the batance sheet at cost, fess accumulated depreciation and any provisions for
impairment,

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line or units of production basis, as appropriate over their expected useful lives or the
remaining life of mine, if shorter, to residual value. The life of mine is based on proven and protzatle reserves. The expected useful
lives of the major categories of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Method Rate
Shafts and underground Units of production 2.5%-5.0% per annum__ (20-40 years)
Metallurgical Straight line 2.5%-7.1% per annum_ {14-40 years)
Infrastructure Straight line 2.5%-2.9% per annum__ (35-40 years)
Other plant and equipment Straight line 2.5%-50.0% per annum  (2-40 years)

No depreciation is provided on surface mining land which has a continuing value and capital work in progress.
Residual values and useful lives are re-assessed annually and if necessary changes are accounted for prospectively.

Impairment of tangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ({CGLU') to which the asset belangs. An
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.
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1 Statement on accounting policies continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less ¢osts to sell and value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment is recognised immediately as an expense.

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment is recognised as income
immediately.

Impairment of goodwill

Gooedwill arising on business combinations is allocated to the group of CGUs that are expeciad to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitered by the Group's board of directors for internal
management purposes. The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually on a consistent date during each financial year, or when such events or ¢changes in circumstances indicate that
it may be impaired.

Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income staterment. Impairments of goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

Borrowing costs
Property, plant and equipment includes directly attributable borrowing costs which are capitalised during the period of construction.

Leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised and included in property, plant and eguipment at the lower of the present value of
the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased asset as determined at the inception of the lease. The obligations
relating to finance leases, net of finance charges in respect of future periods, are included within bank loans and other borrowings,
with the amount payable within 12 months included in bank overdrafts and loans within short term liabilities. The interest element of
the rental obligation is allocated to accounting periods during the lease term to reflect the constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the obligation for each accounting period. Rentals under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis.

Assets held for sale

When an asset’s carrying value will be recovered principally through a sale transaction, to take place within twelve months of the
balance sheet date, rather than through continuing use it is classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying value and
fair value less costs to sell. No depreciation is charged in respect of non-current assets classified as held for sale.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (which includes the applicable proportion of production overheads) and net realisable
vatue. Platinum Group Metals (PGMs) stock is valued by alfocating caosts to platinum, palladium and rhodium stock based on the
annual cost of production, less net realisable value from by-products, apportioned according to the quantities of each of the three
main metals produced.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand and current balances with banks and similar institutions, which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and have an original maturity
of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as the bank overdraft is repayable on demand and forms an integral part of the
Group's cash management.
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1 Statement on accounting policies continued

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes overseas in accordance with |ocal regulations. The costs of these
schemes are charged to the income statement as incurred.

The Group operates two types of pension ‘schemes' in the United Kingdom. Firstly, there is a defined benefit retirement scheme for
which the amount recognised in the balance sheet in respect of net assets or liabilities represents the present value of the
obligations offset by the fair value of the plan assets. The cost of providing for the scheme is charged to the income statement over
the periods refating to the employees’ service. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur.
They are recognised outside of the income statement in retained earnings and presented in the statement of recognised income
and expense. This scheme has been closed to new entrants with effect from 6 April 2008. For employees who do not participate in
the above scheme the Group makes payments in respect of pensions directly to the employee, These employees have the option to
invest in a direct contribution scheme which the Group has set up or they may make thair own arrangements.

Amendments to |1AS 18 - Employee Benefits have been adopted early.

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws in force during the periods being
reported upon.

Deferred tax as directed by IAS 12 iIncome Taxes is recognised in respect of certain temporary differences identified at the balance
sheet date. Temporary differences are differences between the carrying amount of the Group's assets and liabilities and their tax
base.

Deferred tax liabilities are offset against deferred tax assets within the same taxable entity or qualifying local tax group where the
entities have the right to settle current tax liabilities net. Any remaining deferred tax asset is recognised only when, on the basis of
all available evidence, it can be regarded as probable that there will be suitable taxable profits, within the same jurisdiction, in the
foreseeable future against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on subsidiaries, jointly controlted entities and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and i is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Rehabilitation costs

Rehabilitation costs are provided in fuil based on estimates of the future costs to be incurred, calculated on a discounted basis. As
the provision is recognised, it is either capitalised as part of the cost of the related mine or written off to the income statement if
utilised within one year. Where costs are capitalised the impact of such costs on the income statement is spread over the life of
mine through the accretion of the discount of the provision and the depreciation over a units of production basis of the increased
costs of the mining assets.

Provisions
Provision is made when an obligation exists for a future liability in respect of a past event and where the amount of the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Financial instruments
The Group's principal financial instruments {other than derivatives) comprise bank loans, listed convertible bonds, investments, cash
and short-term deposits.

Bank loans are recorded at amortised cost, net of transaction costs incurred, and are adjusted to amortise transaction costs over
the term of the loan.
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1 Statement on accounting policies continued

The Group has raised debt through the issue of convertible bonds. These bonds incorporate two key elements. Firstly, there is the
financial liability in respect of the debt element. This is measured at net present value of future cash flows. Secondly, the bonds
allow for conversion to equity at the option of the bond holder. This represents an equity embedded derivative. However, as the
Group retains a cash settlement option this equity conversion feature is shown as a financial liability if the fair value is greater than
the net present value of the debt. This embedded derivative is fair valued at each period end with changes in the fair value being
taken through the income statement.

Investments are classified into loans and receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the investments were acquired, the nature of the investments and whether the investment is quoted or not. The
classification of investments is determined at initial recognition. Investments are initially recognised at fair value, including acquisition
costs. After initial recognition, investments classified as available-for-sale continue to be measured at fair value with gains or losses
recognised directly in equity. On disposal or impairment of the investments, the gains or losses in equity are recycled into the
income statement. Loans and receivables and investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortised cost and gains or
losses are recognised in the income statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Other derivative financial instruments are used by the Group to manage exposure o market risks from treasury operations and
commodity price risks on by-products. The principal derivative instruments used are foreign currency swaps, interest rate swaps,
forward foreign exchange contracts and forward price agreements on by-products. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at fair value and then remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates to fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Hedging derivatives are classified on inception as fair value
hedges or cash flow hedges.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is recognised directly in equity if
effective. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income staterment, to the extent that the
change in value of the hedging instrument is greater than the change in value of the hedged item.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Segmentat reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in either providing products or services (business
segment), or is providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment) which is subject to
risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Significant judgements

The directors consider the carrying value of goodwill, intangibles and property, plant and equipment to be recoverable. These have
been assessed for impairment based on value in use. Assessment of value in use has been based on production continuing at
current or higher levels and PGM prices being maintained in-line with current market expectations.

The Group holds a 22% interest in Platmin Limited but has accounted for the entity as an available for sale asset as the Group has
no representation on the Board of Platmin Limited and is unable to exert significant influence on the company.
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1 Statement on accounting policies continued

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 30 September

2006 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements:

* [FRS 6 - Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources includes rules for accounting for expenses related to the
exploration and evaluation of mineral resources such as minerals, oil, natural gas and similar finite resources before the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the rescurce can be demonstrated. IFRS 6 does not mandate an accounting
policy specific to exploration and evaluation expenses. Instead, it sets forth the basic conditions under which the company
preparing the accounts selects an accounting method. Furthermore, IFRS 6 prescribes that impairment tests pursuant 1o I1AS 36
are carried out on exploration and evaluation assets. Implementation of this standard is not expected to have a material impact
on the Group's results, assets or liabilities.

* IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures and the Amendment to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital
Disclosures reguires extensive disclosures about the significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial position and
performance, and qualitative and quantitative disclosures on the nature and extent of risks. IFRS 7 and amended IAS1, which
become mandatory for the Group's 2007 financial statements, will require additicnal disclosures with respect to the Group's
financial instruments and share capital.

« Amendment to IAS 39 and IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts. Implementation of this standard is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group's results, assets or habilities.

+ |FRIC 4 - Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease provides guidance on determining whether arrangements which
convey the right to use an asset in return for a series of payments should be accounted for in accordance with IAS 7 — Leases.
The potential impact of imptementation of this Interpretation has not been determined.

* [FRIC 5 - Rights to interasts arising from decommissioning, restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds addresses the
issues of how a contributor to such a fund should account for interast in the fund and how obligations to make additional
contributions should be accounted for. Implementation of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
results, assets or liabilities.

+ |FRIC 9 - Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives requires that a reassessrnent of whether embedded derivatives should be
separated from the underlying host contract should be made only when there are changes to the contract. IFRIC 9, which
becomes mandatory for the Group's 2007 financial statements, is not expected to have any impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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2 Segmental analysis

2006
Platinum Corporate Exploration Total
Analysis by business group Sm $m $m $m
Revenue — external sales 1,855 - - 1,855
Operating profit 877 {19) {16) 842
Segment total assets 2,596 145 - 2,71
Segment tctal liabilities {926) (503) - {1,429)
Capital expenditure' 232 1 - 233
Depreciation and amortisation 81 - - 81
2005
Flatinum Corporate Exploration Total
Analysis by business group Sm $m $m $m
Revenue - external sales 1,128 - - 1,128
Operating profit 385 (24) (11) 350
Segment tota! assets 2,051 135 - 2,186
Segment total liabilities (672) (510 - (1,182)
Capital expenditure' 210 - - 210
Depreciation and amortisation 67 - - 67
2006
South Africa UK Other Total
Analysis by geographical location $m $m $m $m
Revenue — external sales 1,855 - - 1,855
Segment total assets 2 594 145 2 2.7
Capital expenditure’ 232 1 - 233
2005
South Africa UK Other Total
Analysis by geographical location $m $m $m $m
Revenue — external sales 1,128 - - 1,128
Segment total assets 2,048 i35 3 2,186
Capital expenditure' 210 - - 210
Footnote:

i Capital expenditure includes additions to ptant, property and eguipment (inciuding capitalised interest), intangible assets and goodwill in accordance with I1AS14 -
Segrnent reporting.

Revenue by destination is analysed by geographical area below:

2006 2005

$m $m

The Americas 435 368
Asia 518 351
Europe 291 210
South Africa 602 191
Zimbabwe 9 8
1,855 1,128
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3 Special items

‘Special items’ are those items of financial performance that the Group believes should be separately disclosed on the face of the

income statement to assist in the understanding of the financial performance achieved by the Group.

2006 2005
$m $m

EBITDA
- Sale of houses 12 -
~ Reorganisation - (12)
Finance costs
- Galculation of capitalised interest 2 -
— Movement in fair value of embedded derivative (227) (8}
Special loss before taxation (124) (20)
Taxation on above items (note 7) 4 2
Tax rate change - effect on opening deferred tax balance - i
Exchange on tax balances {note 7) 82 2
Special loss before minority interest (116) )]
Minority interest (16) (1)
Special loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of Lonmin Plc (132) (10)

— Sale of houses: we currently accommodate a substantial number of our employees in hostels and married quarters with the
remainder living in their homes. We are selling houses to employees to encourage home-ownership. Any profits or losses from

such sales at fair vajue are not deemed to represent underlying earnings.

- Capitalised interest includes an adjustment to the interest capitalised in prior years of $21 milion.

< The convertible bond contains an embedded derivative which is held at fair value. Due to the cash settlement option the bond is
classified within non-current liabilities and movements in fair value are taken 1o the income statement. Fluctuations in fair value

are mainly due to changes in share price.

- The Group holds both current and deferred tax balances in Rand which is not the functional currency of the Group. Given the
volatility of the Rand to US$ exchange rate the revaluation of such tax balances can cause significant variations in the tax charge
and therefore profitability. Conseguently the directors feel that such foreign exchange impacts should be treated as special.
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4 Group operating profit
Group operating profit is arrived at as follows:

2006 2006
$m $m
Revenue 1,855 1,128
Cost of sales (949} (751)
Gross profit 906 377
Administration expenses 46) (42)
Exploration (14) (1)
Other operating (expense)/income (4) 26
Group operating profit 842 350
Group operating profit is stated after charging:
2006 2005
$m $m
Cperating lease charges - land and buildings 1 2
Depreciation charge - owned tangible assets 69 60
Amortisation charge - intangible assets 12 7
Profit on sale of assets held for sale 12 -
Faoreign exchange losses 2 -
Fees payable to KPMG Audit Plc and its associates are analysed as follows:
2006 2005
UK Ovarseas Total UK Overseas Tota!
$m &m $m $m $m $m
Audit remuneration
— Final 0.5 0.4 0.9 0.3 0.4 0.7
— Interim 01 0.1 0.2 01 0.1 0.2
Accounting advice 0.1 01 0.2 - Q. 0a
Tax advice - 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.3
IFRS advice 0.2 - 0.2 01 — 0.1
Sustainability - 01 01 - - -
US GAAP and related advice 0.1 - 0.1 - - —
1.0 1.0 2.0 0.6 0.8 1.4
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5 Employees
The average number of employees and directors during the year was as foliows:

2006 2005
No. No.
South Africa 23,144 22,370
Europe 36 32
23,180 22,402

The aggregate payroll costs of employees and key management were as follows:
2006 20086
Employee costs $m $m
Wages and salaries 331 261
Social security costs 25 29
Other pension costs M 23
Share based payments 9 4
406 317
2006 2005
Key management compensation $m $m
Short-term employee benefits 8 8
Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payments 1 2
10 1h

The key management compensation analysed above represents amounts in respect of the Chief Executive Committee (CEC) which
comprises the three executive directors and five other senior managers.

The Sterling equivatents of total directors’ emoeluments and emoluments of the highest paid director together with full details of
directors' remuneration, pensions and benefits in kind are given in the Remuneration Committee report on pages 15 to 30.
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6 Net finance costs

2006 2005
$m Sm

Finance income: 12 11
Interest receivable 2 2
Return on defined benefit pension scheme assets 8 8
Movement in fair value of non-current other recaivables 2 1
Finance expenses: (34) (37)
On bank loans and overdrafts {35) (24)
Bank fees (3) (2)
Capitalised interest 16 1
Discounting on provisions 2 @
Unwind of discounting on convertible bond - {1
Interest cost of defined benelit pension scheme liabilities (6} (7)
Exchange differences on net debt {4} (2)
Special items {note 3 (206} (8)
Prior years capitalised interest 2 -
Mavement in fair values of derivative financial instruments (227} (8)
Total finance expenses {240} {45)
Net finance costs (228} (34)
7 Taxation

2008 2005

$m Sm
United Kingdom:
Current tax expense at 30% (2005 — 30%) 122 53
Less amount of the benefit arising from double tax relief available (122) (53}
Total UK tax expense = —
Overseas:
Current tax expense at 29% {2005 - 29%) excluding special tems 259 99
Corporate {ax expense 217 a3
Tax on dividends remitted 43 19
Prior year items {1) (1)
Deferred tax expense: 21 30
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 21]] 30 |
Special items {note 3 {78} (11}
Deferred tax on sale of houses 4 -
Tax on regrganisation costs - 2
Exchange on current taxation (15) (3)
Change in South African corporate tax rate to 29% (from 1 Ocicber 2004) - {11)
Exchange on deferred taxation (67) 5
Actual tax charge 202 118
Tax charge excluding special items (note 3) 280 129
Actual tax rate 32% 37%
Effective tax rate excluding special items {note 3) 34% 38%
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7 Taxation continued
A reconciliation of the standard tax charge 10 the tax charge was as follows:

2006 2005

% Sm % 3m
Tax charge at standard tax rate 29 184 29 93
Overseas taxes on dividends remitted by subsidiary companies 7 43 6 19
Change in South African corporate tax rate - - (23 (11
Exchange on current and deferred tax (13) {82) 1 2
Tax effect of movemenits in the fair values of financial instruments 10 66 1 2
Tax effect of capitalised interest adjustment {1} (6) - -
Tax effect of other timing differences - {3) 3 13
Actual tax charge 32 202 37 118

The Group's primary operations are based in South Africa. Therefore, the relevant standard tax rate for the Group was the South
African statutory tax rate of 29% (2005 — 29%). The secondary tax rate on dividends remitted by South African companies was
12.5% {2005 — 12.5%).

8 Earnings per share
Earnings per share have been calculated on the profit attributable to equity shareholders amounting to $313 milion (2005 — $158
million} using a weighted average number of 142,594,539 ordinary shares in issue (2006 - 141,727,124 ordinary shares).

Diluted earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue adjusted by dilutive outstanding
share options and shares issuable on conversion of the convertible bonds. Shares issuable on conversion of the convertible bonds
were anti-dilutive in the current and prior year and have been excluded from diluted earnings per share in accordance with 1AS 33 ~
Earnings Per Share.

2006 2005
Profit for Per share Profit for Per share
the year Number of amount the year Number of amount
$m shares cents $m shares cents
Basic EPS 313 142,594,539 2195 158 141,727,124 111.5
Share option schemes - 2,021,331 {3.1) — 290,375 (0.2)
Dituted EPS 313 144,615,870 216.4 158 142,017,499 111.3
2006 2005
Profit for Per share Profit for Per share
the year Number of amount the year Number of amount
m shares cents $m shares cents
Underlying EPS 445 142,594,539 3121 168  141,727.124 118.5
Share option schemes - 2,021,331 (4.4} — 290,375 {0.2)
Diluted underlying EPS 445 144,615,870 307.7 1868 142,017,499 118.3

Underlying earnings per share have been presented as the Directors consider it to give a fairer reflection of the underlying results of
the business. Underlying earnings per share are basad on the profit attributable to equity shareholders adjusted to exclude special
itemns {as defined in note 3) as follows:

2006 2005
Profit for Per share Profit for Per share
the year Number of amount the vear Nurmber of amount
Sm shares cents B shares cents
Basic EPS 313 142,594,539 219.5 168  141,727124 111.5
Special items {note 3) 132 - 92.6 10 - 7.0
Underlying EPS 445 142,594,539 3121 168 141,727,124 118.5
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9 Dividends
2006 2005
Cents per Cents per
$m share $m share
Pricr year final dividend, paid in the year 60 42.0 60 42.0
Interim dividend, paid in the year 64 45.0 42 30.0
Total dividend paid in the year 124 87.0 102 72.0
Interim dividend, paid in the year 45.0 30.0
Proposed final dividend for the year 55.0 42.0
Total dividend in respect of the year 100.0 72.0
10 Goodwill
2006 2005
Restated
Sm $m
At 1 October 100 -
Purchase of Messina minarities (note 33) 13 -
Reassessment of fair values (note 33) - 100
At 30 September 113 100
Footngate:

i 2005 has been restated under IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, foltowing the finalisation of the fair values arising upon the acquisition of Southern Platinum
Corporation (see note 33)-

As at 30 September 2005 goodwill comprised:

- $40 million arising on the finalisation of the fair values of 9.11% of the assets and liabilities of Eastern Platinum Limited and
Western Platinum Limited

— $60 million arising on the finalisation of the fair values of the assets and liabilities of Southern Platinum Corperation (including
Messina Platinum Mines Limited) (note 33).

In February 2006 the Group acquired the remaining minority interest in Messina Platinum Mines Limited for a consideration
of $13 million. This represented 8.5% of the share capital of which the Group's share of net assets acquired was gnit. The
consideration paid was based upon the future cash generation expected and consequently the Group has capitalised this
investment as goodwill.

Impairment reviews have been carried out based on value in use assuming that production levels continue at the expected level and
that metal prices remain at a value that is in-line with market expectations.

11 Intangible assets

2006 205
Mireral rights Total
Mineral rights Other Total Restated Other Restated'
Sm Sm Sm $m $m Sm
Cost:
At 1 October 337 26 363 284 - 284
On acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) - - - 53 - 53
Additions - 21 21 - 26 26
At 30 September 337 47 384 337 26 363
Arnortisation:
At 1 October 44 - 44 37 - 37
Charge for the year 9 3 12 7 - 7
At 30 September 53 3 56 44 - 44
Net book value:
At 30 September 284 44 328 293 26 319
Foatnote;

i 2005 has been restated under IFRS 3 — Business Combinations. following the finalisation of the falr values arising upon the acquisition of Southern Platinum
Corporation (see note 33).
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11 Intangible assets continued

Additions during the year for other intangible assets were capitalised software development costs. At 30 September 2006 the net
book value of other intangible assets represented $29 million capitalised software development costs and $15 milion Messina
concentrate off-take contract.

12 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Shafts and Capital work planct)?:c;
Short term underground Metallurgical  Infrastructure in progress equipment Total
Sm $m Sm $Sm Sm $m Sm
Cost:
At 1 October 2005 - 633 508 207 285 a2 1,715
Additions 1 167 (9) 38 - 2 199
Transfer to assets held for sale — - - (6} - - (B}
Transfers — 183 2 - (183) 2) -
At 30 September 2006 1 983 501 239 102 82 1,908
Depreciation:
At 1 Ociober 2005 - 190 100 63 - 23 376
Charge for the year - 32 15 21 - 1 69
At 30 September 2006 - 222 15 84 - 24 445
Net book value:
At 30 September 2006 1 761 386 155 102 58 1,463
Shafts and Qther
underground Capital work plant and Total
Restated' Metallurgical infrastructure in progress equipment Restated
Sm Sm Sm $m gm $m
Cost: - B i
At 1 October 2004 461 439 197 203 68 1369
On acquisition of subsidiaries 137 3 9 - N 178
Additions 35 38 17 82 12 184
Transfer 1o assets held for sale - — (16) - - (16}
At 30 September 2005 633 508 207 285 82 1,715
Depreciation:
At 1 October 2004 142 76 52 — 17 287
On acquisition of subsidiaries 21 8 - = - 29
Charge for the year 27 16 11 - 6 60
At 30 September 2005 190 100 683 - 23 376
Net book value:
At 30 September 2005 443 408 144 285 59 1,339
At 30 September 2004 319 363 145 203 52 1,082
Footnote:

I 2005 has been restated under IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, following the finalisation of the fair values arising upon the acquisition of Southern Platinum
Corporation (note 33).

Inciuded in other plant and equipment are leased assets with a cost of $nil (2005 - $8 million) and a net book value of $nil
{2005 ~ $nil).

Included in shafts and underground are leased assets with a cost of $nil (2005 - $1 million) and a net book value of $nil
{2005 ~ $1million).

Cost of property, plant and equipment included $110 million (2005 ~ $73 million) in respect of capitalised interest. Interest
capitafised during 2006 amounted to $16 million {2005 — $1 miillion} at a rate of 5%. A further $21 million was capitalised in the year
refating to an adjiustment 10 amounts capitalised in prior years {see note 3). In accordance with the Group accounting policies no
depreciation has been provided on surface mining land having a book value of $13 million {2005 — $13 million).
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Notes {o the accounts
continued

13 Investment in associate and joint venture

Non- Non-
Currant current Total Current curréant Total
assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities Revenue Expenses Profit
2006 Ownership $m $m $m $m $m $m $m Sm $m
Incwala (associate) 24% 11 110 121 - (24) (24) 15 3) 12
Pandora {joint venture) 43% 10 - 10 - - - 18 (1) 7
21 10 131 - (24) (24) 33 {(14) 19
Non- Non-
Current currant Total Current current Total

assets assats assets liahilities liabilities liabilities Revenue  Expenses Profit
2005 Ownership sm $m $m $m Em Sm $m $m m
Incwata (associate) 24% 1 108 109 - (24) {(24) 3] (3} 3
Pandora {joint venture) 43% - - - - - - 3 (3) -
1 108 109 - (24} (24 9 (6) 3

Amaounts recognised by the Group in respect of the associate and joint veniure comprised:

2006 2005
Associate Joint venture Total Associate Joint venture Total
Sm $m $m $m $m $m
Share of net gssets 97 10 107 85 - 85
Goodwill 6 - 6 6 - 6
103 10 113 * - 91
14 Financial assets
Available Other

for sale recaivables Total
$m Sm &m
At 1 Qctober 2005 15 22 37
Additions 36 - 36
Movement in fair valug 46 2 48
Exchange differences 1 &) @
At 30 September 2006 93 19 117

Financial assets are held at fair value using the market price where available. Where no market valug is avaitable the carrying value
of net assets less impairment is used.

Available for sale financial assets includes a 22% shargholding in Platmin Limited. This has not been treated as an associate as in
the opinion of the directors the Group does not exert, or have the ability to exert, significant influence over the Company.

Other receivables at 30 September 2006 represented loans advanced to feliow investors in Incwala Resources (Pty) Limited in
which the Group holds a 24% interest. These loans expire between three and five years.

2006 2005
$m $m
Listed investments 84 -

Listed investments include a 22% sharehclding in Platmin Limited which listed on the AIM on 10 August 2006.
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15 Employee benefits

Non-current assets

The Group operates a number of funded pension schemes in the United Kingdom and overseas. The total pensicn cost for the
Group was $40 million (2005 - $23 million), $39 million of which related to overseas schemes (2005 - $22 million). The overseas
schemes were all defined contribution plans and in the UK there was both a defined benefit scheme, the Lonmin Superannuation
Scheme {the LSS scheme) and a defined contribution scheme. There were no accrued obligations under defined contribution plans.

The LSS Scheme
For the LSS scheme the actuarial valuation was conducted on 30 September 2006 using the following major assumptions:

Discount rate 5.0% per annum (2005 — 5.00% per annum)
nflation assumptions 3.0% perannum (2005 — 2.75% per annum)
Rate of increase in salaries 3.5% per annum {2005 — 3.25% per annum)
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.0% per annum (2005 — 2.75% per annum)
Contribution rate in the year 25.0% per annum {2005 - 25.0% per annum)
Expected future contribution rate 40.8% per annum {2005 - 25,0% per annum)

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to
the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

For its UK pension arrangements the Group has, for the purpose of calculating its liabilities as at 30 September 2006 used PA 92
¢2010 tables based on year of birth (as published by the Institute of Actuaries) for pre-retirement mortality (2005 — PA 92 ¢2010) and
PA 92 c2020 for post-retirement mortality (2005 — PA 92 c2020).

The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant
change before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections over
long pericds and thus inherently uncertain, are detailed in the table below:

2006 2005
Expacted return Expecied return
% $m % $m
Insurance policies 5.0 65 5.0 61
Equities 7.6 38 7.5 35
Bonds 4.4 44 4.3 a0
Total market value of assets 147 136
Unrecognised assets (5} —
Value of plan assets 142 136
Fair value of scheme liahilities (136) (124)
Net pension asset 6 12
The net pension asset shown above has been included in the primary statements.
An analysis of the amounis that have been charged to cperating profit were as follows:
2006 2005
sm sm
Current service cost (1) (1)
Total operating charge (1 (1)
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Notes to the accounts
continued

15 Pension costs continued
An analysis of the amounts that have been charged to interest were as follows:

2006 2005
$m $m
Expected return on pension scheme assets 8 7
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (6) (B}
Net return 2 1

An analysis of the amounts that has been recognised in the statement of recognised income and expenses (SORIE) were

as follows:
2006 2005
$m sm
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 2 9
Unrecognised asset (5) -
Experience gains arising on scheme fabilities 1 1
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities (increase to mortality assumption} {4} 3
Actuarial {loss)/prafit recognised in the SORIE {6) 7

When setting the overall expected rate of return on plan assets, historical markets are studied and long-term historical relationships
batween equities and bonds are preserved. This is consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with
higher volatility generate a greater return over time. Current market factors such as inflation and interest rates are evaluated before
expected return assumptions are determined for each asset class. The overall expected return is established with proper
consideration of diversification and rebalancing. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to check they are reasonable and
appropriate.

Changes in the fair value of pian assets were as follows:

$m
Vajue of plan assets at 1 October 2004 127
Expected return on assets 7
Actuarial gain 9
Employer contribution i
Exchange loss 2)
Benefits paid and expenses {6)
Value of plan assets at 30 September 2005 136
Expected return on assets 8
Actuarial gain 2
Employer contribution 1
Exchange gain 6
Benefits paid and expenses (6)
Unrecognised assels {5)
Value of plan assets at 30 September 2006 142
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15 Pension costs continued
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations before allocation to equity accounted invesiments were as follows:

$m
Defined benefit obligations at 1 October 2004 122
Service cost 1
Interest cost 6
Exchange loss (2)
Actuarial losses 3
Benefits paid (6)
Defined benefit obligations at 30 September 2005 124
Service cost 1
Interest cost 6
Exchange gain 7
Actuarial losses 4
Bengfits paid {6}
Defined benefit obligations at 30 September 2006 136
An analysis of the history of experience gains and losses was as follows:
2006 2005
Sm $m
Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets 2 9
Experience gains on scheme liabilities - 1
Total amount recognised in SORIE 7 6
Non-current liabilities
2006 2005
Sm $m
Cash settled share options 4 (1)
Social security on share options (3) -
(7 (1)
16 Inventories
2008 2008
$m Sm
Raw materials and consumables M 42
Work in progress 54 49
Finished goods 40 19
135 110

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to $880 milion (2005 — $691 million).
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Notes to the accounts
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17 Trade and other receivables

2006 2005
$m $m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 362 118
Other receivables 28 23
Prepayments and accrued income 4 5
Loans receivable 2 1
396 147
18 Assets held for sale
2006 2005
Sm $m
AL 1 October 16 -
Disposals (16) -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 6 16
At 30 September 6 16

Assets held for sale represent houses the Group is selling to employees, within twelve months of the balance sheet date, to
encourage home-ownership. These assets are held in the Platinum business segment and the South African geographical region.

19 Trade and other payables

2006 2005
$m $m
Trade payables 84 32
Ingirect taxation and social security 1 1
Other payables 38 9
Accruals 86 84
209 133

20 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
2006 2005
Sm $m

Long-term loans:

US Doilar 3.75% convertible bonds dug 2008 - unsecured 21 210
Bank loans — unsecured 288 295
Finance lease - secured - 1
499 506

The unsecured convertible honds are shown at the net present value of future cash flows after deducting issue expenses of

$2 miliion (2005 — $3 million) in accordance with IAS 23 - Borrowing costs. The amount to be repaid on the bonds is $215.8 miltion
(see note 34 for details of conversion). The unsecured bank loans are drawn in USS and bear interest at LIBOR + 1% and are shown
after deducting issue expenseas of $nil (2005 - $1 million).
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20 Interest bearing loans and borrowings continued
The loans are repayable over the following periods:

2006 2005
Sm $m

Between one and two years:
Secured - 1
Between two and five years:
Unsecured 398 505
Greater than five years:
Unsecured 101 -

499 506
21 Derivative financial instruments

2006 2005
Cash flow hedges Sm $m
Forward contracts 4) -
Total current derivatives (4) -
The forward contracts expire within twelve months of the balance sheet date and have a nominal value of $27 million.

2006 2005
MNon hadge sm Sm
Derivative embedded in the convertible bond 268 141
Tetal non-current derivatives 268 43

22 Financial risk management

The functionat currency of the parent company and principal entities of the Group is the US Dollar. The Group does not undertake
any trading aciivity in financial instruments. Details of the Group's financial risk management ars described in the Financial Review

on pages 4 and 5.

22a Interest rate risk

Based on contracted maturities the following amounts are exposed to interest rate risk over the future as shown below:

Weighted average

intergst rate 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
% $m $m $m Sm $m m

Assels o
Current o
Other Investments 7.0 8 8 8 8 8
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 61 — - - - -
Liabilities -
Non-current _ L
Loans 54 5M 503 244 187 101 L -
Current
Loans and overdraft 4.9 18 - - - - -
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Notes to the accounts
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22 Financial risk management continued

Non-interest Learing At fixed interest rates At floating interest rates
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m Sm Sm $m $m
Financial liabilities

US Dollar 272 4 211 - 306 594
SA Rand - - - - - 1
272 41 211 - 306 585
2006 2005
Sm sm

The financial liabilities of the Group comprised:
Total borrowings 517 595
Current derivative financial instruments 4 -
Non-current derivative financial instruments 268 41
789 636

Floating rate financial liabilities comprised bank borrowings and overdrafts bearing interest at the applicable inter-bank offer rates or
prime lending rates and finance lease obligations outstanding in South Africa. Included within floating rate financial liabilities in the
prior year were $215.8 million 3.75% convertible bonds due 30 September 2008. The bonds were shown as liabilities at floating
interest rates due to the fact that during Cctober 2003, a two-year floating rate interest swap was entered into in respect of them
with interest calculated on a six-month LIBOR in arrears basis. The interest charged on the bonds in 2005 amounted to $10 million
{2004 - $6 million) representing a loss in 2005 of $2 miliion (2004 — profit of $2 million) as a result of the swap arrangement. The
unsecured convertible bonds are shown after deducting issue expenses of $2 million {2005 — $3 million) in accordance with FAS 23
Borrowing costs. The swap expired on 30 September 2005 with no further contracts entered into to date.

Non-interast bearing At floating interest rates
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m Sm $m
Financial assets

US Dollar 90 8 35 2
SA Rand 19 22 34 12
Sterling - - 2 5
109 30 71 19
2006 2005
Sm $m

The financial assets of the Group comprised:
Cash and short-term deposits 61 1
L.oans receivable 21 23
Available for sale financial assets 98 15
180 49

Non-interest bearing financial assets represented:

- Loans advanced to HDSA consortia and Seed Capital investors following the completion of the Incwala and Eastern Platinum
Limited (EPL} and Western Platinum Limited {WPL) transactions on 30 September 2004. These loans expire between three and
five years from the balance sheet date and some will become interest bearing after three years if they are not repaid.

- Available for sale financial assets excluding monies held in trust to fund future rehabilitation obligations.

Floating rate financial assets comprised mainly bank deposits bearing interest at commercial rates fixed by reference to LIBOR for
Sterling and US Dollar assets, or the applicable inter-bank interest raies for all other financial assets. They also included a short-
term loan advanced following the completion of the Incwala and EPL and WPL transactions and monies held ir trust to fund future
rehabilitation obligations.
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22 Financial risk management continued

22b Currency exposures

Lonmin's operations are based predominantly in South Africa with the vast majority of the income stream arising in US Dollars.
Cash held in South Africa is mainly in US Dollars and is normally remitted on a quarterly basis to the UK. When short-term working
capital facilities are reguired in South Africa these are in US Dollars or South African Rand as appropriate.

The table below shows the extent to which Group companies have monetary assets and hiabilities in currencies other than the
functional currency. Foreign exchange differences on retranslation of such assets and liabitities are taken to the income statement.

Net foreign currency monetary assets

2006 2005
SA Rand Sterling Totat SA Rand Sterling Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Functicnal currency of Group operation: e
US Dollar 53 2 55 33 5 38

The South African Rand net monetary assets included loans receivable, trust funds to finance rehabilitation liahilities and
outstanding finance fease obligations. The Sterling net monetary assets comprised bank deposits held in head office companies.

22c¢c Maturity of financial liabilities

2006 2005
$m $m

In one year or less, or on demand ) ) o - . ___ 86
In more than one year but not more than two years ) o -:)_ 92
In more than two years but not more than five years _ 398 Y
In greater than five years 101 -
499 595

22d Undrawn committed borrowing facilities
The Group’s policy on overall liquidity is to ensure that there are sufficient committed facilities in place which, when combined with
the cash resources available, are sufficient to meet the funding requirements in the foreseeable future,

2006 2005
$m m
Expiring in one year or less 750 875
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - 189
Expiring in more than two years 162 47
912 921
22e Hedging

Forward sales are undertaken where the Board determines that it is in the Group's interest to secure a proportion of future cash
flows. The notional, or contracted, amounts of derivative financial instruments are shown in note 21.
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23 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

2006 2005
Deferred Deferred Nat Deferred Deferred Net
tax assets tax liabilities balance tax assets tax fiabifities balance
$m Sm Sm Sm $m $m
Property, plant and equipment - (2319) (319) - (359) (359)
Share-based payments 10 - 10 2 - 2
Provisions 15 - 15 13 - 13
25 (319) (294) 15 (359) (344)
Movement in temporary differences during the year
At 1 Recognised in Income At 30
QOctober “Exchange Special Recognised September
2005 movements items Undertying in equity 2006
$m $m $m m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment (359} 65 (4) (21) - {319)
Provisions 13 2 — — - 15
Share-based payments 2 - — — 8 10
(344) 67 (4 (21} 8 (294)
At Recognised in Incoms At 30
October Exchange Special Recogrised September
2004 movements items Underlying in equity 2005
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment (332) {5) 11 (33) — (359)
Provisions 10 - - 3 - 13
Share-based payments - - - — 2 2
(322) {5) H (30) 2 (344)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
2006 2005
Sm Sm
Capital losses carried forward 245 231
; Trading and other losses carried forward 33 43
1 Unredeemed capital expenditure 54 50
| Retirement benefit asset 2 @)
| Share based payments 2 9
| 332 321

At 30 September 2008, the Group had an amount of $103 million (2005 - $103 million} of surplus Advanced Corporation Tax {ACT)
available, subject to certain restrictions, for set-off against future United Kingdom corporation tax fiabilities. ‘Shadow ACT’
amounted to $216 million {2005 — $189 million) and must be set-off prior to the utilisation of surplus ACT.

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the operating losses and the capital losses as it is not considered more
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of any of the underlying differences can be
deducted.
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24 Provisions

2006 2005
Sm Sm
At 1 October 2005 42 31
Charge for the ygar 2 -
Utilised in the year (1) -
Unwinding of discount 2 2
Subsidiaries acquired - 2
Additions - s
Exchange differences () 1
At 30 September 2006 39 42
Provisions represent site rehabilitation liabilities.
25 Contingent assets and liabilities
2006 2005
Sm $m
Third party guarantees I -
Indemnities 177 177
Preference share capital put opticns 15 15
Vantage Capital Invesiments 20 -
Contingent liabilities 221 201

Third party guarantees relate to guarantees provided by the Group in connection with the sale of certain subsidiaries during 1998 to
date for which amounts have been reasonably estimated but the liahilities ara not probable and therefore the Group has not
provided for such amounts in the accounts.

Various indemnities were given by Lonmin following the purchase of the additional 9.11% in Eastern Platinum Limited (EPL) and
Western Platinum Lirmnited (WPL) and the investment in Incwala Resources (Pty) Limited. These indemnities fafl into two categories
as jollows:

1 Vendor financing indemnity — Lonmin has agreed to indemnify Impala against any non-payment on the relevant due date of any
principal amount awing to Impala by any HDSA (Historically Disadvantaged Scouth African) investor in relation to loans made by
Impala to HDSA investors for their purchase of shares in EPL and WPL. The value of this indemnity is the Rand equivalent of
$95 million of which $68 million expires on 30 September 2009 and $27 million expires on 30 Septermber 2011. A counter-
indemnity has been given by each HDSA investor, which is secured on that HDSA investor’s shares in Incwala.

2 Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) investrnent in Incwala — Lonmin has agreed to indemnify the IDC up to the value of its
invesment in Incwala (the Rand equivalent of $82 million} in relation to warranties provided by Incwala Resources (Pty) Limited
and Incwala Platinum {Pty} Limited to the preference shareholders, based on information disclosed by EPL, WPL or Lonmin. This
contingent liability falls away on 30 September 2007.

Additionally, various preference share capital put option agreements were entered into by Lonmin with a number of banks who
subscribed for preference shares in HDSAs investing in Incwala. These options, which amount to $15 million, can be put upon
Lonmin by the banks in the event that the HDSAs default on payment. Furthermore, pursuant to a reorganisation of the HDSA
shareholdings in Incwala Resources, Lonmin Plc had granted Standard Chartered Bank Johannesburg Branch a put option in
respect of 96 preference shares in Vantage Capital Invesiments (Proprietary) Ltd. The capital sum outstanding at 30 Septernber
2006 was $20 million.
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Notes 10 the accounts
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26 Called up share capital and share premium account

2004

2005

Sm $m
o Authorised
252,735,000 Ordinary shares of $1 each 253 253
(2005 - 252,735,000 ordinary shares of $1 each)
50,000 Deferred shares of £1 each - -
(2005 - 50,000 deferred shares of £1 each)
Issued and fully paic
142,914,832 Ordinary shares of $1 each 143 142
(2005 - 142,064,482 ordinary shares of $1 each}
50,000 Deferred shares of £1 each - -
(2006 - 50,000 deferred shares of £1 sach)
Paid up Share
amount premium
S $m
Issued and fully paid At 1 October 2005
142,064,482 Ordinary shares of $1 each 142 12
50,000 Deferred shares of £1 each — —
The exercise of options under;
841,754 - The Lonmin Executive Share QOption Scheme 1 14
7,943 — The Lonmin Share Option Scheme - -
604 — The Lonmin Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1994 - -
The conversion of convertible bonds:
49 - Convertible bonds 2008 - -
At 30 September 2006:
142,914,832 Ordinary shares of $1 each 143 26
50,000 Deferred shares of £1 each - -

There were 50,000 Sterling deferred shares of £1 each in issue at 30 September 2006 (2005 - 50,000). These were created in 2002
and issued to a nominee Campany by the capitalisation of reserves in order to comply with the requirement that a Public Limited
Company must have a minimurm share capital of £50,000 in Sterling. The deferred shares do not rank pari passu with the ordinary

shares.

At 30 September 2006 there ware outstanding $215.8 million 3.75% convertible bonds due 30 September 2008. The bonds are

convartible at the option of the holders into 10,576,944 ordinary shares of $1 each of the Company at a conversion price of
£12.3277 ($20.4023) per ordinary share (note 34).
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27 Share plans
At 30 September 20086, the following options and awards were outstanding:

Share based plans

Weighted average Weighted Weighted
exercise price average average
of gutstandging remaining fair value of

Number options  contracted iife  options granted

of shares (pence) {years) £)
Executive Share Option Scheme
Qutstanding at 30.09.05 3,150,295 1,106.29 - -
Granted during the vear - - - -
Exercised during the year 841,754 996.82 - -
Lapsed during the year 91,783 1,037.39 - -
Cutstanding at 30.09.06 2,216,758 1,042.64 6 2.07
Exercisable at the end of the year 29,800 984.36 - -
Lonmin Share Option Scheme
Qutstanding at 30.09.05 56,642 1,121.94 - -
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year 7.943 1,130.54 - -
Lapsed during the year 2,600 1,150.00 - -
Outstanding at 30.09.06 46,089 1,118.87 8 2.07
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -
Savings Related Share Option Scheme
Outstanding at 30.09.05 31,059 720.72 - -
Granted during the year 3,030 1,667.0C - -
Exercised during the year 604 836.00 - -
Lapsed during the year 4,829 715.54 - -
QOutstanding at 30.09.06 28,656 819.22 3 3.20
Exercisable at the end of the year 403 836.00 - -

iha Lonmin Share Plan . .
Outstanding at 30.08.05 87,984 - - -
Granted during the year

Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year 3
Qutstanding at 30.09.06 50,856 - - 9.57
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Long Term Incentive Plan

Outstanding at 30.09.05 475,541 - - -
Granted during the year 176,386 - - -
Vested during the year 10,609 - - -
Lapsed during the year 10,493 - - -
Outstanding at 30.03.06 630,825 - 2 8.06

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - —

Footnote:
i The opening balance has been restated to 1ake account of leavers in the prior year whose leaver status had not been confirmed at the prior year end.
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Notes to the accounts
continued

27 Share plans continued
Share based plans (continued)

Weighted average Weighted Weighted
exarcise price average average
of outstanding remaining fair value of

Nurnber options  contracted life  options granted
of shares (pence) (years} [$8]
Deferred Annual Bonus Plan
Qutstanding at 30.09.05 69,890 - - -
Granted during the year 36,421 - - -
Vested during the year 1,928 - - -
Lapsed during the year 4,851 - - -
Qutstanding at 30.08.06 99,432 - 2 6.99
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -
Co Investment Pilan {Invested Shares)
Qutstanding at 30.09.05 124,362 - - -
Granted during the year - - - -
Vested during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at 30.09.06 124,362 - 1 0.69

Exercisable at the end of the vear - - - _

Co Investment Plan (Matched Award)

Qutstanding at 30.09.05 104,869 - - _
Granted during the year - — ~ _
Vested during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year -
Qutstanding at 30.09.08 104,869 - 1 443
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Further information about each of the above plans including the performance conditions can be found in the Remuneration
Committee Report in pages 23 to 29.

Cash settled plans

Weighted average Weighted Weighted
exercise price average average
of ouistanding remaining fair value of
Murnber options  contracted lile  options granted
of shares {pence) {years) {£)

Stay & Prosper Plan
Qutstanding at 30.09.05! 398,752 - - -
Granted during the year 200,237 - - -
Exercised during the vear 722 - - -
Lapsed during the year 15,855 - - -
Outstanding at 30.09.06 582.412 - 2 21.44

Exercisable at the end of the year _ _

Footnote:
i The cpening balance for the Stay and Prosper ptan has been restated as a result of an administrative error.
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27 Share plans continued
Cash settied plans (continued)

Woeighted average Weighted Weighted

exercise price average average

of cutstanding remaining fair value of

Number options  contracted life  oplions granted
of shares (pence)} (years) (£

Scarce Skills Retention Plan
Quistanding at 30.08.05 -
Granted during the year 143,800 - - —
Exercised during the year - ~ - -
Lapsed during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at 30.09.06 143,800 - 3 24.28
Exercisable at the end of the vear — - - -

Further information about each of the above plans including the performance conditions can be found in the Remuneration
Committee Report in pages 23 to 29.

Lonmin Employee Benefit Trust (the “Trust”)

At 30 September 2006 the Trust held 307,522 shares (beneficially and as bare trustee) (2005 — 305,456 shares). The market value of
these sharas at the year end was $15 miltion (2005 — $7 milion). Where not waived, dividends payable on these shares are held by
the Trust on behalf of the participants. Each of the executive directors are deemed to have a beneficial interest, to the extent
disclosed in the table of directors’ share interests, and a non-benéeficial inferest in the balance.

Details of options granted in the period
The fair value of both equity-settled and cash-settied options granted in the period have been measured using the weighted
average inputs below and the following valuation modeis:

Lonmin Savings Related Share Option Schems Black-Scholes
Long Term Incentive Plan Awards Monte Carlo
Deferred Annual Benus Plan Monte Carlo
Stay and Prosper Awards Monte Carlo
Scarce Skills Retention Awards Black-Scholes

2006 2005
Range of share price at date of grant (L) 15.92-27.71 8.75-10.85
Exercise price (£) 0-16.67 0-705
Expected option life (years) 3-5 2-5
Volatility 33-37% 34 — 38%
Dividend yield 1.9% 4.2-44%
Risk free interest rate 4.7 - 4.8% 31 -45%

Volatility was calculated with reference to the Group’s historic share price volatility up to the grant date. The number of years of
historic data used is equal to the term of each option.

The liability in respect of the cash-settted elements of the schemes shown above and reported within non-current employee
benefits at 30 Septermber 2006 is $3 million (2005 - $nil).

67 Lonmin Plc Annual Report 2008 www.lonmin.com




Notes to the accounts
continued

28 Total equity

Eguity shareholders’ funds

Called Share
up share premium Other Retained Minority Totat
capital account reserves garnings Total interests equity
$m $m $m $m $m $m gm
At 1 Qctober 2004 142 B 88 529 765 150 915
Total recognised income and expense — - - 165 165 43 208
Dividends — - - (102) (102} {27) (129)
Share based payment — - - 4 4 - 4
Shares issued on exercise of
share options - 6 - - 6 - G
At 30 September 2005 142 12 88 506 838 166 1,004
At 1 October 2005 142 12 88 596 838 166 1,004
Total recognised income and expense - - ) 354 350 17 467
Buy-out of minority interests in Messina  — - - - - 1 1
Dividends - - {124 (124) (62) (186)
Deferred tax on share options - - - 7 7 1 8
Share based payment - - - 3 3 — 3
Shares issued on exercise of
share options 1 14 - - 15 - 15
At 30 September 2006 143 26 84 836 1,089 223 1,312

During the year 850,301 share options were exercised on which $15 million of cash was received (2005 - $6 million).

Other resaerves represent the capital redemption reserve of $88 million (2005 - $88 millicn) and a hedging reserva of $4 milion
(2005 - Snil).

Details of shares held in the Group’s Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP), the ‘Lonmin Employee Benefit Trust', can be foundin
note 27 to the accounts. The book value of the ESOP, which is shown as a deduction from retained earnings, amounted to $6
millicn at 30 September 2006 (2005 - $5 million).

Minority interests represented an 18% sharehclding in Eastern Platinum Limited and Western Platinum Limited threughcout the year
and, from 28 June 2006, an 18% shareholding in Messina Limited.

29 Related party transactions

2006 20085

$m $m

Amounts received from associate - 2
Purchases from joint venture 43 4
Amounts dus to joint venture 1 3
Rovalties payable to the Bapo Ba Mogale trine' & -
Amourts dug to the Bapo Ba Mogale tribe’ 6 -
Subscription paid to the Platinum Jewellery Development Association (PJDA) 8 6
Amounits due from Historically Disadvantaged South Africans (HDSAs) 21 23

All related party transactions are priced on an arm’s length basis.

Faotnotes:

i The Bapo Ba Mogale tribe owns part of the land within the Marikana license area and receives a royaity from the Group.
i The subscription paid by Lonmin to the PJDA is material to the PJDA,

il HDSAs (including the Bape Ba Mogale tribe) own 53% of the Group's associate, Incwala (note 13).
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30 Capital commitments

2006 2005
£m $m
Contracted for but not yet provided 45 56

31 Operating and finance leases
The future aggregate lease payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as set out below:

Land and buildings

2006 2005
$m $m
Payments due:
Within cne ygar 5 6
Between one and five years 4
9 11
32 Net debt as defined by the Group
At At
1 October Subsidiary MNon cash 30 September
2005 acguired Cash flow maovements 2006
$m $m $m $m $m
Cash ang cash equivalents 11 - 54 4) 61
Overdrafts (1} - (17) - {18)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 10 - 37 4 43
Current borrowings (86) - 86 - -
Non-current borrowings (296) - 8 - {288)
Convertible bonds (213) - - - (213)
Net debt as defined by the Group {585) - 131 4 {458)
At At
1 Qctober Supsidiary Noncash 30 September
2004 acquired Cash flow movements 2005
gm $m $m $m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 20 - {9 - 11
Overdrafis (22 - 21 - (1)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows (2} ~ 12 - 10
Current borrowings (1) - (85) — (86)
Non-current borrowings (56) (60) (178) (2) (296)
Convertible bonds (212) - — {1) (213)
Net debt as defined by the Group (271) (60) (251) (3) (585)

Net debt comprises cash and cash equivalents, ank overdrafts repayable on demand and interest bearing loans, and borrowings
and convertiple bonds grossed up for capitalised fees.
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Notes to the accounts
continued

33 Business combinations
The Group made no acquisitions during the year.

Finalisation of fair value on acquisition in 2005 and purchase of minority interests in 2006

In the prior year the Group acquired 100% of Southern Platinum Corporation {SPC). During the year the Group has taken the
opportunity to reassass the fair value of the assets and liabifities acquired as a result of the acquisition on 15 June 2005. In
accordance with the treatment prescribed by IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, this has resulted in a prior year adjustment.

On 6 February 2006 the Group purchased the remaining 8.5% minority interest in Messina Limited. The difference between the
purchase consideration and the net assets acquired has been capitalised as goodwill {note 10). This has not been treated as a
business combination.

Purchase of

Accounting Fair value additional
Bock value on policy Fair value at date of intarest in Assets
acquisition adjustment adjusiment acquisition 2006 acquired
$m $m $m Bm $m $m
Intangible assets - - 53 53 - 53
Property, plant and equipment 190 (10) (31) 149 - 149
inventory 3 - - 3 - 3
Receivables 6 - - 6 - 6
Cash 5 - - 5 - 5
Overdrafts and loans (60) - (5) (65} - (65)
Payables 16) - (1} (17) - (17)
Provisions (2) - - (2) - (2)
Net assets acquired 128 {10) 16 132 - 132
Goodwill — - 60 60 13 73
Consideration 126 (10} 76 192 13 205

The impact on Group profit for the year endad 30 September 2005, had the entity’s results been consolidated for the full year would
have been a $16m loss.

34 Events after the balance sheet date

Convertible bond

As at 15 November 2006 Lonmin Pic has given notice to force redemption of all of the outstanding convertible bonds at their
principal amount, Given the expected differential between prevailing share prices and the conversion price of £12.33 it is expected
that this will lead to the issue of 10,576,944 shares and a reduction in nen-current financial liakilities of $211 million.

Exclusive right to acquire AfriOre

Lonmin Plc announced on 15 November 20086 that it has entered into a binding agreement with the Board of AfriCre Limited
(“AfriOre") giving Lonmin the exclusive right to acquire AfriOre by means of a cash cffer to sharehclders at C$8.75 (US$7.74) per
AfriCre share. Such an offer, which would be undertaken according to Canadian securities market regulations, would value AfriCre
at US$441 miliion (C$200 mitlior). This transaction has been recommended by the AfriOre board.

35 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

As stated in note 1 Accounting Policies, this is the Lonmin Group's first consolidated financial report prepared in accordance with
adopted IFRS. The Group published its transition document on 15 February 2006 explaining the balance sheet, income statement
and cash flow impact for the Group of the transition to adopted IFRS. Included within that document is a recongiliation of the
income statement and cash flow statement from UK GAAP to adopted IFRS for the year ended 30 September 2005 and a
reconciliation of equity at the fransition date (1 October 2004) and 30 September 2005. The Group’s accounting policies under
adopted IFRS applied by the Group in accordance with $FRS 1 on transition to adopted IFRS, are stated in the accounting pclices
note.

The accounting policies have been applied for the year ended 30 September 2008, the year ended 30 September 2005 and in the
preparation of an opening balance shest at 30 September 2004.

In praparing its opening adopted IFRS balance sheet, the Lonmin Group has adjusted amounts reported praviously in financial
reports prepared in accordance with UK GAAP. An explanation of how the transition from UK GAAP to adopted IFRS has affected
the Group's financiat position and financial performance is set out in the following tables and accompanying notes.
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35 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards continued

The following tabte presents a summary of the impact of adopted IFRS on the balance sheet as at 30 September 2005.

Reconciliation of the balance sheet

Adjustment Previously
from | reported under
Previously UK GAAF UK GAAP Total Restated
reported under to adopted | (adopted IFRS adopted IFRS | under adopted
UK GAAP IFRS format format) adjustment {FRS
$m Sm $m $m $m
Non-current assets
Goodwill — 38 38 62 100
Intangible assets 53 (38) 15 304 319
Property, plant and equipment 1,719 - 1,719 (380} 1,339
investment in associate 91 - 91 - N
Financial assets:
Cther investments 4 (41} — - -
— Available for sale financial assets - 15 15 - 15
- Other receivables — 33 33 {11) 22
Employee benefits - - - 12 12
1,804 7 1,811 {13) 1,898
Current assets
Inventories 110 - 110 — 110
Trade and ¢ther receivables 152 {4) 148 (M 147
Assets held for sale - - - 16 16
Investments 7 (7 - - -
Tax recoverable - 4 4 - 4
Cash and cash equivalents 11 — 11 - 1
280 (7) 273 15 288
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft repayable on demand {1} - (1) — (1)
Trade and other payables (221} 28 {193) 60 {133)
Financial liabilities:
— Interest bearing loans and borrowings {86) — (86} - (86}
Tax payable - (28} 128) - (28}
(308) - (308) 60 (248)
Net current {liabilities)/assets (28) {7} (35) 75 40
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefits {1 - (1) - )
Financial liabilities:
- Inferest bearing loans and borrowings (509) - (509 3 (508)
— Derivative financial instruments - - - (41) (41)
Deferred tax iiabilities - (346) (346) 2 (344)
Provisions (388) 346 {42} - {42)
(898) - (898) {36) (934}
Net assets 978 - 978 26 1,004
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 142 - 142 - 142
Share premium account 12 - 12 - 12
Other reserves 88 - 88 - 88
Retained earnings 570 - 570 26 596
Attributable to equity shareholders of Lonmin Plc 812 - 812 26 838
Attributable to minority interest 166 - 166 - 166
Total equity avg - 978 26 1,004
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35 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards continued
The following table presents a summary of the impact of adopted IFRS on total equity as at 30 September 2005 and 1 October
2004,

Recanciliation of total equity

At At
30 September 1 Cctober

2005 2004

Note $m $m

Total equity as previously reported under UK GAAP 978 895
IAS 19 Employee benefits a 12 5
IFRS 2 Share based payments b 2 -
IAS 38 Intangible assets c 2 -
IAS 32/39 Convertible bond e 3 4
IAS 32/39 Embedded derivative e {41) (33)
IAS 32/39 Other receivables — HDSA loans e {12) (13}
IAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date - dividends f 80 60
IAS 8 Inventory valuation basis g ~ 3)
Total equity in accordance with adopted IFRS 1,004 915
Overall net increase in equity under adopted IFRS 26 20

The following table presents a summary of the impact of adopted IFRS on the income statement for the year ended 30 September
2005,

Recoenciliation of the income statement

Adjustment Praviously
from | reported under

Previously UK GAAP UK GAAP Total Restated

reported under 10 adopted | (adopted IFRS adopted IFRS | under adopted

UK GAAP IFRS format format) adjustment IFRS

$m $m $m $m $m

Revenue 1,128 - 1,128 - 1,128
Group operating profit 347 - 347 3 350
Share of profit of associate 6 (3 3 - 3
Operating profit/(loss) 353 (3) 350 3 353
Finance income 2 2 9 11
Finance expenses — Group (27) (2) {29) (16) {45)
Finance expenses ~ Associate 3 3 - -~ —
Profit/{loss) before taxation 323 - 323 ] 319
Incoms tax expense {118) - (18) - {118)
Profit for the year 205 - 205 (4} 201

Attributable to:

— Equity shareholders of Lonmin Plc 163 - 163 {5) 158
— Minarity interest 42 — 42 1 43
205 - 205 )] 201
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35 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards continued
The following tabie presents a summary of the impact of IFRS on profit after tax for the year ended 30 September 2005.

Recoenciliation of profit after tax

Year to

30 September

2005

Note $m

Net profit after tax as previously reported under UK GAAP 205

IFRS 2 Share based payments b (1)
IAS 38 Intangible assets c 2

IAS 32/39 Convertible bond e {1)

JAS 32/38 Embedded derivative e (8)
IAS 32/39 Other receivables - HDSA loans e 1
1AS 8 Inventary valuation hasis g 3
Net profit after tax in accordance with IFRS 201

Overall net decrease in profit after tax under IFRS (4

The most significant changes at the date of transition to IFRS for the Group between reporting on a UK GAAP basis and IFRS are
as follows:

a Post-emplayment benefits

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement scheme in the United Kingdom. Under UK GAAP, independent qualified actuaries
valued this on a regular basis every three years. Under SSAP 24 surpiuses and deficits arising from the valuations were spread over
the average remaining service lives of employees, with any difference between the profit and loss account charge and the
contributions paid included as an asset or liability in the balance sheet where applicable.

Under IFRS, the defined benefit retirement scheme is valued using the ‘projected unit credit method'. Following the amendment to
1AS 19, Employee benefits, the Group has elected to recognise actuarial gains and losses in full in the period in which they occur in
the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense, Therefore, upon transition the actuarial surplus as previousiy disclosed under
FRS 17, Retirement bensefits, are required to be fully recognised under IFRS. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the
extent that the benefits have already vested, and is otherwise amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
benefits become realised.

b Share based payment

IFRS 2, Share based payment, requires that share based employee benefits are expensed to the income statement based on their
fair vatue, instead of the intrinsic value required under UK GAAP. Fair values for the Group schemes, which are all equity settied,
were estimated using either the Black-Scholes European option pricing model or a Monte Carlo simulation model. The fair values
are calculated on the date of grant of the awards and the total fair value is charged to income over the relevant vesting periods,
adjusted to reflect expected levels of lapses and expected achievernent of vesting conditions. For IFRS purposes share based
payment costs are recognised in the incoms statement for the year ended 30 September 2005 of $2 million.

¢ Goodwill and intangible assets

i Gooawill

For UK GAAP purposes, goodwill ansing on the fair value of the assets and liabilities of Eastern Platinum Limited and Western
Platinum Limited purchased on 30 September 2004 was being amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

in accordance with IFRS 3, Business Combinations, as from 1 October 2004 the carrying value of goodwill is treated as deemed
cost at the transition date. Thereafter this balance is not amortised, but is instead annually tested for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired.

Consequently, for IFRS purposes, all goodwill amartisation recognised under UK GAAP in the year ended 30 September 2005
{($2m} is reversed. No impairmert was considered necessary.
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35 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards continued

it Mining rights

For UK GAAP purposes, mining rights have been disclosed within tangible fixed assets. For IFRS purposes mining rights have been
disclosed within other intangible fixed assets totalling as at 1 October 2004 $311 million and 30 September 2005 $286 million.

iif Software
During the year ended 30 September 2005 software was purchased and developed. Under UK GAAP these costs were capitalised
and classified within property, plant and equipment.

In accordance with IAS 38, Intangible Assets, since the software is not an integral part of the related hardware this is classified as
an intangible asset. This amounted to $11 million as at 30 September 2005. Amortisation will commence once the asset is in use.

d Properties
We currently accommodate 52% of our employees in hostels and married quarters with the remainder living in their homes. We are
selling houses to employees to encourage home-ownership.

Under the UK GAAP the houses to be sold in the year ended 30 September 2006 remained classified within property, plant and
equipment and measured at net book value.

In accordance with IFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations, the houses to be sold within twelve
months are classified as current assets held for sale and measured at the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less costs
10 sell. This amounted to $18 million as at 30 September 2005,

e Financial instruments
i Convertible bond and embedded derivative
Under UK GAAP convertible bonds were valued at historical cost after deducting issue expenses.

Under IFRS the convertitle bonds are classified into two components. The debt element is included within non-current liabilities.
The underlying liabilities are measured at net present value at the date of issue and recorded on an amortised cost basis. The
equity conversion feature is regarded as a derivative, This is included at fair value within non-current liabilities, rather than equity, as
there is a cash settlement cption. Any changes in the fair value are taken through the income statement.

At the date of transition the interest rate swap associated with the convertible bond was recognised on the batance sheet at fair
value and a corresponding adjustment made to the carrying value of the convertible bond to the extent it was hedged. The
adjustment to the value of the bond is amortised aver the life of the bond. The swap expired at 30 September 2005 and the swap
was n¢ langer recognised.

ii Loans to Historically Disadvantaged South Africans (HDSAs)

Under UK GAAP the loans to HDSAs were valued at historical cost less repayments. Under IFRS these are recognised at fair value
and carried at amortised cost less impairment. The adjustment to bring the loans down to fair value amounted to $13 million as at 1
October 2004 and $12 million as at 30 September 2005.

f Dividends

For UK GAAF purposes, the Group recegnised proposed ordinary dividends payable in the period to which they related. In
accordance with 1AS 10, Events After the Balance Sheet Date, such dividends are only recognised when authorised by the
shareholders or in the case of interim dividends, when they are paid. Proposed ordinary dividends payable as at 30 September
2005 of $60 million under UK GAAP are not recognised as a liability under IFRS. Therefore, trade and other payables and retained
garnings have been restated accordingly.

g Inventory Valuation

In May 2005 the Group changed the measurement basis of its in-process inventory from tonnage to metal content. This reduced in-
process inventory by $22 million. Under UK GAAP this was a change of accounting estimate so no adjustment was made to the
opening position.

On adoption of IFRS inventory has been measured on a metal content basis.
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35 Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards continued

h Taxation

IAS 12, Income taxes, requires full provision for all taxable temporary differences. A temporary difference arises where there is a
difference between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax base. A temporary difference is taxable if it will result in
taxable amounts in the future, when the carrying amount of the asset is recovered or the liability is settled.

The main effect of IAS 12 is the recognition of the deferred taxation impacts of the other adjusting items arising on transition to
IFRS.

Income taxes paid during 2005 are classified as operating cash flows undsr IFRS but were included in a separate category of ¢ash
flows under UK GAAP.

i Other impacts
The following additional impacts result in changes in presentation and disclosures within the Financial Statements:

I. Investments

Under UK GAAP the Group disclosed $48 million of other investments as at 30 September 2005 {of which $41 million was
considered to be fixed asset investments). Under IFRS these have been reclassified. Loans of $33 million to HDSAs which were
valued at historical cost are recognised at fair value, carried at amortised cost less impairment and disclosed as non-current other
receivables. At 30 September 2005, $15 miltion has been classified as other financial assets, representing Petrozim {private) Ltd.,
Furuya Metals Co Ltd. and the rehabilitation trust fund.

Il. Share of profit of associate

The Group's share of operating profit, interest costs and tax were disclosed separately as part of operating profit, net interest
payable and taxation under UK GAAP. For IFRS purposes the Group's post tax share of profit from the associate, Incwala, is
disclosed separately above profit before tax.

36 Principal Group companies including associate

The following companies have been consolidated in the Group accounts and materially contributed to the assets and/or results of
the Group and are classified according to their main activity.

Direct interest

in ardinary Beneficial
Country of share capital interest Principal
Company incorporation % % activities
Eastern Platinum Ltd. South Africa 82 82 Subsidiary  Platinum mining
Western Platinum Ltd. South Africa 82 82 Subsidiary  Platinum mining and refining
Messina Platinum Mines Ltd. South Africa 82 82 Subsidiary  Platinum mining
Incwala Resources (Pty) Ltd. South Africa 24 24 Associate Qwnership of platinum mining assets

A full list of Group companies will be included in the annual return registered with Companies House.
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Lonmin Pic Company balance sheet
at 30 September

2006
2006 (as restated)
Note Sm $m
Fixed assets
Intangible asset 38 - 15
Tangible assets 39 1 1
Investments: 1,026 1,194
Subsidiaries 40 999 1,167
Other investments 41 27 27 |
Total fixed assets 1,027 1,210
Current assets
Debtors 42 586 346
Cash and short-term deposits 45 5
Total current assets 631 351
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 43 (693} (670)
Net current liabilities (62} {319)
Total assets less current liabilities 965 891
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 43 (483) (498)
Convertible debt {211) {210)
Derivative financial instruments (268) {41)
Other loans - (246)
Other 4) (1
Retirement benefit asset 6 12
Net assets 488 405
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 45 143 142
Share premium account 45 26 12
Capital redemption reserve 45 88 88
Profit and loss account 45 231 163
Total shareholders’ funds (equity} 45 488 405
Footnote;

i The Company has adopted Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 17 Retirement benefits, FRS 20 Share-based payments, FRS 21 Events atter the balance sheet
date, FRS 25 Finandial instrumeants: disclosura and presentation and FRS 26 Financial instruments: measurement. The comparative data has been restated
accordingly. For further information see note 37.

The financial staternents were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 November 2006 and were signed on its behalf by:

Sir John Craven Chairman J N Robinson Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Company accounts

37 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Lonmint Plc {the Company) balance sheet and related notes have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom generally
accepted accounting practice {*UK GAAP") and in accordance with UK company law. The financial information has been prepared
on a historic cost basis as modified by the revaluation of certain financial instruments. The following principal accounting policies
have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the Company's financial
statements.

The Company's functional currency is the US Dollar. The reporting currency is also the US Dollar.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in Section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985 from presenting its
own profit and loss account.

Significant accounting policies

Intangible fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost and are depreciated over their useful life in accordance with FRS 10.

Joint arrangements

The Company has certain contractual arrangements with other participants to engage in joint activities that do not create an entity
carrying on a trade or business of its own. The Company includes its share of the assets, liabilities and cash flows in such joint
arrangements, measured in accordance with the terms of each arrangement, which is usually pro-rata to the Company's interest in
the joint arrangement.

investments
Investments are held at fair vaiue. Where no market value is available the carrying value of net assets less impairment is used.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recorded at cost or valuation, which are not updated under the transitional arrangements of FRS 15 -
Tangible fixed assets, less depreciation. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a straight line basis. Assets are depreciated
over their estimated useful economic lives to residual value. Depreciation rates for the principal assets of the Company are as
follows:

Mathod Rate
Short term leasehold groperty Straight line Quer the life of the lease {3 — 5 vears)
Plant and equipment Straight line 10% - 33% per annum (3 — 10 years)

Tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When a review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is assessed by reference to the net present
value of expected future cash flows of the relevant income generating unit or disposal value if higher in accordance with FRS 11.

Financial instruments
The Company's principal financial instruments (other than derivatives) comprise bank ioans, lisied convertible bonds, investments,
cash and short-term deposits.

Bank loans are recorded at amortised cost, net of transaction caosts incurred, and are adjusted to amortise transaction costs over
the term of the foan.

The Company has raised debt through the issue of convertible bonds. These bonds incorporate two key elements. Firstly, there is
the financial liability in respect of the debt element. This is measured at net present value of future cash flows. Secondly, the bonds
allow for conversion to equity at the option of the bond holder. This represents an equity embedded derivative. However, as the
Company retains a cash settlement option this equity conversion feature is shown as a financial liability if the fair value is greater
than the net present value of the debt. This embedded derivative is fair valued at each period end with changes in the fair value
being taken through the income statement.
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Notes to the Company accounts
continued

37 Accounting policies continued

Leases

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding future lease obligations are shown in borrowings.
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided for on timing differences that have ariginated but not reversed by the balance sheet date on a non-
discounted basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted,

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

The Company cperates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes in accordance with UK regulations.
The assets of the schames are held separately from those of the Company and are administered by trustees. Indepandent actuaries
prepare valuations of these schemes at least every three years and in accordance with their recommendations the Company makes
contributions which are charged to profits on a systematic basis over the expected remaining working lives of the employees. Any
differences between the actuarial valuation of the obligation and the value of assets in a scheme are similarly charged or credited to
profit before taxation aver the expected remaining working lives of employees in the scheme. The cost of defined contribution
schemes is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred,

Share based payments
The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20. In accordance with the transitional provisions, FRS 20 has been applied to
all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that had not vested as at 1 January 2005.

The Company makes equity-settled share-based payments, which are measured at fair value at the date of grant. For those share
schemes which do not include non-rarket vesting conditions, the fair value is determined using the Monte Carlo method at the
grant date and expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest. The fair value of share options issued with non-market vesting conditions has been calculated using the Black
Scholes mode!. For all other share awards, the fair value is determined by reference to the market value of the share at the date of
grant. For all share schemes with non-rnarket vesting conditions, the likelihood of vesting has been taken into account when
determining the IFRS charge. Vesting assumptions are reviewed during each reporting period 1o ensure they reflect current
expectations.

Share options and own shares held

In accordance with Urgent Issues Task Force Abstract 25 ~ National insurance contributions on share option gains (UITF 25} the
Company provides in full for the employer's national insurance liability estimated to arise on the future exercise of share options
granted.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption offered in Urgent Issues Task Force Abstract 17 — Employee share schemes
(UITF 17) from charging to the profit and loss account the discounts offered to employees partaking in such Company operated
SAYE schemes.

As required under Urgent Issues Task Force Abstract 38 — Accounting for ESOP trusts (UITF 38} the cost to the Company of own
shares held is shown as a deduction from shareholders funds within the profit and loss account. Consideration paid or received for
the purchase or sale of the Company's own shares in the ESOP trust is shown separately in the reconciliation of movements in
shareholder’s funds.

Dividend reinvestment program

Under the Company's Dividend Reinvestment Plan, shareholders can elect for the whele of their cash dividends to be reinvested in
Lonmin Ple shares which are purchased on their behalf in the market. All cash dividends are paid to the Registrars who use the
dividends of participants in the plan to fund these purchases. Accordingly, no new shares are issugd, dividends are paid and
accounted for in the normal way, and there are no special accounting requirements for the programme.
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37 Accounting policies continued

Changes in accounting policies

The following UK GAAP accounting policy changes have been made in the year:
FRS 17 Retirement benefits;

FRS 20 Share based payments;

FRS 21 Events after the balance sheet date;

FRS 25 Financial instruments: Disclosure and presentation;

FRS 26 Financial instruments: Measurement; and

FRS 28 Corresponding amounts.

Adoption of FRS 17 Retirement benefits

For accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the Company is required to account for retirement benefit plans in
accordance with FRS 17, and is required to apply the requirements of FRS 17 retrospectively. Accordingly, an asset of $6 million
(2005 — $12 million) has been recognised on the balance sheet.

Adoption of FRS 20 Share-based payments

The Standard requires options granted to directors 10 be measured at fair value at grant date using an option pricing mode! and
charged to the profit and loss account over the vesting period of the options. This accounting change has reduced net profit for the
Company for the year ended 30 September 2005 by $0.2 million. Had the previous policy been applied in 20086, net profit would
have been $2.7 million higher.

Adoption of FRS 21

For accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the Company is required to account for events occurring after the
halance sheet date (FRS 21), and is required to apply the requirements of FRS 21 retrospectively. Accordingly, the 2005 final equity
dividend of $60 million previously recognised at 30 Septernber 2005 within creditors due within one vear has been reversed since it
was not declared at the batance sheet date. This has increased net assets at 30 September 2005.

Adoption of FRS 25 and FRS 26

For accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the Company is required to measure and disclose amounts defined
as financial instruments in accordance with FRS 25 and FRS 26. The Company has chosen to restate comparative information. The
impact of adopting FRS 25 and FRS 26 is discussed below:

Convertible bond:

1) Embedded derivative

On adoption of FRS 25 and FRS 286, the fair vaiue of the embedded derivative was calculated. Subsequent movements in the fair
value of the embedded derivative are recognized in finance costs in the profit and loss account.

The impact of this change was the recognition of a $41 million embedded derivative liability within other financial liabilities as at
1 October 2005 and $268 million as at 30 September 2006.

ii) Underlying debt instrument
The fair value of the liability component was calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows under the terms of the
instrument using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertibie bond.

The impact of this change was a reduction in the liahbility as at + October 2005 of $3 million.

The Company has not adopted amendments to FRS 26 in relation to guarantee contracts which will apply for periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2006. Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other
companies within its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this
respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the
Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee. The Company dogs not expect the amendments to have any
impact on the financial statements for the period commencing 1 October 2006.

The Company has also applied the following UK standards for the first time in 2006, however, this has not represented a change in
accounting policy previously applied and it has not been necessary to restate any comparative information:

* FRS 23 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates;

* FRS 28 Corresponding amounts.
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Notes to the Company accounts

continued

38 Intangible asset

Other
intangibles
sm
Cost:
At 1 October 2005 15
Disposals (15)
At 30 September 2006 -
Amortisation:
At 1 October 2005 -
Charge for the year -
At 30 September 2006 -
Net book value:
At 30 September 2006 -
At 1 October 2005 15

39 Tangible fixed assets

Plant, machinery,

fixtures and
equipment
Sm
Cost:
At 1 October 2005 3
Additions -
At 30 September 2006 3
Depreciation:
At 1 October 2005 2
Charge for the year -
At 30 September 2006 2
Net book value:
At 30 September 2006 1
At 1 October 2005 1
40 Subsidiaries
Sm

Cost:
At 1 October 2005 1,229
Additions 21
Disposals (170}
At 30 September 2006 1,080
Provisions:
At 1 October 2005 62
Increase 19
At 30 September 2006 81
Net book value:
At 30 September 2006 999
At 1 October 2005 1167
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41 Fixed asset investments

Loans
Investments receivabie Total
m &m $m
At 1 October 2005 5 22 27
Movement in fair value 2 )] )
Additions 1 - 1
At 30 September 2006 8 19 27
42 Debtors
2006 2005
$m $m
Armounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies 583 343
Other debtors - 1
Prepayments and accrued income 1 1
Loans receivable 2 1
586 346
43 Creditors
2006 2005
5m tm
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts due to subsidiary companies 676 661
Bank loans and overdrafts — unsecured - 1
Other creditors 10 4
Accruals 6 4
Tax payable 1 -
693 B70
2006 2005
Sm $m
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Loans — US$3.75% convertible bonds due 2008 — unsecured 211 210
- other unsecured - 246
— derivative embedded in the convertible bond 268 ) 4
QOther creditors 4 1
483 498
Details of the loans are shown under notes 20 and 21.
44 Contingent liabilities
2006 2005
$m Em
Third party guarantees — sale of subsidiaries 3 2
- bank financing - 85
Vantage Capital Investments (note 25) 20 -
23 87

Various indemnities were given by the Company following the purchase of the additional 8.11% in Eastern Platinum Limited and
Western Platinum Limited and the investment in Incwala Resources. Further details of these can be found in note 25 to the
accounis.

There were no contingent liabilities in respect of litigation.
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Notes to the Company accounts
continued

45 Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

Issued Share Capitat
share premium redemption Profit and

capital account reserve loss account Total

$m $m $m 8m $m

At 30 September 2005 142 12 88 141 383
Prior year adjustrnent’ - - - 72 72
At 30 September 2005 as restated 142 12 88 213 455
Adoption of FRS 25 and FRS 26" - - - (50} (50)
At 1 Octaber 2005 142 12 88 163 405
Profit for the financial year — — - 193 193
Change in fair valug of availablg for sale financial assets - - - 2 2
Share based payment - - - 3 3
Actuarial losses on post retirement benefit plan - - - (6) {6)
Shares issued on exercise of share options 1 14 - - 15
Dividends - - - {(124) (124)
At 30 September 2006 143 26 88 23 488

i The prior year adjustment of $72 million related to the adoption of FRS 17, FRS 20 and FRS 21. Details are provided in note 37.
i The key change in accounting policy on adoption of FRS 25 and FRS 26 is the separation of the equity corversion option with the convertible bond.

The audit fee in respect of the parent company was $0.1 million {2005 — $0.1 million).
The profit of the Company for the 2008 financial year amounted to $193 million (2005 — $181 million).
Details of shares held in the employee share ownership plan (ESOP) can be found in note 27 1o the accounts.

46 Pensions
The movement in the scheme surplus during the year was as follows:

2006 2005
Sm $m
Surplus in scheme at beginning of year 12 5
Movernent in year:
Current service cost (1) )
Contributions 1 i
Past service cost - -
Interest 2 1
Actuarial (loss)/gain (6) 6
Translation exchange (2) -
Surplus in scheme at end of year 6 12

See note 15 for further disclosures on the Company pension scheme.
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47 Other information

Employees

The total numbers of employees of the Company at 30 September 2006 was 36 (2005 - 32). Total staff costs, excluding charges for
share options, were $11 million (2005 - $11 million).

Total directors' emoluments were $9 million (2005 - $10 million). These emoluments were paid for their services on behalf of Lonmin
Pic Group. No emoluments related specifically to their work in the Company.

Details of the share schemes that impact the Company are disclosed in note 27 to the Group accounts.

Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 - Related party disclosures, not to disclose related party
transactions between subsidiary companies

Cashflow

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 1 — Cash flow statements and has not prepared a cash flow
statement.

Dividends
Details of the dividends paid in the year are included in note 8 to the Group financial statements

48 Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are disclosed in noie 34.
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Consoligated Group five year financial record
for the year ended 30 September

Continuing operations excluding acquisitions

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
IERS IFRS" UKGAAP UKGAAF UKGAAP
Sm $m &m $m $m
Income statement:
Revenue 1,855 1,128 1,030 779 697
Cperating profit {excluding associate and joint venture) 842 350 304 298 333
Underlying operating profit (excluding associate and joint venture) 830 362 262 298 333
Profit before taxation 633 319 290 291 332
Underlying profit before taxation 827 339 290 269 332
Attributabte profit for the year 313 158 125 74 185
Underlying attributable profit for the year 445 168 137 123 150
Basic earnings per share {cents) 219.5 111.5 88.4 525 121.5
Underlying earnings per share (cents) 3121 118.5 96.9 8v7.2 98.5
Balance sheet:
Non-current assets — property, plant and equipment 1,463 1,339 1,370 983 887
Non-current assets — other 677 559 133 292 294
Net current assets/{liabilities) 279 40 13 79 (6)
Net debt {458) (585) (275) (197} {i55)
Equity shargholders’ funds 1,089 838 744 845 671
Equity shareholders’ funds per share (cents) 764 591 525 457 476
Cost of dividend paid 124 102 102 101 101
Dividends per share paid (cents) 87.0 72.0 72.0 72.0 72.0
Dividend in respect of the year per share (cents) 100.0 720 72.0 72.0 72.0
Cashflow:
Cash flow from operating activities (trading cagh flow) 506 279 324 227 181
Free cash flow 290 56 100 68 4]
Trading cash flow per share (cents) 354.9 191.2 229.2 161.0 118.9
Free cash flow per share {cents) 203.4 38.5 70.7 48.2 4.6)
Footnotes:

i For the years endad 30 September 2002 to 2004, the infarmation has been presented on a UK GAAP basis. The nature of the agjustments that would be required
to restate this information on an IFRS basis ara presented in note 35 to the financial statements,

i The 2003 and 2002 figures were restated in 2004 to show the investment in the Lonmin Employee Share Ownership Plan as a deduction from equity shareholders’
funds.

i The balance sheet as at 30 September 2005 has been restated following the finalisation of fair values arising on the acquisition of Southern Platinum Corpaoration
as disclosed in note 33 to the financial staternents.
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Corporate information

Company Secretary and
Registered Office

Rob Bellhouse BSc FCIS
Lonmin Pic

4 Grosvenor Place

London

SWIX 7YL

United Kingdom

Tel:  +44 {0)20 7201 6000
Fax: +44 (0}2C 7201 6100
E-mail: contact@lonmin.com
www.lonmin.com

Registered in England and Wales
Company number 103002

Investor Relations

Alexandra Sherland-Ball

(Vice President, Investor Relations &
Communications})

Stockbrockers

United Kingdom:

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
20 Moorgate

London

ECZ2R 6DA

Tel:  +44 (0)20 7588 2828
Fax: +44 (0)20 7155 9000

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

33 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

E14 5LB

Tel:  +44 (0)20 7986 4000

Fax: +44 (0)20 7986 2266

South Africa:

JPMorgan Equities Limited
1 Friker Road

llovo

Johannesburg 2196

South Africa

Tet:  +27 (O)11 507 0430
Fax: +27 (0)11 507 0502

North America:

BMO Capital Markets
1 First Canadian Place
5th Floor PO Box 150
Toronto

Ontario M5X 1H3

Tel:  +1 416 359 4001
Fax: +1 416 350 4417
Web: www.bmo.com

www.lonmin.com
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External Auditors
KPMG Audit Plc

PO Box 695

8 Salisbury Square
London

EC4Y 8BB

United Kingdom

Tel:  +44 ()20 7311 1000
Fax: +44 (0)20 7311 3311

Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex

BN99 B6DA

UK Callers:

Tet: 0870 600 3970

Fax: 0870 600 3980
International Caliers:

Tel:  +44 (0N121 415 7047
Fax: +44 (0)1903 833371
Web: www.shareview.co.uk

Computershare Investor Services
2004

Pty Limited

Postal address:

PO Box 61051

Marshalltown 2107

South Africa

Tel:  +27 (0)11 370 5000

Fax: +27 {0)11 688 5217 or 7707

Physical address:
70 Marshall Street
2001 Johannesburg
South Africa

ADR Depository

The Bank of New York

ADR Shareholder Enquiries Dept.
PC Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York

NY 10286

USA

US Caliers:

Tel:  1-888-BNY-ADRS (Toli freg)
International Callers:

Tel: +1212 815 3700

E-mail: shareowners@bankofny.com

1SA Provider

Rensburg Sheppards Investment
Management Limited

Corporate PEP and ISA Administration
The Plaza

100 Old Hall Street

Liverpool

L3 9AB

Tel:  +44 {0151 237 2160

Fax: +44 {0)151 255 1742




Shareholder information

Lonmin's shares are quoted on the Londen and Johannesburg
stock exchanges, and ADRs representing Lonmin shares are
also traded in an over-the-counter market in the USA.

UK share register information

All holdings of the Company's shares are maintained on the
Company’s UK share register, with the exception of those held
on the South African branch registar. The register is
administered by Lioyds TSB Registrars, who offer a range of
shareholder information onling, including facilities to check
shareholdings, update perscnal details and cast votes at
general meetings as well as providing practical help on
transferring shares at www.shareview.co.uk. Up-to-date
information on the Company is contained in the Company's
website at www.onmin.com, which also includes a fink ta the
registrars’ website.

South African branch register information
The South African branch register is administered by
Computershare Investor Services 2004 (Pty) Limited.

Contact agetails for both ragistrars can be found in Corporate
Information on page 85.

Dividends

Currency of dividends

The Company declares dividends in US Dollars. Subject to
shareholder approval, the final dividend of 55 cents per share
for the year ended 30 September 2006 will be paid on &
February 2007 to shareholders on the registers at the close of
business on 12 January 2007. The dividend will be paid in
Sterling to UK sharehoiders {unless they elect to receive US
Dollar dividends) calculated at the US Dollar to Sterling
exchange rate on 19 January 2007 and in Rand to
shareholders on the SA branch register calculated at the US
Dollar to Rand exchange rate on 28 December 2006. The
dividend will be paid in US Dollars to all other overseas
shareholders (unless they elect to receive Sterling dividends or
have mandated their dividend payments to a UK bank or
participate in TAPS). Elections to receive an alternative currency
(US Dollars or Sterling) should comprise a signed request to
Lloyds TSB Registrars at the address shown on page 85 to be
received by 5.00p.m. on 12 January 2007. No transfers will be
permitted between the UK principal register and the SA branch
register from the date on which the Rand dividend is
announced until the record date, both dates inclusive (i.e., the
last day on which transfers between registers will be permitted
is Wednesday 27 December 20086).

Dividend payment to your bank account

The Company can pay UK registered shareholders’ dividends
direct to their bank or building society account. This means that
dividends will normally be in shareholders’ accounts on the
same day as the payment is made and tax vouchers will be
posted to the shareholders’ registered addresses. Shareholders
wishing to adopt this method of payment should contact the
registrars.
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Transcontinental Automated Payment System (TAPS)
TAPS permits shareholders resident in certain countries to
receive dividend payments to their local bank and in their local
currency. All eligible shareholders have been or will be sent
informaticn on TAPS by Lloyds TSB Registrars.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP) is available through
which eligible shareholders may invest the whole of their cash
dividends in additional Lonmin Plc shares. Sharehclders on
the registers on the record date for the recommended final
dividend, 12 January 2007, may participate in the planin
respect of that dividend, provided their application forms are
received by 26 January 2007. Copies of the DRIP brochure
and application form have been sent ta eligible shareholders
on the registers up to 8 July 2006 and are being sent to those
who are newly entered on the registers between then and

12 January 2007. Further copies are available from the
registrars or can be downloaded from the registrars’ website.

American depository receipts (ADRs)

The Company has a sponsored Level 1 ADR programme for
which The Bank of New York acts as the depository. Each
ADR represents one ordinary share of the company. The ADRs
trade in the over-the-counter (OTC) market under the symbol
LOMNY. When dividends are paid to shareholders, the
depository makes the equivalent payment in US Dollars to
ADR holders.

Contact details can be found in Corporate Information on
page 85.

Further information for UK domiciled shareholders
Capital Gains Tax

For capital gains tax purposes, shareholders disposing of
shares in either Lonmin Plc or Lonrho Africa Plc after 7 May
1998, who held shares prior to that date, should apportion the
base cost of their original Lonmin Plc shares between the two
companies. Based on the closing share prices on 7 May 1998
of Lonmin Plc and Lonrho Africa Pic, this apportionment would
be 80.498% for Lonmin Pl and 19.502% for Lonrho Africa Plc.

The Company's capital reduction was completed on

22 February 2002. For the purposes of assessing any liability
to capital gains tax, UK shareholders should apportion 13.33%
of the base cost of their original shareholding to the cagital
reduction and the balance to their new holding of ordinary
shares of $1 each.




The market price of Lonmin Plc ordinary shares at 31 March
1882 was 38.9 pence (as adjusted for subsequent
capitalisation issues), and 155.6 pence as adjusted for the
consolidation of the Company’s shares on 24 April 1998 and
125.3 pence as adjusted for the de-merger of Lonrho Africa Plc
on 7 May 1998.

Lonmin Corporate Individual Savings Accounts (ISAs)
Rensburg Sheppards Investment Management Limited offers
the Lonmin Corporate Stocks & Shares ISA (from which
dividend income and capital gains are completely free of UK
tax) for investment in Lonmin Plc shares. UK registered
shareholders may subscribe to the Lonmin Corporate ISA up
to a maximum currently of £7,000 annually for a maxi ISA (or
alternatively one stocks-and-shares mini ISA of £3,000), by
direct transfer of eligible employee shares and/or by sale and
reinvestment of existing Lonmin Plc shares. Contact details can
be found in Gorporate Information on page 85. Rensburg
Sheppards Investment Management Limited is regulated by
the FSA.

This is not a recommendaticn that shareholders should
subscribe to the ISA. The advantages of holding shares in an
1SA vary according to individual circumstances and
shareholders who are in any doubt should consult their
financial adviser.

ShareGift

Lonmin is proud to support ShareGift, an independent charity
share donation scheme administered by the Orr Mackintosh
Foundation {registered charity number 1052686). Those
shareholders who hold only a smail number of shares, the
value of which make them uneconomic to sell, can donate the
shares to ShareGift who will sell them and donate the
proceeds to a wide range of charities. Further information
abeut ShareGift can be obtained from their website at
www.ShareGift.org and a ShareGift transfer form can be
downloaded from the Company’s website.
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Warning to shareholders

A survey by the Financial Services Authority (FSA) has reported
that an increasing number of shareholders of UK listed
companies are being targeted by individuals purporting to be
legitimate brokers or financial advisors.

Shareholders are advised to be very wary of any unsolicitad
advice, offers to buy shares at a discount or offers of free
reports on the Company.

If you receive any unsclicited investment advice:

* make sure you get the correct name of the person and
organisation and make a record of any other information
they give you, e.g. telephone number, address, etc.

* check that they are properly authorised by the FSA before
getting involved. You can check at www.fsa.gov.uk/register

* the FSA also maintains on its website a list of unauthorised
overseas firms who are targeting, or have targeted, UK
investors and any approach from such organisations should
be reported to the FSA so that this list can be kept up to
date and any other appropriate action can be considered,
If you deal with any unauthorised form, you would not be
eligible to receive payment under the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme. The FSA can, preferably, be
contacted by completing an on-line form at www.fsa.gov.uk/
pages/doing/regutated/law/alerts/overseas.shtmi or, if you
do not have access to the internet, on 0845 606 1234,

* inform the registrars on the relevant telephone numbers
listed on page 85. They are not able to investigate such
incidents themselves but will record the details and pass
them on to the FSA,

www.lonmin.com
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Lonmin Charter

LONMIN

We are Lonmin, a primary producer of Platinum
Group Metals. We create value by the discovery,
acquisition, development and marketing of
minerals and metals.

We respect the communities and nations that host our

operations and conduct business in a sustainable,
socially and environmentally responsible way.

Qur mission

To grow and build cur portfolio
of high quality assets.

To deliver the requirements of the
South African broad based socio-
economic Mining Charter and we
welcoma the opportunity to
transform our business.

To build a value-based culiure,
which is founded on safe work,
continuous improvement, common
standards and procedures,
community involverment and one
that rewards employees for high
performance.

L)’\Mw

Sir John Craven
Chairman

November 2004

We are successful when

Our employees live and work
safely and experience the perscnal
satisfaction that comes with high
performance and recognition.

Our shareholders are realising
a superior total return on their
investment and support our
corporate sustainability values.

The communrities in which we
operate value our relationships.

We are meeting our commitments
to all business partners and our
suppliers, contractors, pariners and
customers support our Gharter.

/@Waﬂ&

Bradford A Mills
Chief Executive

Our values

Zero Harm
We are committed to Zero Harm
to people and the environment.

Integrity, honesty and trust
We are committed, ethical people
who do what we say we will do.

Transparency
Cpen, honest communication and
free sharing of information.

Respect for each other
Embracing our diversity enriched by
openness, sharing, trust, teamwork
and invclvement.

High performance

Stretching our individual and team
capabilities to achieve innovative
and superior outcomes.

Employee self-worth

To enhance the quality of life for
our employees and their families
and promote self-esteem.
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Chief Executive’s Review

It is with pride that | present to you our 6™ annual Sustainable
Development Report, "Building Value”. Over the past few years,
we have set the foundation for building a value-based
organisation that operates successfully both in our local
communities and in the global arena. We remain committed to
becoming a world-class natural resource company. We will
achieve this by incorporating and integrating the components of
sustainable development into our averall strategy, business
decisions and operational procedures. We have learnt that
these components are interrelated and that the solution to the
myriad of social, environmental and devalopment challenges
facing us and our host communities, will resice in balancing
operational development with ¢creating value in our communities
and the environment.

| would emphasise that we are on a journey and that we learn
every step of the way. During 2006, we have made significant
improvements in our safety performance with a 31% reduction
in our lost time injury frequency rate. It is, however, with deep
regret that | report the deaths of six of our employees in work-
related accidents during the year (4 at Marikana and 2 at
Limpopo). We remain commitied to Zero Harm and will continue
to work during 2007 to further embed safe production within
our systems and behaviours.

One key achigvernent which fell outside our 2006 financia year
was the conversion of our old order mining rights into new order
mining rights in respect of our Marikana operations. This was a
significant achievement for us and we were the first Platinum
major to have our conversion application approved by the
Department of Minerals and Energy (DME). This breakthrough
ensures the future of our Marikana operations which currently
constitute around 95% of our annual production, giving us a
right to mine for Platinum Group Metals (PGMs) and associated
metals for 30 years with a right to apply to renew our licence for
a further 30 years after that.

An important part of the ccnversion process is the agreeing of
detailed Social and Labour Plans with the DME which lay out
the plans and programmes which are in place to meet the
reguirements of the Mining Charter. We have reported in this
document fully on the undertakings in our Social and Labour
Plans. We are committed to working with the DME to realise
these promises which will contribute to the continuing
empowerment and transformation of our business.

Operating our business on the principles of sustainable
development ensures that we reduce costs, reduce risks

and create opportunities. In ling with this approach, we have
increased the number of employees on the anti-retroviral
treatment programme to 587, Environmental and other risk
management systems ensure adequate control and we have
created opportunities for women in mining and for local vendors
to participate in our procurement programmes.

“Building Value” has been prepared in accordance with the
Global Reporting Initiative's (GRI) 2002 Sustainahbility Reporting
Guidelines, and we believe it represents a balanced and
reasonable representation of our organisation’'s economic,
envircnmental and social performance.

| welcome any feedback you have in relation to this report and
look forward to reporting our progress again naxt year as we
continue to focus on creating value for all cur stakeholders.

mﬂ/&w@l

Bradford A Mills
Chief Executive
14 November 2006
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Hgnlignts, rerrormance ana largets

Highlights
Sustaining the business
o, ¢ neray ::)w s l N s South African operating companies, Western Platinum Limited and

REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA Eastern Platinum Limited successfully converted their old arder
mining rights into new order mining rights in respect of the Group's

Marikana operations

» Our mining operations had a record year producing 1,017,137
Platinum ounces in concentrate

¢ We have 4% females in our workforce

s We have 26.5% Hlistorical Disadvantaged South Africans (HDSAs)
in management

*  We have reduced the lost time injury frequency rate (LITFR) by
mare than 30% from 18.1 to 12.5 per million man hours worked
* We have implemented a standardised and integrated risk

management and incident reporting system at our Marikana
operations

= We reduced our severity rate by 14% to 13.8 days

¢ The Lonmin Medical Scheme was launched with the aim of
optimising healthcare delivery to employees and their dependents

s We conducted a community health survey in Marikana and Limpopo

*  We commenced construction of the Wonderkop Clinic in the Greater
Lenmin Community {(GLC) to provide community members with
access to primary healthcare

° Wa tosted 3,236 patients through the Voluntary Counselling and
Testing (VCT) Programme and exceeded the target of 550 patients
on Anti-Retroviral Therapy (ART)

* We retained ISC 14001:2004 certification at our Marikana
operations.

¢ We achieved standardisation and integration of Health, Safety and
Environmental risks and incident reporting with GRISK

+ We completed a Life Cycle Assessment for Platinum, Palladium
and Rhodium

s Wa implemented overhead irrigation systems on operaticnal
tailings impoundments to reduce the ambient dust levels

* We invested US$2.8 milion in community development projects
through the Lonmin Development Trust

* Archbishop Emeritus Desmond Tutu visited the Marikana
operaticns and Lonmin Development Trusts projects

e The GLC Lentswe group created a 2040 Charter providing a
common vision for prosperity through sustainable development
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Performance against 2006’s targets

X We did not achieve an average score of 3.7 on the SHEC Standards

v We maintained current management systems’ certification
at all sites

v We paid zero fines and received no prosecutions for the
reporting year

v We have complied with the principles embodied in the United
Nations Declaraticn for Human Rights (UNDHR)

X We had 6 fatalities, 4 at Marikana and 2 at Limpopo
v We achieved our targeted 30% reduction in LTIFR

v We achieved our target of 500 patients on the ART programme

v We achieved our target of testing at least 2,000 additional
employees for their HIV status

v We completed a rehabilitation programme at our
Viakfontein property

v We have contributed 1% pre-tax profits {3 year rolling average
basis) to community development
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Targets

We will achieve an average score of 3.7 on the SHEC Standards
by September 2007.

We will maintain current management systems’ certification at
all sites in 2007

We will receive zero fines and prosecutions for the reporting
year 2007

50% of our total procurement spend will be with HDSA suppliers
by September 2009

We will comply with the principles embodied in the UNDHR
in 2007

We will increase the literacy rate of our employees to 50% by
September 2002

We will ensure that senior and middle management comprise
40% HDSA employaes by September 2009

We will increase female participation in mining to 10% by
September 2012

We will achieve zero fatalities at each of our operations for the
year to September 2007

We will reduce our LTIFR by 30% by September 2007

We will have at least 700 patients on ART by September 2007

We will have counselled and tested at least 80% of our
employees for HIV through the VCT Programme by
September 2007

We will have successfully revegetated all the dormant tailings
dams on Lonmin property by September 2007

We will reduce the Company's aggregate fresh water
consumption by 10% per unit of production by September 2007

We will reduce the Company's aggregate enargy consumgtion
per unit of production by 10% by September 2007, thereby
reducing the greenhouse gas emissions by 5%

We will reduce the aggregated Company waste per unit of
production by 20% by Septermber 2007

We will contribute 1% of pre-tax profits to community
development for the year to September 2007 (3 year rolling
average basis)

www.lonmin.com




Profile and Scope of Report
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Location of our operations in South Africa

Profile

Lonmin is the world's third largest producer of Platinum Group
Metals {(PGMs). Listed on the London and Johanneshurg Stock
Exchanges, our main operating subsidiarigs in which we have an
82% interest are Western Platinum Lid and Eastern Platinum Ltd.
We also hold a 23% interest in Incwala Resources (Pty) Ltd, our
black economic empowarment partner, During 2006, Incwala
Resources (Pty) Ltd, was included as an 18% shareholder in
Lonmin Platinum Limpopo when we transferred the Limpopo
operations into Western Platinum Ltd.

Our cperations comprise a mining complex, Smelter and Base
Metal Refinery near Marikana in the North Wast province of
South Africa. Qur Limpopo operations are located near
Polokwane in South Africa's Limpopo Province, while our
Precious Metal Refinery is located at Brakpan in the Gauteng
Province of South Africa. We provided smployment to 23,804
fuli-time employees, and 6,932 contractors.

Our exploration portfolio consists of a managed operation in
Gabon, jeint venture (JV) partnerships with Boynton in South
Africa (near Loskop in Mpumalanga Province}, Goldstream in
Tanzania and Inco and Wallbridge in Sudbury, Canada.

In the 20086 reporting period, ending 30 September, we produced
1,807,044 ocunces of PGMs of which 847,795 were Platinum,
133,374 ounces were Rhedium and 439,075 ocunces were
Palladium. We also produced limited amounts of copper, nickel
and rare earths which in sum do net exceed 8 % of our total sales.

The primary markets for PGMs are for auto catalysts and
jewallery. In addition, there are growing applications in the
manufacture of computer hard drives, flat glass and
petrochemical refining.

Report Scope

This report ‘Building Value' presents an ovarview of our contribution
to sustainable development for the 2006 financial year, ending 30
September, and follows on from the 2005 Report, Transformation
Delivers’. The report has been compiled “in accordance with” the
Global Reporting Initiative's 2002 guidelines since 2002 and is

for the second year being compiled using the Mining and Metals
Sector Supplement. The report is compiled in such a way that it
incorporates feedback from various stakeholder groups, such as
communities and fund managers and should be read in conjunction
with our Annual Repart for the year endad 30 Septernber 2006.
Readers are also encouraged to refer to earlier reports for
comparative purposes as well as the website at www lonmin.com.
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O Erploration Projects

Location of our exploration aclivities

The report covers the activities of the Marikana, Limpopo and
Brakpan cperations as well as exploration activities. Although no
major changes have occurred in the business since 2005, this is
the first year that Limpopo's data has been incorporated into our
Group data. We have provided a data table on page 33 to enable
comparisons. Where we refer to the Marikana operations, this
includes the mines, Smelter, Base Metal Refinery (BMR) and the
Precious Metal Refinery (PMR) as well as data from the Pandora JV.
The Pandora JV is owned 42.5% by Lonmin, 42.5% by Anglo
Platinum, 7.5% by the Bapo Ba Mogale Mining Company and 7.5%
by Mvelaphanda Resources. The Pandora JV is managed by
Lonmin and its data is part of the Marikana operations due tc the
nature and gecgraphic location of the operaticns. Data from our
exploration activities and offices in Johannesburg and Londen are
not included in this report. Efficiency ratios, where calculated, are
based on cur annual preduction of 1,807,044 ounces of PGMs,
while financial data is reported based on an exchange rate of R6.63
per USS$. Data is reviewed quarterly for inclusiveness and accuracy.

The Chief Executive Committee, South African Executive
Commmittee, Risk and SHEC Committee and the Lonmin Pic Board
has reviewed the contents of this report and are satisfied that it
presents a balan¢ed and comprehensive account of the
Company’s activities.

Since 2002, we have annually commissioned an independent
assessment of our data and reporting systems. In 2008, this work
was undertaken by KPMG. We use the findings and
recommendations of these processes to improve our systems,
step-up internal contrals and review procedures. KMPG's report,
which describes the selected performance indicators and their
conclusions, is published on pages 34 to 35.

We are committed to continual improvement in our systems, data
completeness and accuracy and will strive for consistancy in the
parameters reported to ensure comparability. However, as we
continue to review and improve our systems, changes may occur
in the definitions or data collection methodologies. Where this
leads to a restatement or recalculation of data or altered reporting
defintions this is clearly stated in the text or table.

As a member of International Council for Mining and Metals
(ICMM} we use the GRI as a framework to ensure completeness
in reporting ow material risks in a transparent way that is
comparable, inclusive and relevant to cur stakeholders. We have
applied the principles of materiality and relevance, transparency,
clarity, timeliness and auditability of this repeort in providing a
balanced averview of our sustainable development activities.

A GRl index is provided on page 31.




Corporate Conduct
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Governance structure

Lenmin is led by a Board of Directors, comprising 3 executive
and 6 non-executive Directors, who normally meet six times a
year. The non-executive Directors, all of whom are judged to
be independent, are drawn from a variety of backgrounds and
have a diverse range of skills and experience. The Board is led
by an independent non-executive Chairman, Sir John Craven,
while the role of the Chief Executive, Brad Mills, is to provide
leadership to the executive team in running the business.

To support it in its work, the Board has established four
committees: an Audit Committee, a Nomination Committee,

a Remuneration Cornmittee and a Risk & SHEC Committee,
each of which is chaired by an independent, non-exacutive
Director. As a company listed on the Londan Stock Exchange,
Lonmin is subject to UK corporate governance rules including
the Combined Code. Further information on how we govern
and manage our business is given in the Corporate
Governance section of our Annual Report, available

on our website.

The Board is ultimately accountable for corporate performance
and provides strategic direction to the business. Power and
responsibility for managing the Group’s operations is delegated
by the Board to the Chief Executive, who takes primary
responsibility for the management of sustainable development
and safety performance. The Chief Executive is supported by a
Chief's Executive Committee, comprising the three executive
directors and five senior executives, including the President,
Lenmin Platinum. The President is in turn supported by a South
African Executive Committee, which includes the leaders cf
each of the Group’s EBIT-accountable business units —
Marikana Mining, Limpopo, Process Division and Shared
Business Services — as well as a number of senior managers
representing business-critical functions. To ensure full alignment
and enrolment of management with the Group’s strategy and
objectives, the Company has established the Chief Executive’s
Forum, a grouping of around 65 senior managers representing
all parts of the business.

SHEC forms an important part of the Group’s reward strategy,
with all of the senior executive team having a material propartion
of their annual bonus based on objectively-measured
performance against key objectives.

Hossy Shaft, Marikana

Executive Remuneration alignment with SHEC outcome

Execulive Directors

Bonus Actual
opportunity on payment
ofter for target for the

periormance year
Component and constituent elements (%) (%)
SHEC matters (15%) _
Number of fatalites 2.5 _ 1.9
Improvement in lost
time injury frequency rate 2.9 34
Community satisfaction 5.0 7.5
Environmental risk 5.0 0.0

Business Conduct

The Lonmin Charter forms the definitive foundaticn for the way
we operate with values set out in the Charter confirming Lonmin's
commitment to the highest siandards of sustainable business
and social practices. We expect all Directors, employees and
contractors to ebserve these standards and live the values in the
conduct of the business.

The Board of Directors approved a Code of Business Ethics in
2004, which has been widely communicated across the Group
and to certain stakeholder groups. The Code was developed after
reviewing equivalent documents in other leading natural resource
businesses, and sets out the minimum standards of behavicur that
we axpect of our people. During 2007, Lonmin intends to build on
internaticnal benchmarking work already undertaken and review its
Code of Business Ethics, primarily to better align it with the Charter
values. The Code is supported by a Whistleblowing pelicy which
confirms explicitly that anyone reporting matters of concern will not
be penalized or victimized as a result.

We would expect concerns about unethical business practices to
be reported through line management in the first instance.
However, there may be occasions when this is inappropriate, or
the person concerned fears retribution. The Group has therefore
established an external, independently-run whistleblowing
service, available to all employees and cther stakeholders.

www.lonmin.com
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Corporate Conduct

This can be accessed by phone, e-mail, fax or post. The tol-free
- phone number is widely advertised throughout Lonmin. Trained
operators are able to handle calls in any of South Africa’s eleven
official languages, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. Contact can
be anonymous or confidential at the caller’s choice and the
Cornpany is only advised of the nature of the issue, not the
identity of the person making the report.

All call reports are summarized to the Company's Ethics Committee,
comprising the company secretary, an external lawyer and a
practising accountant, both of whom are based in South Africa.
The Committee assesses each call report and judges whether the
matter is worthy of investigation and, if so, whether this should be
conducted intermally or externally. They then review the results of all
such investigations and make recommendations to management
as appropriate. During the year, 42 reports were received, of which
36 were felt to warrant action. To date, 8 have been resolved and
28 remain under investigation. A number of initiatives are planned

- fo improve the investigation furnaround time in 2007,

Any mining activity involves developing the natural resources of
the host country, and therefore inevitably requires regulatory
permitting. This makes engagement with government inevitable
and necessary. The Group is aware that political contacts can
easily be misinterpreted and construed negatively, and a formal
relationship map is therefore maintained at Board level which
regulates the levels of executive who undertake these contacts
at different levels of government. Lonmin is precluded in law
from making political donations, and there have been no
breaches of this policy reported for the period under review.
Lonmin also supports and adheres to the standards of the
Extractive Industries Transparency Initiative (EITT).

Members of the Risk and SHEC Committee

Management of safety, health, environment and
community matters

Al SHEC matters are managed by a Vice Prasident (VP), SHEC
and Security, who enjoys equal status with, and does not report to,
the EBIT leaders of our operations. His remit extends to include
security as this is closely aligned with many of the SHEC issues for
which he is responsible. He heads a specialist unit which includes
experienced specialist managers for each of the areas within his
remit. The VP, SHEC and Security is a memier of the South
African Executive Committee and is also a member of the Board’s
Risk & SHEC Committes.

The role of the SHEC unit is to set Group standards and draw up
policies and procedures, provide support to the business and
undertake regular audits and other investigations to assess compliance
and identify root causes of failure. Grucially, it is the leaders of each of
the EBIT business units who are responsitle for the implermentation
of our agreed SHEC strategy and standards within the Group.

Risk & SHEC Committee

The Committee comprises the Chief Executive, two non-exacutive
directors and four senior executives who have significant
experience in mining, finance, risk and SHEC matters. During the
year, the Committee was chaired by the Chief Executive, but from
10 Novermnber Dr Sivi Gounden, a non-executive director of the
Company, has taken over the chairmanship.

The Committee meets four times annually and has a formal
remit which requires it to moniter the effectiveness of the
Group’s attitudes and approach toward, and performance in,
managing risk and provide advice to management on risk,
SHEC and corporate social responsibility matters generally.
Altendanca at these meetings was as follows:

Attendees 9 Nov 9 Mar 26 Apr 20 Sept
2006 2006 2008 2006
Brad Mills, Chief Executive L e R v v
Michael Hartnall, Non-Fxecutive Director v 4 oV v
Chris Davies, VP Exploration & Growth S v X v X
Ben Fourie, VP SHEC and Security v X ' A
Jack Jones, VP Business Development . K4 - 4 v
Claire Combes, VP Risk & Treasury v v v x
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Key Audits and Assurance

Audit Frequency

Internal team with an external lead auditor that audits the 15 SHEC
Management Standards. The audit protocol includes a rating system that

guantifies the outcomes on a scale from 1 to 5.

BVQI audits 1SO 9000, 1SO 14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001 systems twice a year.
Independent third party assurance is provided by KPMG, the Company’s

external auditors, on selected data and information reported in the Sustainable
Development Report. This assurance includes the integrity of data
management systems, compliance with the reporting requirements of the nine
elements of the Mining Scorecard and compliance with the ‘in accordance
with' statement of the GRI.

Description
SHEC management Annually
standards audit
Systems audit ' Bi-annually
Independent Assurance Annuallly
Environmental legal compliance Annually

Internal tearm with external lead auditor that audits all relevant environmental

legislation at operational sites. Findings are tracked monthly and reported o

the Board.

Auditing and Assurance

A nurmber of SHEC related internal and external audits are
conducted annually to provide the Risk & SHEC Committes with the
assurance that policies, standards and procedures are implemented
at operational level. These measures complernent the activities of
the governance structures to provide management and the
executive with the assurance required to confirm that adequate risk
controls are in place to ensure sustained or improving performance
or alternatively identify short-comings for timeous remedial action.

Risk management
Risk management is central to good governance and, in many
ways defines our ability to operate profitably and sustainably.

Lonmin has formalized the structure around risk analysis and
reporting. There is a central Risk Management team supported
by approximately 70 nominated individuals in the business units
who act as Business Area Risk Champions and Operational Risk
Champions within their business unit. The formalized structure
has initiated a further embedding of risk management into the
business as business units are aware of their risks, are managing

these risks and are taking due consideration of risks {and their
mitigation) when business decisions are made. In addition 1o this,
we apply the precauticnary principle and conduct risk and
impact assessment to determine the impact of projects on the
wellbeing of our employees and the local communities.

Benchmarking Performance

As a member of the ICMM, we share a common platform with
industry to communicated challenges and engage with
stakeholders on issugs of common concern at an international
level. Our performance, trangparent reperting and engagermsant on
sustainability issues with a wide range of stakehelders has aliowed
us to remain a member of the Dow Jones Sustainahility Index and
the FTSE4Good Index series. These indices provide benchmarks
for analysts who subscribe to the belief that sustainability-driven
companies creale long-term sharehclder value by taking a mere
systematic and holistic approach to the management of
sustainability risks and the realization of sustainability-related
opportunities. The rating process for these indices aiso provides
the company with valuable insight regarding the sustainability
issues of its peers and international stakeholders.

.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Engaging with stakeholders
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Communications with stakeholders

Over time we have come to learn how integral relationships with We piloted a cascade communication system at three of our

our stakeholders are to managing our business risks. How Marikana operation sites during the year. The cascade system

much these relationships contricute to our ability to realise was designed to provide direct communication with every

apportunities that allow us to contribute to sustainable employae at every level in a personafized way. The system proved

development through informed decision-making. We continue to be a huge success and a feedback loop was developed as

to evolve the structures necessary to facilitate meaningful part of the cascade process. Feadback gathered at one site

engagement with an increasingly diverse stakeholder base. outlined preblems with material availability and a Six Sigma
project was launched to address the shortcomings. We are

Employee Communications currently rolling the cascade system out across the business.

We have maintained three principal means of communicating

with our employees, including those not represented by Supplier Engagement

organised labour: All suppliers are expected to respect our Lonmin Charter

e | onmin's intranet; principles, adhere to the Lonmin Code of Business Ethics and

¢ “Platinum Conversations”, a staff newsletter: and operate within the principles of ISO 14007 Environmental

¢ the Chief Executive's Newsletter, a monthly letter, translated Management Standard.

into four languages, which deals with safety, performance,
operational issues and strategic matters.

Key stakeholders in 2006: How we listen, learn and engage

Employees and their Ongoing Trade unicn negotiations, shop-floor briefings, newsletters, internal publications,

representatives ~ dialogue notice boards, internal television broadcasts, health and safety meetings

Invastors Ongoing Annual results prasentations and investor road shows, investor site visits,
dialogue targeted engagement initiated by either side, shareholder feedback,

o o _ media interaction L
Governments and Ad hoc Direct engagement on targeted issues, meetings with local, provincial and
regulatory authorities dialogue national authorities partnerships on environmental and social priorities, lobbying

e . .o _______ viaindustry associations .
Contractors and Suppliers Ongoing Commercial interviews, tender processes, open days, safety inductions,

. dialogue _ performance reviews
" Internaticnal Orgamsatlons Participate Members of ICMM, International Platinum Association (IPA) and

—eoo . indialogue_____ Platinum Guild intemational (PG L
Communities Ongoing GLC forums, open days, consuliation with community leaders on targeted
L _ dialogue _issues, surveys, environmental and soctal impact assessment {ESIA)

NGOs Ad hoc Engagement on environmental and health issues, stakeholder surveys,
dialogue involvement in partnerships; environmental and social impact assessment

o o ~ (ESIA) processes S
industry Bodies Participate Participation in Chamber of Mines, ICMM and the IPA

in dialogue
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We are committed to engage with our suppliers and contractors
and regard this as an integral part of meeting the Mining
Charter requirements on HDSA procurement. We have a
progression plan in place to achieve the targets set out in the
Lonmin Platinum Black Ecencmic Empowerment Procurement
Policy and our Social and Labour Plans. At the same time we
engage with, and mentor HDSA suppliers on how to jein our
vendor lists, dealing with contractual issues and how to run a
successful business.

Engaging with communities

In respense 1o the community perception surveys that were
conducted in 2004 and 2005, the GL.C Lentswe Forum was
formalised in March 2005. The GLC Lentswe Forum takes place
every second month at which the Chief Executive’s Forum
members and representatives from the various communities
around the Marikana and Limpopo operations are encouraged
to share their experiences and concerns. The GLC Lentswe
Forum is the cornerstene of transformation process between
the Company and the GLC. This forum has shown the
development of a more trusting relationship between Lonmin
and its communities over the last two years. In partnership with
the Lonmin Development Trust (LDT) a community-based
newspaper, the ‘GLC Voice' is published every second month
to provide information and progress on community
development projects in the GLC.
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South African Mining Charter

We have made significant progress in our journey to meet the requ

irements of the broad-based Socio-economic Charter for

the Mining Industry, which was formerly published on 13 August 20C4. Through our Sccial and LLabour Plans we have committed

to accelerate implermentation of the Mining Charter requirements a

s this speeds up our transformation initiative in defivery of the

Lonmin Charter. The Charter Scarecard, designed to provide a framework for transformation within mining companies, consists
of nine key socio-economic elements that will drive sustainable empowerment for all stakeholders. We regard the transformation
process as a fundamental necessity in the future of mining in South Africa and will continue to seek opportunities and partnerships

to ensure enduring value for cur shareholders, employees and the

communities that host our operations.

Lonmin's support for the objectives of the Mining Charter and its response to the goals are summarised in the table below:

Human Resources Development
Achieved in FY 2006

Targels FY 2009

Has every employee been offered the opportunity to be functi

being trained?

* 48% of employees estimated to be functionally literate and
nurmerate (National Qualifications Framework NQF 1 and
above) in 2006.

1,681 employees have attended ABET in 2006 at a cost
of R5.3 million.
Have career paths and skills development plans been implem

Anintegrated workplace skills development plan has been
submitted to the Mining Qualifications Authority (MQA) and
the Lonmin training facilities are accredited by the MQA.

Expenditure on skills development and training for 2006
amounted to R81.9 millicn or 5.6% of payroll.

46 bursaries and scholarships provided and valued at
R3.3 million.

onally fiterate and numerate by 2005 and are employees

* An accelerated Adult Basic Education and Training (ABET)
rollout to afford employzes the opportunity to reach NQF
level 1 by 2012,

ented for HDSA employees?

» A Skills Development Plan for all employees will be fully
implemented by 2009.

+ Budgeted expenditure on skills development of R94.8 million
or 5% of payroll.

+ We wili continue to provide 50 bursaries and schelarships
per annum.

Has the company developed systems to mentor empowerment groups?

+ Systems for annual identification of coaching and mentorship

reguirements are being put in plage. A diverse group of
trained mentors and coaches are being identified and wil
undergo training to ensure that they support HDSA
employees. Currently, there are 69 employees who have
internal and external mentors.

» |tis intended to have up to 670 employees with a formal
mentoring programme in place by the end of 2009. Of these
143 will be in the Management levels, while 527 will be within
the learnership levels.

Employment Equity
Achieved in FY 2006

Targets FY 2009

Has the employment equity plan been published and has annual progress in meeting this plan been reported?

* Yes, Lonmin has submitted its employment equity plan

annually to the Department of Labour since 2003, This report
contains annual updates on progress for the past year. The
last progress update took place in October 2006.

To accelerate and oversee employment equity, transformation
committees have been set up at all cperations. These
committees were established in consultation with employee
representatives and are responsible for guiding employment
equity progress.

Has a plan been established to achieve HDSA participation in

implemented?

* Yes, a plan was developad in 2004 to achieve this target,
Current breakdown of management
Total HDSA (including White Female)
Total HOSA (excluding White Female)

37.4%
26.5%

Has the company identified a pool of talent and is this being f

= We have a successicn and talent pool/mentoring
system in place.

* The employment equity plan will continue to be revised and
updated t6 ensure that it is in line with existing legislation.

The employment equity plan will continue to be revised and
updated to ensure that it is in line with existing legislation. The
transformaticn committees at operational and corporate level
will continue to guide the implementation of employment equity.

management of 40% within five years and is the plan being

+ Management targets for 2009
% HDSA (including White Female) 45.4%
% HDSA (excluding White Female) 38.2%
The target for HDSA participation by 2009 is 44.4%, which is
abave the legislative requirements.

ast-tracked?

« Succession and talent pool/mentoring systerm to remain
in place.

Has a plan been devised to achieve participation by women of 10% by 2009 and is this plan being implemented?

¢ Current workforce consists of 4% women.

* Aplanisin place t¢ achieve 10% Women in Mining by 2012,
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Migrant and Foreign Labour
Achieved in FY 2008 ) Targets FY 2008
Has the company subscribed to government and industry agreements to ensure non-discrimination against foreign
migrant labour?
* Yes the company subscribes to these agreements as well as * We will increase proportion of local labour making ug our
to Intarnational Labour QOrganisation (ILO} Conventions which workforce.
accord foreign and migrant workers equality before the law.
Lonmin paolicy is to reduce the number of migrant workers by
focussing on local recruitment.

Mine Community and Development
Achisved in FY 2006 Targets FY 2009
Has the company co-operated in the formulation of integrated development plans {IDPs) and is it co-operating with
government in implementing these plans in communities where mining takes place and in labour-sending areas
¢ Lonmin maintains the GLC Lentswe Forum to facilitate on- + Community forums remain in place.
going engagement with public and private sector  Sponsorships of a minimum of 21 GLC learners per annum.

stakeholaers. Close co-operation is maintained with relevant o Mantain L in Devel Trust (LDT) fund i

authorities over Corporate Social Investment (CS)) initiatives aintain Lonmin Development Trust ( ()) unding dccording

in implementing development plans to existing production-based formula of 1% of pre-tax profits
: (3 year rolling average basis).

* g; Sggg%%r&hlps for learners from the GLL at a cost * We will maintain supplier rating systems according to Mining

Charter requirements.

« | DT initiatives focus on education, poverty alleviation, H\V/AIDs
and sustainable livelihoods and target both mining cemmunities
and to a lesser extent remote labour-sending areas due to the
limited proportion of migrant workers in our workforce.

* We introduced a system of rating suppliers according to
Mining Charter requirements.
Has the company engaged with local mining communities and those in labour-sending areas?

+ We have ongoing engagement with public and private sector » Continued engagement with mine host communities and

stakeholders for both its mine host communities and labour labour sending communities on developmental challenges.
source communities. ¢ In partnership with TEBA Development the Lonmin

« We committed resources for our ongoing partnership with The Development Trust will continue to identify and deliver
Employment Bureau of Africa (TEBA) Development. Beneficiaries projects based upon the labour-sending areas common
over the three years include, retired mineworkers receiving development needs.

home-based care, aver 2,000 livestock farmers in Lesotho,
maize farmers in the O.R. Tambo and Alfred Nzo Districts of the
Eastern Cape, learners who benefited from the construction of
additional rural schoac! facilities, and approximately 10,000
community members who beanefited from investment in water
supply infrastructure.

Housing and Living Conditions

Achieved in FY 2006 Targets FY 2008

For company provided housing, has the mine in consultation with stakeholders established measures for improving
housing, including the upgrading of hostels, conversions of hostels to family units and promotion of home ownership
options among employees?

*  About 8,000 employees are currently accommodated in hostels, * To complete the conversion of all hostel accommaodation by
We have committed io convert all hostel accommaodation into 2011 at a cost of R46.5 million. We have agreed a transaction
family accommodation and are entering into partnerships to with Rand Merchant Bank which will allow us to offer
facilitate the provision of adequate land for the construction of employees a spectrum of homeownership options, including
residential units on extensions of existing towns. 2,000 residential, rental accormmodation. By 2011 we should no longer
serviced stands were proclaimed in Marikana extension 2, be involved in the provision of hostel accommodation to
with 300 residentiat units already commenced. our workforce.

* We nave engaged with local authorities and stakeholders to
integrate our housing initiatives inte local integrated
development plans for the existing municipalities of the GLC
area. Beyond the provision of housing options o our
workforce, we hope to facilitate the uniocking of public funds
for the extension of affordable housing options 1o the
informal settlements in the area.

Have measures been established to improve the nutrition of mine employees? What has been done to improve nutrition?

Show plan to progress this over time and demonstrate that plan is being implemented.

» |In 2006, menu engineering was revised and greater choice * We will continue to monitor the menu for calorific and
introduced. Using the government nutritional information nutritional values te maintain the desired balance between
reguiremeants, we monitor the menu for calorific and proteins, carbohydrates and vitamins, and seek ways to
nutritional values t¢ maintain the desired balance between improve nutrition and cooking staff training until all hostels
proteins, carbohydrates and vitamins. Kitchen staff were have been converted.

trained to reduce wastage and to adjust their cooking to
better preserve vitamins during the process of cocking for
large numbkers of people.
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South African Mining Charter

Procurement
Achieved in FY 2006

Targets FY 2008

Have current levels of procurement from HDSA companies in terms of capital goods, consumables and services been

identified?

* In 2004, we introduced an HDSA Procurement Progression
Plan. Current HDSA spend is R460 million or 14% of capital
goods procurement spend, R787 or 24% of total
consumables procurement spend and R164 or 5% of all
services procuremant spend. Total HDSA procurement is
R1,411 million up from R1,010 million in FY 2004.

s 40% procurement from black-owned and BEE companies.
= 60% procurement from HDSA companies.

Has commitment been made to a progression of procurement from HDSA companies over a three-five year time frame in
terms of capital goods, consumables and services, and to what extent has this been implemented?

s Wea have introduced a system of identifying, rating and
accrediting suppliers according to Mining Charter
requirements.

* Continued use of various initiatives to access register
HDSA and SME vendors to increase HDSA
procurement spend.

¢ Utilisation of third party screening and auditing functions to
establish and maintain HDSA credentials of accredited suppliers.

Ownership and Joint Ventures
Achieved in FY 2006

Targets FY 2009

What is being done to ensure the company achieves 15% HDSA participation in terms of ownership of equity or

attributable units of production by 2009 and 26% by 20147

e Incwala Resources (Ptyj Ltd owns 18% of Lonmin's operating
subsidiaries giving the company an 18% interest in our mines
at Marikana and Limpopo and our Process Division.

« ‘We are currently undertaking pre-feasibility on the Pandora
JV in which Mvelaphanda Resources and Bapo Ba Mogale
Mining Company each hold a 7.5% stake.

» We are undertaking pre-feasibility on the extension to our
existing Limpopao property. This extension covers the
Dwaalkop property which is a 50/50 joint venture between
Lonmin and Mvelaphanda Resources.

s To identify and structure opportunities that will allow Incwala
Resources (Pty) Ltd and other potential BEE-partners to
assume a more operational role in prejects.

Beneficiation
Achieved in FY 2006

Targets FY 2008

Has the current level of beneficiation been identified?

+ Through our support for the PGl we continue to promote
demand for Platinum jewellery at a global level.

+ Continued support for the PGl to promote demand for
Platinum jewellery at a global level.

Has the baseline level of beneficiation been identified and has the company noted the extent by which this will have to

increase to qualify for an offset?

* We acted as a catalyst in bringing together all role players to
form a working group that commissioned the baseline study
to determine the possibilities of beneficiation for the PGM
industry in South Africa. Apart from beneficiation through
purification and fabrication, the study will also investigate
‘sidestream beneficiation” which is the increased local
manufacture of capital goods provided by the mining
supplier sector to the mining industry. The study is due to be
completed by mid 2007.

» The baseline study commissionad in this year will establish
quantitative baselines for each of the PGM's assist in
developing the levels of potential offsets.

Does the company report annually on progress made in meeting its commitments?

* Since 2003 we have reported annually an progress made in
terms of the guidelinas sat out by the Mining Charter Scorecard.

» Toreport, as part of our Sustainable Development Report,
progress made in terms of the guidelines set out by the
Mining Charter Scorecard and to continue using the
GRI guidelines in the compilation of our report,
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Economic Growth
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As the world's third largest producer of Platinum, the challenges Value-added statement for Lonmin Plc as at

of sustainable development require us to think about our financial 30 September 2006
performance more broadly than the traditionaf financial indicators
and shareholder returns. While our growth strategy is to achieve 2006 2005 %

1.4 million ounces of Platinum production in 2012, we realise that US$m JS$m Variance
our operations have both direct impacts, defined as the monetary ~ Net cash generated
flow between the Company and resources, as well as indirect Customers, consumers and
impacts, defined as the intangible bengfits that flow from the investment income
secondary affects that mine developrnent, mine payrolls and Cash received for products 1,611 1,107 455
investment brings for other businesses. The value-added Cash returns on investment 1 2 '
statement presents the wealth that we created during 2008. Suppliers'
. e Cash payments for materials

Creating opportunities locally - , , and services purchased (429) (361) (18.9)
The unique physical and chemical properties of Platinum, Cost of borrowinas (32) ©9) (10.3)
Palladiurn and Rhodium, such as unparalleled catalytic g :
properties create a variety of industrial applications, the Net cash flows 1151 719 06
principal one being in catalytic converters which reduce noxious  Cash distributed
emissions of motor vehicles. Platinum's lustre, colour and Human capital (salaries
strength also continue to attract the jewellery sector and and benefits) 406 313 29.6
through its support of the PGI, Lonmin continues to promote Social capital 3 7 {55.7)
demand for Platinum jewellery at a global level. The IPA of - Housing _ 19 (100.0)
which we are a member promotes the use of PGMs in industrial -D .

o . ‘ onations 0.3 0.9 (66.7)
apphcapons, such as in hydrogen fuel cells as a cost-effective — The Lonmin Development
alternative to conventional energy sources. Trust 28 49 (33.3)
in South Africa, Lonmin engaged with Mintek, the Department Government taxes 186 80 132.5
of Mineral and Energy and other PGM producers to creaie a Directors remuneration 8 10 (10.0)
waorking grouo that commissioned and funded the baseline Sharehclders distribution 124 102 21.6
study to determine the possibilities and policy options for Cash retained for sustainable
beneficiation for the South African PGM group metals industry. growth 423 207 104.3
Apart from PGM beneficiation through purification and the Net cash distributed 1.151 719 650.0
fabrication of converters and jewellery, the study will alsc ’ -
investigate ‘sidestream beneficiation’ which is the increased N.B. Please note the 2005 comparative directors remuneration varies from the
local manufacture of capital goods provided by the mining 2005 accounts due to inclusion of US$1.7 million of share opticns attributable to
supply secter 1o the mining industry. The study is due to be change in Accounting Policy in 2006.

completed by mid 2007. 1 We have a 30 day payment policy on services and procurement.
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We remain committed o Zero Harm to people and continue
to promote this as an achievable outcome in the behaviour

of management and employees. The Lonmin governance
framework provides strong support for safety management
from policies to operational procedures and we will continue
our drive to improve our safety programmes to ensure the
safety of all cur employees and contractors. Our programmes
are also devised to address safety leadership, a key component
in our drive to address at-risk behaviour and improve safety
awareness. Our key targets for achieving Zero Harm are

set out below:;

Implementation of

Fatalities LTIFR Fatal Risk Protocols

2006 Zero 12.5 100% at Marikana Mining and

Process Division

2007 Zero 8.7 100% at all managed operations

2010 Zero less than 1 100% at all managed operations

Performance 2006

We made significant progress in our safety performance during
the year achieving a 31% improvement in our LTIFR to 12.5 per
million man hours worked. These figures include our Limpopo
operations which reported an LTIFR of 8.1. We also reduced the
severity of our accidents with our severity rate down 14%

o 13.8 days.
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Safety break at K3 shaft, Marikana

Four work-related fatalities occurred at our Marikana Mining
operation, compared to the 6 work-related fatalities in 2005.
The newly acquired Limpopo operations reported two fatalities.

Dale Name of the deceased

Our sincere condolences to the family and friends’
of the following employees who lost their lives in
work-related accidents during the year '

Incident

Marikana

Oct 2005 Sechaba Maknanya Fatally injured in a fali of

Feb 2006 Moses Mbharmali

Feb 2006 Petrus Komane

Aug 2006 Avelino Bila

ground at Hossy Shaft.
Fatally injured in a trarmming
_accident at Rowland Shaft.
Fatally injured in an accident
at K3 Shaft, while operating a
cutting torch.
Fatally injured at K3 Shaft
when a material car derailed.

Limpopo _
Apr 2006  Gustavo Marapate
B Chelengo
Jun 2006  Kemoele Mokhethi
Nkopane

Fatally injured in a fall of
ground incident.
Fatally injured in a fall of
ground incident.




Group LTIFR Performance
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The implementation of Fatal Risk Protocols (FRPs) is a key
component in our drive to reduce fatalities. At Marikana Mining
and the Process Division, implementaticn has centinued as &
pricrity, but the restructuring of the organisation into EBIT units

has led to some delays in implementation in new business units.

We have therefore not met our target of 100% implemeantation
in 2006. The FRPs were also rofled-out to the Limpope
operations and implementation has already commenced to
ensure that all managed operations have fully implemented
FRPs by September 2007.

Safety is an integral part of our risk management processes
and the Lonmin SHEC Management standards provide a risk
based management framework for safety management at our
operations. Our line managers are accountable for the
implementation of these standards and responsible for the
implementation of supporting systems and procedures. We are
taking further steps to increase safety leadership and in the
process we are building on the achievements of the previous
year. To achieve our goal of Zerc Harm, cur focus during 2006
was on the following:

Visible Felt Leadership

860 Employees were given Visible Felt L eadership training.

A senior management safety day was facilitated by a DuPont
consultant with the objective to improve management visibility
in the workplace and to train senior managers on how 1o
conduct audits and inspections in the workplace that will
augment our goal of Zero Harm,

SHEC management standards

An internal audit team was trained to improve the quality of our
internal audits on the implementation of the Group SHEC
Management Standards. We did not achieve the target of 3.7
for the SHEC Management Standards mainly due tc the
restructuring of the organisation. The target for 2007 is to
achieve a score of 3.7,
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Incident analysis 2006
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Incident Analysis

We introduced a rigorous and consistent incident analysis
methodclogy and are placing an uncompromising emphasis on
incident analysis, incident follow up, the prevention of repeat
incidents and effective communication on lesson learned
across the Grougp.

Safety Systems

Safety system fallures were improved by implementing the Six
Sigma methodology at operational sites. We focused this year
on improving our safety data management system as a result of
the discrepancies raised by KPMG in 2005. Apart from daily
and monthly reconciliation between the hospital and the safaty
departments at each operaticn, we have also designed and
implemented GRISK, a centralised risk management and
incident reporting system that will further improve the integrity
of the safety data. No discrepancies were found during the
2006 assurance engagement.

Focus areas for 2007
Our safety strategy includes critical programmes to ensure that
we achieve Zero Harm by eliminating all deaths and serious
injuries. The strategy outlines the centinued commitment of
Lonmin to the systems and processes already in place with
renewed focus on the components identified through incident
root causes analysis. The key themes of the 2007 programme
are;
* Strengthen safety leadership and accountability
* |mprove the incident analysis process and incident
close-out time
Review and manage all critical and high level risks.
Full implementation of the Fatal Risk Protocols.

www.lonmin.com




Health

We continue to promote the wellness of sach employee by
integrating occupational health and hygiene with medical health
care delivery. We realise that appropriate health care in the
areas where we operate is often not accessible to our
communities and we have committed to facilitate partnerships
between government and local communities to deliver cost-
responsible health-care to our employees, their dependants
and the GLC.

We follow the ILO’s code of practice on recording and
notification of occupational accidents and diseases. We also
comply with the requiremenrts of local health legislation. We
promote the participation of unions and management in joint
health and safety committees to discuss and debate issues of
concern and share lessons learmed. Relevant policies are
endorsed by unions and employee representatives.

Healthcare delivery

Lonmin offers health care to employees through cur mine
hospital and clinics and through external health care providers.
We registered the Lonmin Medical Scheme in January 2006.
This scheme optimises the management of health care delivery,
with the added benefit of dependants gaining access to
medical care. This scheme was rolled out to the Limpopo
operations in March 2006.

At our Gabon exploration sites, we assessad the health and
safety challenges facing our operations in remote areas and
prepared a risk management plan, addressing medical and
emergency support, On-site first aid training is provided to key
personnel and a specialist medical evacuation service was
contracted to provide immediate assistance in the event of
trauma or other medical emergencies.

Occupational Hygiene and Health

Our approach to occupaticnal hygiene and health is risk-based
and we continue to identify and minimise workplace health
hazards and exposure. We conducted baseline and follow-up
risk assessments at the Marikana and Limpopo operations. We
have captured the findings in an integrated risk register enabling

i =
Andrew Saffy Hospital, Marikana

us to link workplace exposure to an individual's health profile.
Qur targets for 2007 are to develop guidelines and action plans,
based on the heatth rigk assessments that were conducted in
2006 to ensure quality standardised control measures across
the Lonmin Group.

At our PMR in Brakpan, Platinum salt sensitivity is an identified
occupational risk and a Six Sigma project, aimed at reducing
exposure to Platinum salts through potential exposure pathways,
such as poor ventilation, spillages, protective equipment

and emergency procedures, has led to increased controls

to limit exposure.

Occupational Medical Surveillance and Fitness to Work
All employees exposed to hazardous work environments or
required to perform arduous tasks, are regularly screened in
order to allow early detection of occupaticnal diseases, prevent
potential further deterioration and to ensure they have the
physical ability to work in specific environments. As fitness for
underground mine work is difficult to assess through just a
physical examination, all new recruits and some current
employees, whose fitness is of concern, are sent to a work
capability facility for evaluation. There they undergo tests
simulating the underground working environment to assess
whether the individua! is able to perform productively and safeiy.

Noise and Noise Induced Hearing Loss

Noige in the workplace and noise induced hearing loss (NIHL) are
the most significant occupational risk and disease at our
operations. Noise attenuation of equipment and the wearing of
hearing protection remain the key challenges to prevent hearing
loss. Ta this end the induction training module on hearing
conservation was revised and updated, while a review of noise
zone signage has ted to standardisation of signage across our
operations. Customiged hearing protection devices are being
explored for high risk individuals exposed to very high noise levels
and those showing a deterioration in the percentage hearing loss.
A multidisciplinary working group was established within the
company to implement the Mine Health and Safety Council's
milestones to eliminate NIHL from the industry.
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During 2008, 570 cases of NIHL were acccepted for
compensation. We alse manitor the percentage hearing shift
from a baseline to ensure that these employees are removed
from high risk areas and deployed in lower risk areas. This year
520 cases had a shift of 5.0 tc 7.4% hearing loss while 342
cases had a shift of 7.5 t0 8.8%.

Dust and Respiratory Diseases

Pulmonary tuberculosis remains the most significant respiratory
ilness prevalent amongst employees and was historically
associated with silica dust exposure. The silica levels at our
operations are below the occupational exposure limits and most
of the TB casas are concomitant to HIV infection {please refer to
HIV/AIDS Section on page 18).
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HIV is a serious disease with wide-spread socio-economic
ramifications. In Scuth Africa, where the public debate
concerning treatment options is ongeing, we remain committed
to minimising the spread and impact of the pandemic and
associated opportunistic diseases 1o both our employees and
the communities that host our operations. Lonmin considers
HIV/AIDS as a serious but manageable risk and for a number of
years has adopted a series of proactive programmes that
promcte preventative and treatment measures. We aim to work
in partnership with stakeholders to deliver cost-rasponsible
health-care which will meet the needs of our employees, their
dependants and the GLC. We track criticai milestones, to
ensure that we achieve this cutcorne. These are set out below:

2006 550 patients on ART

20067 80% plus uptake by employees on VCT
700 employees on ART

2010 All AIDS patients in GLC tc have access to
appropriate treatment

Business Risk Monitoring

We continue to monitor the HIV risk on the sustainability of the
business and conducted an update on the HVW/AIDS impact
analysis that was performed in 2003. The analysis enables us to

Patients on ART

HIV postar campaign promotes VCT and ART

make informed decisions, assists in financial planning,
compares our experience to industry peers and determines the
impact of HIV ¢n the long-term sustainability of the operations.
The results presented in the graph below, conclude that the
disease does not pose a significant threat to the long-term
sustainability of our operations. The relatively low proportion of
HIVAAIDS related costs as a fraction of labour cost does not
pose a risk to the business.

Awareness & Education

Routine education on T8, STls, HIV and ART is provided to all
employees at the annual mine induction. This is reinforced by
awareness campaigns conducted at the operations throughout
the year. A campaign will typically provide materials and further
education on these diseases at an information booth, and will
involve a local artist, sports star, leader or HIV project group to
present a visual display such as industrial theatre or a talk on
the issues. All awarenass campaigns are equipped to facilitate
and provide easy access to VCT and are extended to
community members.

Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT)

In 2004, we undertock to test 100% of our workforce for HIV by
2010. In 2005, 1,615 employees (representing 8% of the
workforce) were tested followed by 3,236 in 20086, This
progress is encouraging and indicates an increase of more than
10%. We will continue to improve access to counselling and

HIV/AIDS Impact Analysis
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testing facilifies and 1o focus on encouraging employees 1o be
aware of their HIV/AIDS status.

Anti-Retroviral Therapy (ART)

The Lonmin ART programme has presented some axcellent
results since inception in January 2004. To date, 898 perscns
have been offered treatment on the programme and wes have
exceeded our targst of having 550 patients on the ART
programme by end of the 2006 financial year. The challenge
remains to monitor and manage the number of patients that
voluntarily discontinue treatment, through active follow-up and
counseling. Currently each year around 12% of patients that
enter the programme have voluntarily discontinued treatment,

Tuberculosis (TB)

Early identification of employees with TB is essential in
preventing the spread of this opportunistic disease. In addition
to an annual medical examination and chest X-Ray, we routinely
screen high-risk groups of employees for TB, namely those that
have tested positive for HIV and those that share living quarters
with a newly-diagnesed T8 patient. Once a patient has been
diagnosed with TB they get “directly observed treatment” at the
mine clinics for a period of two months, meaning that they
report to the clinic daily to take their medication under
supervision, This is essential if the development of treatment
resistant strains of TB are o be avoided. Patients defaulting
from treatment are traced through human resources 1o their
homes where a workplace HIV unit leader or community peer
educator will counsel them to resurme treatment. We have
diagnosed 338 patients with TG during 2006, compared to 288
in 2005.
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Human Capital

Qur employeas are key stakeholders in determining the success
of our business. Our human resources objective is to attract,
develop and reward people who subscribe to the Lonmin
Values, to invest in their development and to reward them for
high performance. Against the backdrop of continued strong
demand for scarce mining skills, we have initiated a number of
programmes and projects to retain staff and ensure sustainable
access to the broad range of skills necessary for us to grow our
business.

Demographic Profile

We empioyed a total of 30,736 people during the year. Of these
23,804 were permanent employees and 6,932 contractors. Cur
workforce remains mainly South African with nearly half locally
recruited employees. A notable feature of our workforce is that
23% continue to be nationals from the surrounding countries,
principally Lesotho and Mozambique.

Group labour turnover in 2006 {(permanent employees)

New engagements/recruitments 1,424
Resignations {363)

Deaths {not work related) (231
Dismissals . sBn
Retirements {80) )
Retrenchments (133)

In line with our Human Rights Policy, which sets cut our support
for the principie of freedom of association, Lonmin continues to
engage with all representative unions among its workforce. In
South Africa some 73% of our permanent employees are
members of registered unions as detailed in the table to the right.
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K3 shaft, Marikana

Membership of recognised unions and associations
as at 30 September 2006.

% Number
NUM 640 15300
Solidarity ) 1.7 406
UASA 40_ . 962
Other unions 34 817 )
Nen-unionised 270 6,319

Legal strikes, or the threat thereof, by recognised trade unions
are a legitimate instrument of employer/employee engagement
and relations with organised labour have remained positive. We
have a formal grievance procedure and 21 claims were
submitted to the Commission of Congiliation, Mediation and
Arbitration of which 14 were resolved in the Company’s favour.
The New Era Labour Agreement that was signed in 2005 paid
out R22 million of bonuses in the year or around 2.6% of an
average underground team member’s annual basic wage.
Lonmin faced no significant industrial action in 2006 and we
lost 0.2% of our total man days due to minor work stoppages.

Diversity and Opportunity

Lonmin supports the principle of equal oppertunity for all and
our support for the objectives of the Mining Charter and the
South African Employment Equity Act is set out in the table on
pages 10-12.



Employee Development

ABET remains a naticnal priority in South Africa and an integral
part of our business strategy. QOur business tanguage is English
and we believe that functional literacy is the foundation
recessary for all our employees to work safely, develop their
skills and realise their potential, Currently, we estimate 48% of
our workforce te be functional literate and numerate. We are
committed to providing every employee the opportunity to
undertake literacy and numeracy courses by 2009, and to equip
all employees with at least a ABET level 1 qualificaticn. In 2006,
1,681 candidates attended the ABET course.

Housing

We continue o provide hostel accommodation and catering 1o
some 8,000 employees, the majority of whom are migrant
workers, The company has committed to convert all hostel
accommodation inte family accommadation within 5 years and to
withdraw from being a provider of accommaodaticon to its
employees. Housing provision is based on a partnership with
financial institutions and local government to facilitate the
provision of adequate land for the construction of residential units
on extensions of existing towns. To this end, we have agreed a
partnership with Rand Merchant Bank which will allow us to
deliver 6,000 new employee hcmes over a five year period.

A total of 2,000 residential, serviced stands were proclaimed
during 20086 in Marikana extensicn 2, with 300 residential units
already constructed. Converting the hostels to family units wilt not
take the shape of simple de-densification, but where necessary
include the demolition or construction of flats to expand
accommodation options near existing, established communities.

Underground training centre, Marikana

Currently we provide catering for employees living in hostels. We
continue to monitor the menu for calorific and nutritiona! values to
rmaintain the desired balance between proteins, carbohydrates
and vitaming, and seeks ways to improve nutrition and the
training of kitchen staff until all hostels have been converted.

Human Rights

South Africa is a signatory to the UNHDR, which in turn is
reflected in the country's Constitution. Lonmin has incorporated
its support for the principles of the Declaration into its Code of
Business Ethics. Apart from the normal channels of reporting
unethicai or questionable behaviour through managemeant,
indepandent whistle-blowing channels exist for cur stakeholders.

Our workforce, suppliers, contractors and their employees are
regutarly informed and reminded of the existence of these
reporting channels and are briefed on how to report breaches of
our ethical code, corporate values, and alleged incidences of
bribery or corruption.

Training pregrammes ¢n human rights form part of the induction
training for all staff. Human rights-related modules form part of
the Lonmin security staff overall training, covering topics such as
procedures for search, arrest and charging, the taking of urine
samples for drug tests, and interaction with public and private
security providers, All security staff, including contractors have
received this training.

www.lonmin.com




Community

Our operations have social, environmental and economic
impacts in the communities and regions that host them. We
are committed to building trusting relationships with these
communities to a point where our presence is valued and
seen as a benefit to the local community. Our relationships
are characterized by mutual respect, active partnership and
long term commitment to ensure a sustainable future for
communities, both during the life of mine and post closure.

Performance 2006

2006 can be described as a turning point for Lonmin’s
community engagement and development initiatives. Not cnly
was the Lonmin Development Trust transformed to respend to
the challenges facing our communities, but we also had
breakthrocugh results with the community transformation
process, commonly referred to as the Lentswe process. The
community perception survey presented us with an unbiased
assessment of the success of our work over the past two years
and we will continue 1¢ build on the projects to deliver on our
commitments.

Changing the face of the LDT

The Lonmin Development Trust, established in 2003, is Lonmin's
sccial development arm with the vision to create partnerships with
the communities that host our operations, building thriving
communities that live in harmony and supporiing the South African
national sustainability ambitions. Our programmes are designed te
create distinctive solutions in sustainable community development
through partnerships and are aligned with Lonmin’s vision, the
South African government’s ambitions and community needs.

Since 2004, Lonmin has been committed to allocate around
1% of its pre-tax profits {rolling 3 year average basis) for
community development.

4 1%, N — R

Archbishop Emeritus Desmond Tutu visits the site of the new Wonderkap Clinic

We achieved this target again this year with a US$2.8 million
spend on various community development initiatives. Our main
areas of spending were business development and education.

Community spend - 2006

15%

BN

14%

80% \ 5%
1%
2
1%
2%

Environment
O Sports, art and culture
O Discretionary spend

O Business development
O Education
O Health and weliness

* ” Safety and security [ Administration

Pricritising needs

Threugh the annual stakeho!der perception survey, key findings
provided insight into the challenges facing our communities.
These included inter alia, extrerne poverty, unemployment,
inadequate basic infrastructure, access to health facilities and
education. These issues have been addressed through specific
targets that the community has identified and prioritised as needs
in the fields of education and skills Gevelopment, health and
environrment, safety and security, sports and culture and most
importantly sustainable economic development.
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Specific projects were identified under each area and working
groups, censisting of community members and Lonmin
employees have already delivered on these targets as
summarised beiow:

Education, training and skills development

* Winter School programme cffering special tuition in Maths,
Science, Accountancy ang English for 480 learners

» Learnerships, bursaries and scholarships in the community

Health and Environment

» Building a new 24 hour health clinic at Wonderkop

* |Implementing the Eco-schools Programme in 5 schools
in the GLC

+ “Project Mission Vision” eye testing of GLC school children
and providing spectaclas to those with impaired eye sight

Safety and Security

» Instaliation of two Apollo lights in each of the GLC's 7 communities

« Encouraging community enroliment in community
policing forums

Sports, Art and Culture

s Lonmin Super 16 Soccer Tournament involving 650 learners
from the GLC schoois

Employment

» Developing two recruitment centers within the comrmunity
and successfully placed approximately 900 local community
members in jobs with Lonmin

Small Medium and Micro Enterprise Development

s Implementing a “mentorship programme” involving larger
vendors adopting smaller companies for the purpose of
mentering and business skills transfer
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Community

Creating a joint future through Lentswe

Key to the success of any community develepment programme
is the involvement of all stakeholders to ensure the necessary
ownership required for long-term success. In 2005, we realised
that this was a specific shortcoming in our appreach and
developed a community engagement programme, known as
the Lentswe process, a Tswana word for “voice”. A highlight this
yedr was the design of the Lentswe Charter, a commaon vision
that was created by the community, Lonmin management and
the LDT. The Lentswe Charter articulates the vision, missicn
and values that will guide development in the community to the
year 2040 and focuses on sustainability, leadership,
cooperation and ownership.

An outflow of the Lentswe process was the identification and
training of a number of candidates, recruited from the local
community, to participate in a life and business skills
programme. Eight programme graduates are participating as
breakthrough development trainers within the LDT.

Rural Development

In our on-going partnarship with TEBA Development, we are
continuing to provide funding for projects in key historical
labour-sending areas to improve the guality of life of
communities in Lesotho, Mozambique and the Eastern Cape.
These projects aim to improve the lives of retrenched

Lonmm Development Trust art prolecl

rmineworkers and their surrounding communities. In partnership
with other mining companies we co-fundad the mentoring of
2,228 livestock farmers in the Mafeteng District in Lesotho to
improve the quality and quantity of their wool production. In
South Africa’s Eastern Cape 4,658 farmers werg trained in the
more efficient use of seed, improved fertilizer use and were
exposed 1o the growing of different food crops.

We also continued cur partnership with AngleGold Ashanti to
suppert the annual refurbishment of 300 water boreholas for
rural villages in Lesotho. As a result of the project, which has
been running since 2001, more than 22,480 households have
gained reliable access to safe water, and a similar project
started with our support in Mozambique in 2002 has seen
about 7,200 households, schools and rural clinics benefit from
access to safe water and repaired pumps.

Limpopo

During the year the LDT also considered various options for
integrating the Limpopo operations into its activities. While a
plan is being defined it would appear that given the complex
community structures in the area and the difficult relationships
between various parts of the community and the previcus
owners, that cur community development work will be handled
separately at Limpopo.
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Environment

Our strategic goal for 2010 is to cause zero permanent harm to
the environment and to be recognised as an industry leader in
environmental management. We believe that effective
environmental performance encourages greater efficiencies and
higher standards of performance at our operations and
minimises risks to our business, contributing directly to our
long-term success.

The Environmental Centre of Excellence, comprising a group

of 5 environmental specialists is responsible for designing the
Company’s environmental strategy, setting standards and
developing guidslines and procedures to ensure standardisation
across the Group. The Lonmin Charter, SHEC Policy and SHEC
Management Standards provide the governance framework for
environmentai management and the line managers at the EBIT
units are accountable for managing the environment through
the SHEC Management Standards and the ISO 34001
management system.

Compliance

Legal compliance is measured annually through external audits
and performance assessments of Envircnmental Management
Plans. The annual third-party legal compliance audit for 2006
has prasented findings that relate to the separation of clean and
dirty water, infrastructure within the 100 year flood line, violation
of general waste management procedures and exceedances in
dust fall limits at Marikana and Limpopo. The findings alsc
included non-compliance due to delays in government approval
processes and changes in legislation.

incidents in 2006

Middlekrall Dﬂrﬁ. Marikana

We continue to endorse the regulatory framework of host
countries as a minimum operating requirement.

No environmentally related legal actions were brought
against the company or its operations and no penalties
or fings were paid.

Management Systems

The SHEC Management Standards provide the baseline for all
our system requirements. All sites have 1ISO14001 certification,
with the exception of the newly formed Shared Business
Services Unit and our newly acquired Limpopo cperation. Both
these cperations are in the process of ISO 14001
implementation to abtain certification by Septermber 2007.
Ongoing training and awareness on the benefits of sound
environmental management remains a key. Training consists of
an induction module, 1ISO 14001 awarenass training, senior
management training on legislation and specialist training on
various topical issues facing the Company. The environmental
module of the induction training will be reviewed with the aim on
standardisation for the Group during 2007.

Incident reporting is mandatory at all our operations as this is
an indicator that cur systems are functioning optimally,
generating data with integrity and creating appropriate rectifying
or remedial responses. Level three, and higher rated incidents
are reported to the Risk and SHEC Committee. Two level three
incidences (see glossary for definition) were reported during
2006 as detailed in the table.

January 2006 Rowland corner sump overflow to environment
Frequent discharge of effluent from the Smelter Complex into a sump that overflows to the environment and
ends up in the Maretlwane Stream.

February 2006 Karee sewage plant discharge to Brakspruit river

As a result of heavy rains storm waiter collected against the berm wall. Water was forced back into the Sewage
Plant, subsequently resulting in a power failure. The quantity of water collating within the area of the Sewage
Plant increased, causing all sewer and effluent within the sewage ponds to overflow. A decision was then made
to break the berm wall to allow the build up of effluent water to escape into the Brakspruit contravening the

National Water Act and the conditions of the permit of the Plant.

www.lonmin.com
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Environment

Materials stewardship

We completed a “cradle-to-gate” life cycle assessment (LCA}
stugdy for PGMSs in 2005 and followed that up with a “cradle-to-
grave” life cycle assessment on Platinum, Palladium ad
Rhodium in 2008. The aim of the LCA study was to obtain a
better undarstanding of the material and waste flow in order to
set futura continual improvement targets on eco-efficiencies for
water, enargy, hazardous material and emissions. Platinum's
unique catalytic abilities are utilised to clean exhaust gases,
while its resistance to corrosicn and ability to withstand high
temperatures means that products containing PGMs are more
durable, resulting in less waste. At prasent, more than 90% of
new vehicles produced ir the world are fitted with autocatalysts.
Platinurn is also at the forefront of technology to produce power
with limited direct emissions. Fuel ceils produce power without
the combusticn of fossil fuel and as such do not emit toxic
gases. Furthermore, PGMs are recyclable, and their high
relative value encourages their recovery from spent equipmenit.
Up to 90% can be recovered when appliances containing
PGMs reach the end of their life. The largest quantity of supply
of recycled PGMs cormes from the recovery of metal from spent
autocatalysts.

Water

We continue to seek ways in which we can improve the
efficiency of our water usage and the reduction of our impact on
the region’s freshwater resources. We do not draw water
directly from groundwater sources for operational use at
Marikana, but instead source it from the regional water utility. At
Limpopo we draw water from a well field. Total freshwater intake
for primary activities for the Group was 10.8 million m?,
comprising 9.8 million m? for Marikana (see graph for
comparable data) and 1 milion m? for Limpopo. The efficiency
for operational use for the Group was calculated at 3.9 m¥%PGM
oz, which shows an increase compared to 2005. Excluding the
impact of Limpope the increase year on year is 5%, With
regards to the target for 2007 of a 10% efficiency improvement
that was set in 2003, a 4% improvement has been achieved.
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Autocatalysts

A further initiative aligned with this target is the zero

uncontrolled surface discharge policy that was adopted in

2005. Progress achieved during the year under this policy

centributed to the continuous upgrade of recycling systems by:

e focusing on the separation of clean and dirty water through
property-wide storm water management plans by including,
increasing the storing capacity of grey water hotding facilities;
and

e upgrading dysfunctional or under-designed waste water
treatment plants into a series of centralised waste water
treatment plants. A major feature of the plant upgrade is the
ability of the new facilities to convert the sludge into
compost, This, in some instances, will be mixed with other
organic wastes generated on site or with wood chips for
utilisation on the tallings dams to enhance vegetation
establishment and growth.

Freshwater intake
at Marikana operations
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We continue to sample 130 surface and 209 ground water
menitoring points on a monthly and quarterly basis respectively
and use the data to continuously assess our impact on the
receiving water bodies due to surface discharges and seepage
from waste sources. Coupled with seasonal biomenitering
reports and annual groundwater modelling, we are comfortable
that we have adequate controls in place to monitor the risk that
our operations pose on the receiving environment.

In 2005, we reported on the ground water contamination that
occurred at the PMR, due to a leaking liner in the acid dams. In
consultation with the authorities, it was decided to conduct a
tier-two risk assessment to determine the ecological and health
impact on the stream, if the zinc and chlcride “plume” reach the
river in an estimated 150 years. We have also investigated
various options for remediation and presented this to the
autherities for approval.

During 2005, we commenced with an environmental and socio-
economic impact assessment to convert water registered for
agricultural use to industrial use. These water rights were
acquired through land acquisitions but were of no value to the
operations. After a comprehensive stakeholder engagement
process, where concerns, mainly from the local farming
community, were raised, the assessment was submitied to the
relevant government departments for appreval.
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Environment
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Energy and Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Our response to the challenge posed through climate change
continues to focus on energy efficiency. As a member of ICMM,
we are aligned with the position paper on climate change and
endorse the commitments made on cur behalf. We have
adopted the Greenhouse Gas Protocal Initiative to report
emissions and set targets in 2003 to reduce GHG per unit of
production by 5% by the end of financial 2007 and reduce
energy use per unit of producticn by 10% over the same period.
Our greenhouse gases are calculated from the direct and
indirect fossil fuels that are consumed and are expressed as
CO, equivalents {CO,-e). We produced 1644 kilotonnes of
CO,-ein the year,

Total energy use for operational purposes for the Group was
7,384 TJ, comprising 6,881 TJ for Marikana (see graph for
comparable data) and 503 TJ for Limpopo. The efficiency for
the Group was calculated at 4.1 GJ/PGM cz. We realize that
with the current expansion projects, the target for 2007 to
reduce energy consurmption by 10% might not be achieved and
we have set an interim target to have energy efficiency plans in
place for each business unit by Septermber 2007.

Electrical energy is purchased from the national grid and
accounted for as an indirect energy source while fossil fuels
burned cn-site and by cur vehicle fleet, transporting
cencentrate to the refineries are regarded as direct energy
sources. The transportation of products from suppliers and
gmployees living off-site are excluded. Although mining and
refining is energy intensive, we continue, in collaboration with
South Africa’s national electricity supplier, ESKOM, to explore
opportunities to further improve energy efficiency. Lonmin is
alsc investigating options that would allow it to benefit from the
opportunities offered to organisations implementing green
house gas reduction, or cleaner development meachanism
projects. Initial results are encouraging and we expect to report
quantifiable achievernents next year.

Air quality

We continue to moniter and manage the adverse impacts

of our operations on ambient air quality based upon the data
generatad by our air quality monitoring network located both
on-site and in the adjacent communities. This monitoring
network which comprises total inhatable particulate monitors,
SO, analysers, dust-buckets and passive badge samplers,
enable modeling of fugitive 5O, emission, total suspended
particulates and total inhalable particulates.
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The average sulphur dioxide emissions from the smelting
process for 2006 were recorded at 7.4 tonnes per day, wellin
the specification limits of 8.3 tonnes per day stipulated in the
permit. While the suiphur fixation plant at the Smelter continues
to remove SO, gas effectively 10 below legally required levels,
the presence of SC,, acid mist and dust continues to make the
Smelter stack emissions highly visible. Investigations into
options for complete SO, removal were initiated during 2005
and a pilot project will be tested during 2007.

The new National Envircnmental Management Air Quality Act
was introduced in Scuth Africa in Septermber 2005. While the
previous legislation, which focused on point-source emissions,
remains partially in force, the new Act legislates ambient
average concentrations measured at specific intervals. Lonmin
received its new permit under the Act in August 2006. The new
permit requires improved control of fugitive emissions and will
he addressed in a phased approach. This seeks 1o first capture
the fugitives through a network of hoods and extractor systems,
then measure and quantify these emissions so that the effect
on ground level concentrations can be determined through
modelling. Once this is accomplished, appropriate treatment
options will e investigated.

During 2005, we reported on the project that was undertaken
to reduce the ambient dust levels caused mainly due to dust
liberation from dormant tailings impoundments. The
methodclogy was improved and rolled out to ather dormant
dams across the Marikana property, 10 such an extent that all
our dormant dams are now revegetated. Revegetation varies
from a combination of indigenous grass species to pilot plots
with test crops to assess the soil capability for post closure land
use. We have further implemented methodologies, such as
overhead irrigation systems, to successfully suppress dust from
the operational dams. These measures proved highly
successful as no community comglaints on dust were received
during the year. Beyond the tailings dams, heavy vehicle traffic
on unpaved roads on our property has been identified as the
principal source of localised dust release. As many of the
unsurfaced roads on our Marikana operation are public roads
our ability to impose dust supprassion measures is constrained.
A Six Sigma projact is currently being conducted to identify
particular areas where management intervention could realize in
a reduction in ambient dust levels.




Waste

We do not produce, transport, import or export any waste
categorised as hazardous under the terms of the Basel
Convention. We also do not make use of any outside source of
waste material in the mining, and processing of PGMs.

Those wastes classified as hazardous by South African legislation
continue to be disposed of through registered third parties to
registered disposal sites. As part of the processing of ore,
significant amounts of mineral wastas are generated and placed in
waste rock dumps and tailings impoundments. Other than these
mineral wastes, the principal waste product by volume, is calcium
sulphite generated at the Smelter's sulphur fixation plant as a Hy-
product of preventing sulphur dioxide from being vented to
atmosphere. To date this material had either been disposed of at a
hazardous waste facility or in temporary holding dams on site. Due
to the costs associated with disposal to a registered hazardous
waste site, we commissioned research into alternate disposal or
re-use options for this material. This year the most feasible option
appeared to be the backfiling of defunct mine areas. A pilot project
to dispose of the calcium sulphite binder-mix by backfiling was
initiated during the year and approval was obtained from the
relevant government authoriiies to proceed.

A Six Sigma project launched in 2005, together with a waste audit
undertaken in May 2006 showed that waste measuring systems
required improverment. To date waste volumes taken to landfill had
been estimated visually based upon container numbers and this
was no longer considered sufficiently accurate. The situation was
compoungded by our simultaneous use of four separate waste sites
in the Marikana area. During 2006 the decisicn was taken to
reduce the number of permitted landfill sites cperated by the
Marikana operations from four to one. The installation of a weigh
bridge facility at the remaining site will ensure the most accurate
methedolegy of quantifying waste generation. With waste stream
separation operational at the Marikana operations and the disposal
of general wastes now restricted to the Mooinooi landfill site
recycling opportunities will be further enhanced through
centraiised waste sorting and recycling at Moainooi which will
create employment opportunities for the community.
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The remaining three sites have been placed con care and
maintenance and will be menitored for dust generation or
potential seepage until such time that we require the space.

Land stewardship and Biodiversity conservation

Our focus this year was on compiling a spatial plan of on-site
infrastructure combined with a biodiversity sansitivity study and
cultural and heritage resources survey. Our focus for 2007 is to
commence with the development of an integrated landscape
level guideline gocument for the Marikana site that will consider
land capabhility, land use, surface infrastructure, biodiversity
sensitive areas, cuitural sites, housing developments, future
mining plans, encroachment of adjacent communities and
continucus rehabilitation of impacted land. We currently have
10,830 hectares under management at the Marikana operaticns
of which 2,914 hectares are categorised as natural area. We
rehabilitated 206 hectares of the opencast mining cperaticns at
Marikana during 2006.

We endorse the ICMM principle on biodiversity conservation
and realise that biodiversity is a business risk which requires
active management. As part of each site land management
plan, vulnerable or threatened species were identified and
management or protection strategies such as invader plant
management programmes put in place. We also participated in
the development of the ICMM's Good Practice Guidance for
Mining and Biodiversity . We do not operate in a biodiversity
sensitive area, except for our exploration operation in Gabon,
where part of the reconnaissance permit for drilling in the Meonts
de Cristal area, falls within the Monts de Cristal National Park.
We are currently conducting a secio-economic and
environmental impact assessment to ensure that our activities
have no permanent impact on the social structures, biodiversity
or the image of the Naticnal Parks Authority. Consultation with
government institutions and NGOs in this regard is key and we
will only commence activities cnce approval has been received.
We further believe that through partnerships with specialist
groups and NGOs, we can contribute 1o the long-term
sustainable development of the country, by providing alternative
economic develepment opportunities.
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Mine closure

We have compiled closure plans for all our operational sites and
submitted those to government authorities for approval.
Financial closure proviston is determined, based on a 40 year
life of mine and funds are annually contributed to the Lonmin
Platinurm Rehabilitation Trust Fund. Although the remainder will,
in terms of South African law, be provided for in annual
contributions of equal amounts, we have in place a bank
guarantee to satisfy the Department of Minerals and Energy
requirement to cover the shortfall in the Fund. In terms of South
African law the Trust Fund is operated as a separate legal entity
and the varicus departments at Lonmin are actively working to
put in place projects and operational procedures that could
result in reductions of this tctal liability over time.
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| Our 2006 Sustainability Reporting Against GRI Indicators

Indicator Reported Page
Vision and Strategy
1.4 Staternent of the organisation’s vision and strategy regarding its contribution to Sustainable Development Yes 1
1.2 Statement fram the CEO (or equivalent senior manager) describing kay elements of the report Yos 1
Profile
2.4 Name of reporting organisation Yes 1
2.2 Maijor products and/or services, including brands if appropriate Yes 4
2.3 QOperational structure of the organisation Yes 4
2.4 Description of major divisions, operating companies, subsidiaries and joint ventures Yes 4
2.5  Countries in which the crganisation’s operations are 'ocated Yes 4
2.6 Nature of ownership; legal form Yes 4
2.7 Nature of markets served Yes 4
28 Scale of tha reporting organisation Yes 4
29 List of stakeholders, key attributes of each, and relaticnship to the reporting organisation Yes 8
210 Contact person for the repert, including email and web addressas Yes Inside front cover
2.11  Reporting period for information provided Yes i
2.12  Date of moslt recent previous report Yes 1
213  Boundaries of report and any specific limitations on the scope Yes 4
2.14 Significanl changes in size, structure, ownership, or products/services that have occurred since the previous report Yes 4
216 Basis for reporting on joint ventures, partially owned subsidiaries, leased facilities, outsourced operations, and other situations that can

significantly affect comparability from period to period and/ocr between reperting organisations Yes 4
216  Explanation of the nature and effect of any re-statements of information provided i earlier reports, and the reasons for such re-statement

{e.g. mergers/acquisitions etc.) Yes 4
217 Decisions not to apply GRI principles or protocols in the preparation of the report Yes 4
2.18  Criteria/definitions used in any accounting for ecanamic, environmental and social costs and benefits Yes 4
219  Significant changes from previcus years in the measurement methods applied o key economic, environmental and social information Yes 4
2.20  Policies and intemal practices ta enhance and provide assurance about the accuracy, completeness, and reliability that can be placed on the

sustainability report Yes 4
2.21  Policy and current practice with regard to providing independent assurance for the full report Yes
2.22  Means by which report users can obtain additional information and reports about economic, environmental, and social aspects ¢f the

organisation’s activities, including fatality-specific information {if available) Yes 4

Management systems
34 Governance structure of the crganisation, including major commitiees under the beard of directors that are responsible for setting strategy

anc far oversight of the organisation Yes 5
3.2 Percentage of the Board of Directors that are independent, non-executive direciors Yes 5
3.3 Process for determining the expertise Board members need to guide the strategic direction of the organisation, including issues related

to environmental and sacial risks and opportunities Yes 5
3.4 Board-level processes for overseaing the organisation's identification and management of economic, environmental and social risks

and opportunities Yes 6
35 Linkage between executive compensation and achievement of the organisation's financial and non-financial goals (e.g. envirenmental performance,

labour practice) i Yes 6
3.6  Organisational structure and key individuals responsible for oversight, implementation and audit of ecanomic, environmental, social, and

related policies ves 8
3.7 Mission and value statements, internally developed codes of conduct or principles, and policies relevant to economic, environmenial, and

social performance and the status of implementation Yes 5
3.8 Mechanism for sharehclders to provide recommendations or direction to the Board of Directors Yes 8
39 Basis for identification and selection of major stakeholders Yes 8
3.10 Approaches to stakehclder consuliation reported in terms of frequency of consultations by type and by stakeholder group Yes 8
3.1 Type of information generated by stakeholder consultations Yes 8
3.12  Use of information resulling from stakeholder engagements Yes B
3.3 Explanation of whether and how the precautionary principle is addressed by the organisation Yes 25
3.14  Externally developed, voluntary economic, environmental, and social charters, sets of principles, or other initiatives to which the

organisation subscribes, or which it endorses Yes
3.15  Principal memberships in industry and business associations, and/or national/international advocacy organisations Yes 7

3.16  Policies and/or systems for managing upstream and downstream impacts including:
- supply chain management as it pertains to outsourcing and supplisr environmental and social performance; and

- product and service stewardship initiatives Yes B
3.17  Reporling organisation's approach to managing indirect economic, environmental and social impacits resulting from its activities Yes 13
318  Major decisions during the reporting period regarding the iocation of, or changes in, operations MN/A 4

3.19  Programmes and procedures pertaining o economic, environmental and social performance including discussion of:
- priority and target setting; major programmes to improve performance; internal communication and training; performance monitoring

—internal and external auditing; senior management review Yes 25
3.20 Status of certification pertaining to economic, ervironmental, and social management systems Yes 25
Economic
EC1  Net Sales Yas 13
EC2 Geographic breakdown of markets No
EC3 Cost of all gocds, materials and services purchased Yes 13
EC4  Percentage of contracts that were paid in accordance with agread 1erms, excluding agreed penalty arrangements No
ECS Total payroll and benefits broken down By country or region Yas 13
EC6 Distributions to providers of capital broken down by interest on debt and borrowings, and dividends on all classes of shares, with any areas

of preterred dividends to be disclosed Yes 13
EC7 Increase/decrease in retained eamings at end of period Yes 13
EC8 Total sum of taxes of all types paid, broken down by country Yes 13
ECO  Subsidies received broken down by country or region N/A
EC10 Donations to community, civil society, and other groups broken down in terms of cash and in-kind donations per type af group Yes 13,24
EC11 Supplier breakdown by organisation and country No
EC12 Total spent on non-core business infrastructure development Yes 13; 24
EC13 The organisation’s indirect economic impacts Yes 13
MM1  Revenue captured, managed and distributed Yes 13
MM2  Values added disaggregated lo country level Yes 13
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Our 2006 Sustainability Reporting Against GRI Indicators

Indicator Reported Page
Environmental
ENT  Total materiais used other than water, by type ) ' T No =~
EN2  Percentage of materials used that are wastes from sources external to the c_ompany ) } __ Yes 29
EN3  Diract energy use segmentad by primary source - } C Yes 28
EN4  Indirect energy use B - 7 o Yes 28
ENS  Total water use T c T ) Yes 26
ENG  Location and size of land owned, leased, or managed in ticdiversity rich habitats Yes 29
ENY  Description of major impacts on hiodiversity associated with activities and/or products and services in tarrestrial, freshwater,

and marine environments ) Yes 29
EN8 Greenhouse gas emissions - ) T o o - Yes 28
EN9  Use and emissions of czane-depleting substances - o Yes 28
EN10  NOx, S0x, and other significant air emissions by type o o T _ Yes 28
EN11  Total amount of waste by type and destination o ) Yes a3
EN12  Significant discharges to water by type ) o Yes 25
EN13  Significant spills of chemicals, olls and fuels in terms of total number and total volume ) o o No
ENt4  Significant environmental impacts of principal products and services i ' Yes 26
EN15 Percentage of the weight of products sold that is reclaimabie at the end of the product’s useful life and percentage that is actually reclaimed Yes 28
EN16  Incidents of and fines for non-compliance with all applicable international declarations/conventions/treaties, and national, sub-national, regional,

and local regulations associated with environmenta! issues o o Yes 25
EN17 Initiatives to use renewable energy sources and 10 increase energy efficiency B . Yes 28
EN18 Energy consumption footprint of major products ’ i No
EN19  Otherindirect energy use and implications, such as organisational travel, product lifecycle rmanagemant, and use of energy intensive materials ~ No
EN20 Wwater sources and related ecosystems/habitats significantly affected by use of water _ ) o No
EN21  Annual withdrawals of ground and surface water as a percentage of annual renewable guantity of water available from the sources _ No
EM22  Tota recycling and use of water ' o No
EN23 Total amount of land owned, leased, or managed far production activiies or extractive use Yes " 26
EN24  Amount of impermeable surface as a percentage of land purchased or leased No
EN25 Impacts of activities and operations on protected and sensilive areas Yes 29
EN26 Changes to natural habitats resulting from activities and operations and percentage of habitat protected or restored Yes 29
EN27 Objectives, programmes and targels for protecting and restoring native ecosystems and species in degraded areas Yes 29
EN28 Number of IUCN Red Data List Species with habitats in areas affected by cperations ) ’ B Yes 29
EN29 Business units currently operating or planning operations in or around protected or sensitive areas Yes 29
EN30  Other relevant indirect greenhouse gas emissions 7 B _ No
EN31 Al production, transport, impert, or export of any waste deemed hazardous under the terms of the Basel Gonvenfion (Annex 1-3, 5]~ Yes 28
EN32 water sources and related ecosystems/habitats significantly affected by dlscharges of water and run-off B Yes 27
EN33  Performance of suppliers relative to environmental compenents of programmes and procedures described in response to Governance ’

Structure and Management Systems section No
EN34 Significant environmental impacts of transportation used for logistical purposes . No
EN35 Total environmental expenditures by type No
MM23 Total amount of land owned, leased and managed for production activities or extractive use . Yes 29
MM3  Biodiversity actian plans - sites that requires, percentage of sites with plans, criterla for plan, key components in plan N Yes 29
M4 Percentage of materials derived from secondary materials ] ) B Yes 29
MMS  Materlals stewardship — policies for assessing eco- efnClenCles and suslalnablhty y altributes CT ) Ai Yes 26
MME  Large volume mining and mineral processing waste - approach to management of overburden rock tailings and sludges ~ Yes 28
Social
LAl Breakdown of workforce, where possible, by reglon/country, status, employment type and by employment contract. Also identify workforce retained

in cenjunclion with other employers (temporary agency workers or workers in co-employment relationships), segmented by region/cauntry Yes 20
LA2  Net employment creation and average turnover segmentad by region/country Yes 20
LA3  Percentage of employees represented by independent trade union organisations or other bona fide employee representatives broken down

geographically OR percentage of employees coveredby collective bargaining agreements broken down by region/country Yes 20
LA4  Policy and procedures involving information, consultation and negotiation with empioyees over changes in the reporting organisation's

cperations (e.g. restructuring) No
LAS  Practices on recording and notification of occupational accidents and diseases, and how they relate to the ILO Code of Practice on recording

and Notification of Occupational Accidents and Diseases Yes 16
LAG  Description of formal joint health and safety committees comprising management and worker representatives and proportion of workforce

covered by any such committees - 7 Yes 16
LA7  Standard injury, lost day, and absentee rates and number of work-related fatalities {including subcontracted workers) Yes 15
LA8  Description of policies/programmes on HIV/AIDS for the workplace and beyond - T Yes 18
LAY  Average hours of training per year per employee by category of employee B o N o No
LA10  Description of equal opportunity policies or programmes, as well as momtonng systems to ensure comphance and results of monitoring Yes 10
LAY Composition of senior managerment and corporate governance bodies {including the Board of D1rect0rs) the maleffemale ratio and other

indicators of diversity as culturally appropriate L L I A L Yes 10
LA12 Employee benefits beyond those legally mandated ) } ) o No
LA13  Provision for formal worker representation in decision- makmg or managernem mcludlng corporate ‘governance ’ i Yos 5
LA14  Evidence of substantial compliance with the 1O Guidelines for Occupational Health Management systems - Yes 16
LA15  Description of formal agreements with trade unions or other bona fide employee representalives covering health and safety at work and B

propertion of the workforce covered by any such agreerments L o Yas 16
LA18  Description of programmes 1o support the continued aemployability of employees and to manage career endings T . . ) No
LA17 Specific policies and programmes for skills management or for life long leaming o Yes 21
HR1  Description of policies, guidelines, corporate structure, and procedures to deal with all aspects of human rights relevant to cperations,

including monitoring mechanisms and results isecurity personnel complies with Human Rights principles) - security incidences Yes 5
HR2  Evidence of consideration of human rights impacts as part of investment and procurement decisions, including selection of suppliers/contracts  Yes 5
HR3  Description of policies and procedures to evaluate and address human rights performance within the supply chain and contractors, including

monitorlng systems and results of monitoring Yas 21
HR4  Description of global policy and proceduresiprogrammes preventing all forms of discrimination in operations, including menitaring systems

and results of monitoring Yes 20
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Indicator Reported Page
HR5  Description of freedom of association policy and extent to which this policy is universally applied indepaendent of local laws, as well as

description of procedures/programmes 10 address this issue Yes 521
HR6  Description of policy excluding child labour as defined by the ILC Convention 138 and extent to which this policy is visibly stated and applied,

as wall as description of procedures/programmes to address this issue, including menitoring systems and results of manitoring Yes 21
HR7  Description of policy to prevent forced and compulsory labour and extent to which this policy is visibly stated and applied as well as description

of procedures/programmaes to address this issue, including monitoring systems and results of menitoring Yes 21
HR8 Employee training on policies and practices concerning all aspects of human rights relevant to operations Yes 21
HRY  Description of appeal practices including, but not limited to, human rights issues Yes 20
HR10 Description of non-retaliation policy and effective, confidential employee grievance system (including but not limited to its impact on human rights) Yes 20
HR11  Human rights training for security personnel Yes 21
HR12 Description of policies, guidelines and procedures to address the needs of indigenaus people No
HR13 Description of jointly managed community grievance mechanisms/authority MNo
HR14 Share of operating revenues from the area of operations that are redistributad to logal communities No
SO1 Descriptions of policies 1o manage impacts on communities in areas affected by activities, as well as description of precedures/programmes

{0 address this issue, including monitoring systems and results of monitoring. Yes 4]
502 Description of policy, procedures/managament systems, and compliance mechanisms for organisations and employees addressing bribery

anad corruption Yes 5
S03  Description of policy, procedures/managemenit systems, and compiliance mechanisms for managing pofitical Iobbying and contributions Yes 5
504  Awards received relevant 1o social, éthical and environmental performance No
S$05  Amount of money paid to political parties and institutions whose prime function is to fund political parties or their candidates Yes 5
506 Court decisions regarding cases pertaining to anti-trust and monopoly regulaticns N/A
807 Description of policy, procedures/management systems and compliance mechanisms for preventing anti-competitive behaviour Yes 5
PR1-PR11 Products N/A
MMT  Describe significant incidences affecting communities during the reporting period and grievance mechanisms used to resalve the incidents and

their outcames Yes g
MM8  Describe programmes in which the reporting organisation has been involved that addressed artisanal and small scale mining N/A
MM Describe resettlement policies No
MM10 Percentage of operations with closure plans, covering social - including tabour transition, environmental and ecenomic aspects. Describe

company policy, stakeholder engagement processas, freguency of plan review and amount/type of financial provision for closure. Yes 30
MM11 Land rights - describe process for identitying local communities' land and custormary rights, including those of indigenous people anc

grievance mechanisms used to resolve any disputes No

MM12 Emergency preparedness — dascribe approach to identifying preparing for and respending to emergency situations affecting employees,
communities or the environment, Include a description of the nature of the existing skills, teams who resond to emergency situations, training,

drills, review processes and community involvement. No
MM13 Number of new cases of occupational disease by type - describe programme to prevent occupational disease. Yes 16
Data Tables
Marikana Marikana Marikana Marikana Limpopo Group
FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2006 FY 2006 FY 2006 FY 2006
Economic
Total number of Employees 20,508 20,900 21,228 - - 23,804
Total number of Coniractors 5,396 5,219 5,306 - - . 693z
Salaries, Wages, Benefits (USS million) o i 205 284 N3 - - 414
Total Procurements Spend {USS million} 185 352 361 - - 427
PGMs produced (02) 1,757,758 1,679,871 1,704,249 1,696,380 113,364 1,809,744

Occupational Health & Safety

Fatalities 12 8 6 4 Z B
LTIFR (incidents per millicn hours worked) B 205 211 18.1 121 8.0 12.5
NIHL cases compensated 293 414 278 589 1 570
HIV/AIDS

Number ot employess for vGT ) - - 1,615 2,534 702 3,236
Number of patients on ART ) X - - 407 564 23 587

Environment

Total freshwater intake (milion M¥PGM oz) B2 5.7 58 5.8 8.8 6.0
Energy (GJ/PGM oz} h 3.2 41 3.5 a1 4.4 4.1
Gresnhouss Gas (CO, eguivalent/PGM oz} 0.70 0.90 0.80 1.00 1.16 0.98
Wasle 1o Tailings (kilotonng) 12,135 11,089 12,832 14,477 1,042 15,518
Waste to Rock Dumps {kilotanne) 1,374 1,539 1,415 1,120 256 1,376
Hazardous Waste {m?) - ) not measured 8,976 4,325 8,854 19 8,973
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KPMG’s Independent Assurance Report

introduction

We have performed our independent assurance engagement of the Lonmin Plc (Lonmin) Sustainable Development Report 2006 (the

Report) for the year ended 30th September 20086, with respect to the following three areas of the Report:
‘Selected 2008 Sustainable Development (SD) performance indicators’, indicated below;

* Lonmin's compliance with the reporting requirements of the Broad- Based Socio-Economic Empowerment Charter for the South
African Mining Industry (hereafter, 'the Mining Charter"); and,

* Whether the Report complies with the ‘in accordance with’ requirements of the 2002 Global Reporting Initiative (GRI} Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines {the 2002 GRI Guidelines).

Our work has been underiaken so that we might state to Lonmin those matters we have been engaged to state in this report and for no
other purpose. Accordingly, this repert is made in accordance with the terms of our engagement. We do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Lonmin, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusions we have reached.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Directors of Lonmin are responsible for the preparation of the Report and the information and assessments contained within it, in
accordance with the 2002 GRI Guidelines; for the identification of material SD issues for inclusion in the Report; for determining the
Group's objectives in respect of SD performance and development of appropriate SD indicators; and for designing, implementing and
maintaining appropriate performance management and internal cantrol systems from which the reported information is derived.

Responsibility of the Independent Assurance Provider

Our responsibility is to express our conclusions based on our independent assurance engagement, performed in accordance with the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information. This standard requires, inter-alia, that the assurance provider complies with the appropriate requirements of the IFAC
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants such that their independence is not compromised and collectively they possesses the
specific knowledge, skills and professional competencies relative to the engagement.

Basis of our work and limitations

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the aspects of the
Report that were the subject of our engagement. In making these assessments we have considered internal controls relevant to the
company’s preparation and presentation of information in the Hepart, in order to design procedures appropriate for gathering sufficient
evidence to determine that the aspects that were the subject of our engagement are not materially misstated or misleading. Our
assessment of relevant internal controls is not, however, for the purpose of expressing a conclusion on the effectiveness of the
ccmpany's internal controls.

Where a limited assurance conclusion is expressed, our evidence gathering procedures are more limited than for a reasonable
assurance engagement, and therefore less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable assurance engagement.

We believe that our work performed as set out below provides an appropriate basus for our conclusions, expressed below, for the
aspects that were the sulbject of our assurance engagement.

Selected 2006 SD Performance Indicators

Subject matter and criteria

The 8D performance indicators selected by us to be the subject of the assurance engagement were determined by considering

Lonmin's key SD risks, identifying those SD indicators considered relevant to management and stakeholder decision-making

processes, and our experience of the risks associated with reporting SD performance and the systems and processeas in place to

mitigate those risks. These are collectively referred to as the ‘setected 2006 SD performance indicators',

a) The 2006 SD performance indicators selected for purposes of expressing reasonable assurance were: Percentage of pre-tax profits
spent on community programmes; Fatalities; Total Energy Use, Carbon Dioxide (CO,) emissions from electricity purchased and CO,
emissions from fossil fuels; and

b) The 2006 SD performance indicators selected for purposes of expressing limited assurance were: Lost Time injury Frequency
{LTIF); Number of Noise tnduced Hearing Loss (NIHL} cases compensated:; Sulphur Dioxide (SO} Emissions for the Smelting
Process, Number of Employees on Antiretroviral Treatment {ART), Employee Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT) Uptake and
Rand Value of HDSA Procurement.

The internally developed Lonmin Health, Safety and Environmental (HSE) Reporting Guidance, based on the 2002 Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative, were used as the criteria for assessing the selected SD performance indicators.

Work performed

Our work consisted of:

¢ Obtaining an understanding of the systems used to generate, aggregate and report the selected 2006 SD performance indicators
based on Lonmin's SD reporting guidance for the selected 2006 SD performance indicators at seven sites selected by KPMG
and at Head Office to assass the reliability of the selected 2006 SD performance indicators;

¢ Conducting interviews with management, at the sites visited in the current and previous year and at Head Office, to obtain an
understanding of the consistency of the reporting processes compared with prior years and to obtain explanations for SD
performance trends;

* Performing an analytical review of the selected 2006 SD performance indicators aggregated at Head Office and obtaining
explanations for unusual trends;
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» Testing the accuracy of the aggregation process for the consolidated selected 2006 SD performance indicators at Head Office; and
¢ Reviewing the consistency between the selected 2006 SD performance indicators and related statements in the Report, in light of our
findings from the site visits and our analytical review.

Conclusion

« In our opinion, the selected 2006 SD performance indicators set out in (a) above for the year ended 30™ September 2006, are
fairly stated in all material respects on the basis of the Lonmin HSE reporting guidance; and

¢ Based on the work described above, we have no reason to believe that the selected 2006 S0 performance indicators set out in
(b) above for the year ended 30" September 2006, is not fairly stated in all material respects on the basis of the Lonmin HSE
reporting guidance.

The Mining Charter

Subject matter and criteria

Cur limited assurance engagement was to determine whether Lonmin complies with the reporting requirements of the nine elements of
the Mining Charter. Criteria for the nine elements specified in the Mining Charter of the Department of Minerals and Energy are set out
in the Mining Charter Scorecard on Pages 10 to 12 of the Report, together with the Lonmin’s responses.

Work performed

Qur work performed with respect to compliance with the reporting requirements of the Mining Charter consisted of:

* Conducting interviews with management at Head Office group level and a review of policies, procedures systems and contrels to
obtain an understanding of the consistency of the reporting processes in respect of the Mining Charter performance data; and

* Reviewing the presentation of the selected 2006 Mining Charter performance indicators and associated statements in the Report,
in light of our findings from the site and Head Office work performed.

Conclusion
Based on the work described atxove, in our opinion, we have no reason to believe that LLonmin does not comply with the reporting
requirements of the Mining Charter in all material respects on the basis of the Mining Charter Scorecard.

Compliance with the 2002 GRI Guidelines

Subject matter and criteria

Qur limited assurance engagement was to determine whether the Report complies with the ‘in accordance with' requirements of the
2002 GRI Guidelines,

Work performed

Our work consisted of:

= Reviewing the processes that Lonmin has in place for determining material issues to be included in the Report;

* Reviewing the processes in place for stakeholder engagement and the response to stakeholder issues identified in the Report;

* interviewing a selection of Lonmin staff to understand how principles in Part B are adhered to within the Report’s editorial
Process;

* Comparing the contents of the Report to the 2002 GRI Guidelines, to assess whether the Report meets the requirements for
stating that it is in accordance with' the 2002 GRI Guidelines and performing procedures to enable us to determine whether:
o Lonmin adeguately reports on the 44 numbered elements in Sections 1 to 3 of Part C of the 2002 GRI Guidelines;

The Report includes a GRI Content Index;

A response has been given t¢ each core indicator in Section 5 of Part C of the 2002 GRI Guidelines;

The report is consistent with the principles in Part B of the 2002 GRI Guidelines; and

The Report includes a GRI in accordance with' statement signed by the Chief Executive.

OQ00C0

Conclusion
Based on the work described above, we have no reason to believe that Lonmin has not complied with the ‘in accordance with’
requirements of the 2002 GRI Guidelines in the Report.

KPMG Services {Pty) Limited

yZa

Per PD Naidoo
Director
Johannesburg

23 November 2006
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| Glossary

ABET Adult Basic Education and Training MW Megawatt

ART Anti-Retroviral Therapy NELA New Era Labour Agreement

BEE Black Economic Empowerment NGO Non Governmental Crganisation

COz-e Carbon dioxide equivalents NIHL Noise Induced Hearing Loss

CSl Corporate Social Investrnent NQF National Qualifications Framework

dB Decibels NUM National Union of Mineworkers

DME Department of Minerals and Energy OHSAS  Occupational Health and Safety Standard
EBIT Earnings before interest and tax PGM Platinum Group Metal

ElA Environmental Impact Assessment PGI Platinum Guild International

EITI Extractive Industry Transparency Initiative PMR Precious Metal Refinery

FRP Fatal Risk Protocol SA South Africa

GHG Green House Gases SANS South African National Standards

GJ Gigajoule sD Sustainable Development

GLC Greater Lanmin Community SHE Safety, Health and Environment

GRI Global Reporting Initiative SHEC Safety Health Environment and Community
HDSA Histarically Disadvantaged South African SIA Social Impact Assessment

HMO Health Maintenance Grganisation STl Sexually Transmitted Infection

ISO International Standards Organisation TB Tuberculosis

ICMM International Council for Mining and Metals TEBA The Employment Bureau of Africa

IDP Integrated Devetopment Plan TJ Terajoules

IFC International Finance Corporation TSP Total Suspended Particles

ILO International Labour Organisation UK United Kingdom

LCA Life Cycle Assessment UNDHR  United Nations Declaration of Human Rights
LDT Lonmin Development Trust VCT Voluntary Counselling & Testing

LTIFR Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate VP Vice President

MPRDA  Minerals and Petroleum Resources Development Act

Definitions

Abbreviation Acronym Definition
Ln LostTimeMjury _ _ _ _ Aninjury that results in a person missing ane shift. ~ B
LTIFR Lost Time Injury Freguency Rate  The total number of incidents that resulted in the injured missing

one shift expressed as a ratio per million man hours worked.

Moderate impact on environment, natural processes are notably altered but
continued in a modified way with impacts being reversible within lifetime of
operation — impact confined to mine property - requires management
intervention, investigation and substantial preventative and corrective actions.
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Our mission

To grow and build our portfolic
of high quality assets.

To deliver the requirements of the
South Adrican broad based socio-
economic Mining Charter and we
welcome the cpportunity to
transform our business.

To build a value-based culture,
which is founded on safe work,
continuous improvement, commaon
standards and procedures,
community involvement and one
that rewards employees for high
performance.

L)’\MW

Sir John Craven
Chairman

November 2004

Lonmin uharter

We respect the communities and nations that host our
operations and conduct business in a sustainable,
socially and environmentally responsible way.

We are successful when

Our employees live and work
safely and experience the personal
satisfaction that comes with high
performance and recognition.

Our shareholders are realising
a superior total return on their
investment and supgort our
corporate sustainability values.

The communities in which we
operate value our relaticnships.

We are meeting our commitments
to all business partners and our
suppliers, contractors, partners and
customers support our Charter.

%Wa%ﬁ

Bradford A Mills
Chief Executive

LONMIN

We are Lonmin, a primary producer of Platinum
Group Metals. We create value by the discovery,
acquisition, development and marketing of
minerals and metalis.

Our values

Zero Harm
We are committed to Zero Harm
1o people and the environment.

Integrity, honesty and trust
We are committed, ethical people
who do what we say we will do.

Transparency
Open, honest communication and
free sharing of information.

Respect for each other
Embracing our diversity enriched by
openness, sharing, trust, teamwaork
and invoivement,

High performance

Stretching our individual and team
capabilities to achieve innovative
and superior outcomes.

Employee self-worth

To enhance the quality of life for
our employees and their families
and promote self-esteem.
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Lonmin is a primary

producer of Platinum Group Metals.

We create value by the discovery, acquisition,
development and marketing of minerals and metals.




Highlights

¢ |n a sustained strong market for Platinum Group Metals (PGMs),
we achieved:

- Record EBIT up 141% to US$842 million
- Underlying earnings per share up 163% to 312.1 cents per share

- Strong improvement In cash generation with free cash flow of
US$290 million (203.4 cents per share)

* Record mine production of 1,017,137 ounces of Platinum in concentrate and
sales of 952,682 ounces of Platinum and 1,817,624 ounces of total PGMs

* First Platinum major to convert old order mining rights to new order
mining rights

¢ Growth target raised to around 1.4 million ounces of Platinum in 2012
e Effective conversion of US$215.8 million convertible bond

* Total dividend declarations of US$1.00 per share, an increase of 39%
(final dividend 55 cents per share)

EBIT'34 Platinum sales
900 1.000 053
o 542 _g 500 303 ’i’:.‘... 913
700 g 800 rsa
g 600 g /®
z § 600
2 igg § 500
= 323 a0 350 £ 400
300 298 E a0
200 ‘ |—l £ 200
&
100 T 100
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Free cash flow?® Underlying EPS2°
312.1
300 290 300
]
250 8 250
_ [
2 2w & 200
é 150 g 150 1185
3 o . 100 8B 1o 985 a7z, 9
50 ! [] = 50 b
o [ o .
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Notes:

Y EBIT is operating profit which is defined as ravanue and other operating expenses balore nat finance costs and before share of profit of associate and joint venture.

2 Underlying earnings per share are calculated on profil for the year excluding mevaments in the lair value of the embedasd derivative associated with tha convertible bond. exchange o 1ax
balances, profil on the sale of Markang houses, an adjusiment 10 the interest caprtalised in prior years and. for 2005, the elfect of a change in the South Alrican tax rate on 1he opening deferred
tax balance and reorganisation costs as disclosed in note 3 10 the accounts.

3 Financials for the year 2002 1o 2004 are as preparsd under UK GAAP. For 2005 and 2006 the financials are prepared under IFRS. Details of Ihe nature of the changes under IFRS can be found n
Note 35 10 the Accounts in the Annual Report,

4 EBIT for 2002 t0 2004 has baen restated to exclude probt or lass from associate and joint ventura consistent with FFRS.

5  Free cash fow is presenitad in tha Financial Roview. R I
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders
I am pleased to be able to present this Annual
Review for the year to 30 September 20086.
A year in which we have made further progress
executing our growth and transformation
strategy against a backdrop of continued
robust Platinum markets. Qur financial results
for the period reached a new record with

i earnings before interest and taxation up 141%

i to US$842 million and underlying earnings per

¢ share up 163% to 312.1 cents per share. The
Board was pleased {0 be able to recommend
a final dividend for the period of 5& cents

! per share which gives full year dividend

i declarations of US$1.00 per share, up 39%
on the year to 30 September 2005.

¢ Strategy

The clear strategic aims for our Platinum

business are to:

* build a strong production growth profile

* create a culture of operational excellence

* achieve transformation and empowerment
o ensure our business more accurately
reflects the demographics of South Africa.

We have made substantial progress in all
these areas this year. We have increased our
growth profile to target around 1.4 million
ounces of Platinum in 2012 and continued
to deliver operational improvements. Further
details of our operational results are set out
in the Chief Executive's Review.

02 Lonmin Ple Annual Review 2006
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Rowland Shaft, Marikana

Transformation and empowerment

On 9 October 2006, we received notification
from the Director General of the Department
of Minerals and Energy (DME)} of the
successful conversion of Western Platinum
Limited and Eastern Platinum Limited's old
order mining rights into new order mining
rights in respect of our Marikana operations.
These rights entitle us to the exclusive right to
mine for Platinum Group Metals (PGMs) and
asscciated metals within the designated
Marikana property boundaries for the next
30 vears with a right to apply for renewal
thereafter for up to a further 30 years,

This is the culmination of a process which
began with the publication of the South
African Mining Charter in 2002 and we

are extremely proud to have been the first
Platinum major to achieve conversion. This
conversion brings certainty to the future of cur
Marikana operations which currently constitute
around 95% of our annual production. ttis
also a firm indication of our progress in
transforming our business and the South
African Government’s support for the steps
we are taking,

During the conversion process our
management team worked extremely closely
with the DME and | would like to thank all
those involved at the DME both in Klerksdorp
and Pretoria for all their help and assistance.
We are also indebted to our black economic
empowerment partners Incwala Resources
{(Pty) Limited whose input and assistance was
invaluable in the process.




Incwala Resources

We have continued to work closely with
Incwala Resources, in which we hotd a 23%
stake, during the year. In June, Incwala
Resotrces was included as an 18%
shareholder in Lonmin Platinum Limpopo
when we refinanced our acquisition debt

and transfaerred the Limpopo operations into
Western Platinum. Incwala Resources has
made important Board changes during the
year with Zanele Mavuso Mbatha taking over
as Chief Executive and Ronnie Ntuli assuming
the role of Chairman. | would like to welcome
both of them to their new roles and we look
forward to working with them as they develop
Incwala Resources in the years to come.

Markets

Curing the year we have seen strong
demand for Platinum with demand from the
autocatalyst sector remaining the key driver.
Jewellery has continued to be the balancing
factor in the market, ceding market share to

keep the market iightly balanced. We continue

1o predict demand growth over the medium
term. Around 75% of the world's Platinum
supply is from South Africa. Supply will

struggle to keep pace with demand given both

the dynamics of the Eastern Bushveld where
most untapped supply is situated and the
generally longer lead times for bringing
proiects on stream. Lead times have been
lengthened both by community and
environmental issues and the global
commodities boom which is soaking up
scarce mining skills.

03 Lonmin Ple Annual Review 20086

Limpopo

Rhodium demand has been driven by the
autccatalyst sector where the metal is used in
NOX conwversion. Rhaodium is predominantly a
by-product of South African Platinum
production so its response to demand is
inelastic and as a result ocur average realisec
Rhodium price has increased by some 135%
over the financial year. The metal now
represents some 28% cf our revenue, We are
cautious about predicting the future supply/
demand batance for this thinly traded metal as
price volatility may contribute to thrifting and
substitution in the medium term.

The Palladium market remains in oversupply
althcugh we have seen a pick up in demand
both in the autocatalyst sector and on the
potential from a fledgling Palladium jewellery
market in China.

On behalf of the Board of Directors. | would
lke to thank all the employees of Lonmin for
the hard work and dedication they have
shown during the year to deliver these record
results.

(i,

Sir John Craven
Chairman

14 November 2006
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Chief Executive’s Review

Q4 Lonmin Plc Annual Review 2006

Dear Shareholders

We have made great progress during 2006 on
our journey to transform Lonmin into a leading
international natural resource company.
L_onmin today, is a very different company
from the one | joined in 2004, with a market
leading safety performance, a clear strategy, a
robust growth profile and a culture of
innovation and operaticnal excellence. We are
a company which is capitalising on the
diversity and quality of our South African
workforce. During the year we have continued
to develop our engagement with the
communities who hest our operations, and
details of our progress in this area are set out
on page 24 and in our 2006 Sustainable
Development Report. We are extremely proud
to be the first South African Platinum major to
have achieved the conversion of our old order
mining rights into new order mining rights
illustrating our progress in transforming our
business and securing the future of our
operations at Marikana.

Safety

At Lonmin we are committed to Zero Harm
and to breaking the perception that deep level
mining in South Africa will always go hand in
hand with a certain level of death and serious
injury to employees. The momentum behind
ensuring the injury-free running of our
operations has grown substantially during the
year across all areas of the business. | am
personally proud of the way our operational
managers and employees have taken on
ownership of the drive for safe production. We
have made significant progress in our safety
performance during the year achieving a 31%
reduction in our lost time injury frequency rate
(LTIFR). We have also significantly reduced the

Meachanised development drilling, Limpopo

severity of accidents in our operationg with
our severity rate now standing at an average
of 13.81 days, an improvement of 14% year
on year.

Wa regrettably suffered a total of four industrial
fatalities at the Marikana operations during the
year and two at cur Limpopo mine.

This year we have completed DuPont Visible
Felt Leadership Training for all management
employees and have successfully used
industrial theatre and other methods to
improve safety awareness throughout our
operations. During 2007 we will focus on
further embedding safe production both within
our systems and behaviours with key projects,
including the continued roll cut of cur Fatal
Risk Protocols and the re-design of our
underground materials handling system. We
are targeting a further 30% improvement in
our LTIFR for the 2007 fiscal year.

Production

Our Marikana Mining Division achieved record
production of 966,733 ounces of Platinum and
1,861,179 ounces of total PGMs in concentrate
from a total of 13.9 million tonnes mined.

Ir our first full year of ownership of the
Limpopo operation we have continued to
ramp up production from the mine and ra-
engineer the operations to a mechanised
basis. The Limpopo operations contributed
50,404 ounces of Platinum and 113,364
ounces of total PGMs in concentrate during
the year. Our plan for Limpopo phase 1is to
achieve steady state production of 120,000
tonnes hoisted per month. In the fourth
quarter of 2006 we encounterad adverse
ground conditions at Limpopo and
accelerated development to maintain our
growth plan.




We are currently forecasting that we will be
able to achieve a steady rate of 120,000
tonnes per month in the second half of 2007,
some six months behind schedule. Largely as
a result of price improvements, Limpopo
contributed USS33 million to our EBIT during
the year, well ahead of our criginal acquisition
plan assumptions for the mine.

The Process Division experienced a difficult
year. After a very successful planned Furnace
rebuild campaign of some 27 days in
February, the Division struggled to achiave
stable operations. Unplanned outages
occurred at both the Smelter and Precious
Metat Refinery with the Smelter only achieving
stable design throughput in the fourth quarter
of the fiscal year. As a consequence of these
issues refined metal sales were kehind prior
year results. We were able to offset this
shortfall in refined metal in part by selling
concentrate and other partialy refined
materials {around 166,000 ounces of Platinum
and just under 360,000 ounces of total
PGMSs). Final metal sales for the year were
952,682 ounces of Platinum and 1,817,624
cunces of total PGMs. The Process Division
will be a key area of focus for 2007 as we
continue to work to de-bottleneck

the operations to support our ongoing

growth profile.

Costs and Capital Expenditure

Our cost performance is one of the things
which clearly differentiates Lonmin from

its Platinum peers. We are committed to
maintaining our advantage as the lowest cost
producer. In commaon with the majority of the

mining sector we saw increasing cost
pressures in the second half of the year for
a number of consumables and scarce skill
sets such as mining enginears. We alsc
made a number of investments to improve
safety, the health of our employees and our
environmental impact.

Our unit costs were impacted by the
unplanned Smelter outages, which added
around R80 per PGM ounce sold to the
Process Division costs. C1 costs of own metal
production at Marikana net of by product
credits were R2,441 per PGM ounce sold, up
8.8% on last year.

At Limpopc costs have continued to decline
on last year’'s figure of R4,102 as we have
ramped up production from the mine.
However, costs for the full year are above our
target range as a result of the lower than
expected preduction throughput. C1 costs of
metal in concentrate at Limpopo were R3,891
per PGM ounce in concentrate, a decrease of
5.1% year on year.

We are targeting C1 costs for fiscal 2007 for
Marikana of around R2,450 to R2,500 per
PGM ounce sold net of by product credits and
for Limpopo R3,000 to R3,500 per PGM
ounce in cancentrate.

Our gross capital expenditure for the year
was US$182 million. We are forecasting gross
capex for fiscal 2007 of US$370 million which
includes investment in the modernisation

of cur mings and the programme to
de-bottlenack the Process Division.

K3 shalt, Marikana

roduction growltn
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Lhier £xecutive’s Review

Hossy shalt, Marikana 48 shaft, Marikana
! Operational excellence shafts as fully mechanised operations using
{ Wa have continued during the vear to embed our ultra low profile (ULP) equipment. We will
i within Lonmin a culture of operational also incarporate a variety of additional safety,
i excellence. A key tool in this has been our Six efficiency and employee friendly measures in
Sigma continuous improvement programme. these shafts to improve the working
During 2006 this programme continued to environment for our employses.
perform extremely well realising R330 million
of net EBIT benefit. The programme is now Robust growth
fully integrated within the business and self Looking ferward we are committed to growing
sustaining. We are targeting an additional our business into what we believe will be a
i R400 million of net EBIT benefit frorm Six continuing strong Platinum market, Our
i Sigma in the 2007 fiscal year. original growth profile for Marikana targeted

: around 1 milion Platinum ounces per annum
i We have completed the preliminary integration from the operation in 2008. As a result of the

of cur Shared Business Services division and work we have done on the new life of mine
expect to see significant benefits from this plan for our Marikana operations we are now
initiative in 2007, We also implemented the first targeting an additional 175,000 ounces of
phase of our SAP Enterprise Resource production fram the mines to reach around
Planning system in March 2006. The 1175 million ounces of Platinum in 2012,
implementation of this system has been a At Limpopo our base case for growth was
positive step forward for us in terms of to reach a steady state of 75,000 Platinum

i creating one source for business information. ounces per annum. YWe have now revised

i Our intent is to continue modernising our this profile upwards and are targeting

i information system environment over the next around 87,000 Platinum cunces per annum

¢ two years with full conversion of all our core from 2008.

i systems to SAP or related systems by the end

! of 2008. Work has continued on the pre-feasibility

studies for both our Limpopo phase 2 and

Innovation Pandora projects. Both these studies will
Over the last two years we have worked to be completed during the first half of fiscal
encourage innovation within our business by 2007. At Limpopo phase 2 we are targeting
challenging some of the long held beliefs around 93,000 Platinum ounces per annum at
around how our mines and plants should full production for Lonmin's account from

i operate. During the year we developed a 2012, At full production the Pandora project,

i comprehensive new life of mine plan for the has the potential to add an additionat 55,000

i Marikana operations incorporating all Platinum ounces per annum attributable to
elemeants of our mechanisation, automaticn Lonmin in 2012,

and safety technology. As a result of this work
we will develop our new Hossy, Saffy and K4
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Incorporating all of these elements we have
been able to increase our growth

target to 1.4 million ounces of Platinum

in 2012, For the 2007 fiscal year we are
targeting production of around 1.02 to

1.04 million Platinum ounces.

Based on an assessment of cur overal
smelting needs going forwards and our desire
to establish more stable smelting operations
matching our mining profile, we have taken the
decision to re-commission our Merensky
furnace. This furnace, in combination with our
Number 1 furnace and with modifications to
our gas handling system will allow us to
achieve growth of up to 1.4 million Platinum
ounces of smelting capacity per annum by
2010. Beyond this 1.4 million ounce level we
are undertaking pre-feasibility work to
increase our metallurgical capacity to 2 million
ounces of Platinum péer annum.

Looking beyond 2012 we have set ourselves
the goal of building optionality into the
business to reach production of 2 million
ounces of Platinum. We have commenced a
conceptual study on our Loskop project which
currently has the potential, we estimate, to
generate around 80,000 Platinum ounces in
concentrate per annum of which 50% would
be our share. We continue to develop our high
quality portfolio of exploration projects and to
assess possible acguisitions in the PGM
sector.

.- . " a3

ULP equipment at 1B shaft, Marikana

Committed growth and pre-feasibility projects (equity ounces}
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m Marikana Base Profile
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I would like to close by thanking all the
empltoyees of Lonmin for their hard work
and dedication during the year. 2007 will be
another milestone year for the transformation
of Lonmin into a leading giobal natural
resource Comparny.

,@%/&/zg@

Bradford A Mills
Chief Executive

14 November 2006

ear srauegy
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Our Markets

FY 2006 revenue split

P L
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1 Forecast far calendar year 2006

Source: Johnson Matthey
Plalinum Interim Review 2006

© Johnson Matthey

Exhaust showing autocatalysts

In 2006, Platinum contributed 56% of our
revenue and continues to be the primary driver
of our business. Rhodium contributed 28% of
revenue followed by Palladium at 7%.

All three of these metals are used in the
production of autocatalysts. The different
chemical properties of each of Platinum,
Palladium and Rhodium mean that they can
be used by autocatalyst manufacturers in
combination depending on the vehicle fuel
type, mix of emissions produced, levels of
emission control required and the relative
ecconomics of the PGM loadings. In a petrol
car the autocatalyst is made up of a cocktail of
the three metals. Diesel cars predominanthy
use Platinum in their catalytic solutions.

Platinum

During 2006 we have seen continued strong
demand for Platinum from the clean air
legislation driven autocatalyst sector which
now makes up over 50% of the demand and
is still growing. The growth of the diesel
market has been a key driver of demand with
one in every two cars sold in Eurcpe now a
diesel. As higher fuel prices continue and the
public accepts the better periormance of
modern diesel engines this looks likely to
increase, based on recent indications of
passenger vehicle sales. Currently the
penetration of diesels into the US car market is
sub 5% but as higher fuel prices continue this
could become a key market for diesels adding
further to the demand for Platinum.

Innovations such as bio-fuels and ethano! are
also positive as these vehicles still require the
use of PGMs in their autocatalyst systems.

Courtesy of Alexia Blampied, Aurum Jewellers of Jersey

The jewellery market's ability to react to

the metal price has permitted the market 1o
correct to physical equilibrium, with jewellery
over recent years having, we believe,
sacrificed some 200,000 ounces with every
US$100 increase in the Platinum price.

Industrial dermand has remained robust.

Of particular note has been the surge in

demand for Platinum from the LCD glass
manufacturers and for the production of

computer hard disks.

The supply of Platinum remains constrained
as producers have struggled to keep up with
demand growth. Platinum is an extremely
scarce commaodity with around 79% of the
world's known resources in South Africa.

The dynamics of the South African Platinum
industry are key to increasing supply. In South
Africa the producers have mined the more
profitable and shallowsr deposits first and
production growth is dependent on the
development of deeper mines and the Eastern
limb of the Bushveld complex. Bringing on
new supply is therefore dependent on the
Platinum price staying at a level that will induce
the development of mines whose costs are
likely to be in the upper half of the cost curve.

Rhodium

Around 80% of the Rhodium produced is
consumed in the autocatalyst secicr where

it is particularly strong in the reduction of
NOX emissions. Demand has been increasing
to meet tighter emissions standards. Rhodium
supply is completely inelastic as the metal is
produced globally only as a by-product of
both Platinum and Nickel. Looking forward,
thrifting and possibie substitution in the
autocatalyst sector is likely to moderate
demand in the medium term.

Palladium

Palladium demand has been positive on the
potential from a nascent Chinese jewellery
market. However there is, as yet, no real
evidence of the significant trade inventories of
metal moving through to the consumer.
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Review of Operations

Rowland shail, Marikana

Reserves and resources Mineral resources (total measured,
Set out on the right are the mineral reserves indicated and inferred)}
and resources for Lonmin Platinum as at 30

September 2006. Further details can be 30 September 2006

. . 3PGE+Au
found on our website at www.lonmin.com. Pt
As we grow our production profile, reserve Ore source Mt g/t Moz Moz
replacement continues to be of paramount Marikana 793.2 4.94 126.0 75.0
st S S sy Lmpom 1830461 o741
Platinum and 1,807,044 ounces of total PGMs. Eans oraJJVV Sgg jgg gg gg
We have replaced all of this production with OSKOD . : : :
further reserves and have increased our Total 10501 4.83 162.9 94.8
resource base on a three Platinum Group
Elgment and Gold basis by 3.3% to 162.9 30 September 2005
million ounces. 3PGE+AU
Pt

Notes to tables Qre source Mt gi Moz Moz
Pandora JV: Lonmin has an attributable interest of 42.5% :
in the Pandora Joint Venture, Loskop JV: Lonmin has an Mar'kana 811.8 491 1280 763
attributable interest of 50% in the Loskop Joint Venture. Limpopo 148.8 434 208 9.9

) . Pandora JV 67.6 4.09 8.9 5.6
All quoted resources and resarves include Lonmin's
attributable portion onty. All figures are reported as metric Loskop JV
tonnes, grams per tonne or troy ounces. Mineral resources Total 1028.2 477 1577 G1.8

are inciusive of mineral reserves. In previous years mineral
resources were quated as additional to mineral reserves,

The resources for September 2005 have been restated Mineral reserves (total proven
accordingly. Mineral resources are reported as ‘in situ’ and probable)
tonnes and grade, and allow for geological losses.
30 September 2006
Proved and probable mineral reserves are reported as 3PGE+Au
tonnes and grade delivered to the mill and are inclusive of Pt
diluting materials and allow for losses that may occur when Ore source Mt aft Moz Moz
the materfal is mined. Mine tailings dams are excluded :
from the above resource summary. Marikana 408.4 414 544 324
| y Limpopo 25.2 3.57 2.9 1.5
Areas likely to be affected by known Iron Rich Ultramafic Toaml
Pegmatite {IRLP) are excluded from Reserves and Jotal 433.6 an 57.3 33.9
Resources. Snowden Mining Industry Consultants
performed an independent audit of Lonmin Platinum's
Marikana and Limpopo mineral resource and resarve 30 Septermber 2005
estimates (October 2008). RSG Glohal performed an 3PGE+AU
independent audit of the mineral resource estimate of the Pt
Loskop JV (Novermber 2005). Ore source Mt g/t Moz Moz
Marikana 400.3 430 553 1328
Limpopo 343 381 42 21
Total 434.6 426 585 349

10 Lonmin Plc Annuai Review 2006
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Our cperations are all based in South Africa.
We currently mine around 95% of our Simplified geology of A
N

production from our Marikana operations on
the western limb of the Bushveld complex. In the Bushveld Complex

2005 we purchased the Limpopo mine which
is situated on the northern side of the eastern
limb of the Bushveld complex in Limpopo
province. The tocation of both our operations
are shown on the map opposite.

Lonmin Platinum
Limpopo

PILANESBERG

During 2006 we changed the organisation of
our operations to create four primary EBIT
centres. These are:

* Marikana Mining; )
* Limpopo, B ) :
* Process Division; and — Pretoria
* Shared Business Services.

Marikana

We have inciuded on the next eight pages a ® Johannesburg

review of the year for each of our EBIT
centres. These give an overview of how the

. . B0 mile:
business has developed in cach area as we 40 miles BUSHVELD COMPLEX
O Upper Zone

40 8? 1?0 km

[ B | —c

have continued to implement our strategy to NON-BUSHYELD @ Unper Crilical 7 o Main Z.
achieve operational excellence, manage our - pper Lrifical Zone and Vain 2one

th dt f d & our (O Transvaal Sequence @ Lower Zone and Lower Critical Zone
cost bass and transform and empower ou Granite, Granophyre, felsite, leptite @ Alkaline Complexes

operations.

Operational excellence
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Review of Operations
Markana Mining
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K3 shaft, Marikana

Our Marikana mining operations have had a
record year delivering 966,733 ounces of
Platinum and 1,861,179 ounces of total PGMs
in concentrate. During the year we
restructured the Marikana EBIT management
to create separate business units which
grouped together shafts with similar
characteristics. We also consolidated the
various concentrators into a separate business
unit allowing us to optimise throughput and
recoveries across the operations, with tonnes
milled showing a 5% increase year on year.

Production

During the year we continued to refocus our
mix on higher quality underground ore. We
have reduced the rate of production at our
opencast operations and we currently believe
that, at this lower rate, opencast operations at
Marikana will continue until 2008,

Underground tonnes mined were 11,9 million,
up around 8% on last year with strong
performances across the operations. Rowland
and K3, our corwventional deep shaits, both
set new monthly hoisting records during the
year.

Costs

We continue to manage actively our cost base
and Marikana mining unit costs for the year on
a C1 basis were R2,030 per PGM ounce sold,
up around 7.5% on the previous year. We
made a number of decisions during the year
to increase our investment in certain areas
which would have a long term impact on the
safety and health of our employees. These
included the revising of some of our rock
boltling protocols to increase support in certain
areas of the mine. Costs were also impacted
by the general inflation seen by the whole
mining industry in the prices of certain
consumables such as steel.

Continuous improvement

Six Sigma continues to be key in helping us
improve our business both to increase
throughput and reduce costs. Projects this
year have included the GEM Project to

12 Lonmin Plc Apnual Review 2006

Saffy shaft, Marikana

improve grade control, our Face Advance
project which has tackled increasing face
advance both by eliminating lost blasts

and increasing the advance on each blast, the
concentrator throughput project and the
implermentation of maintenance system
upgrades. These projects are important
elements of the five year plan to deliver our
2012 targets.

People

Under the terms of the New Era Labour
Agreement we instigated our first gain sharing
bonus. This bonus paid out R22 million in the
year or around 2.6% of an average
underground team member's annual basic
wage. We have also successfully trialled a
cascade system to communicate more
effectively with our employees and this is
being rolled cut across the operations.

Mechanisation and automation

During the year we developed a
comprehensive new life of mine plan for the
Marikana operations. We will develop cur new
Hossy, Saffy and K4 shafts as fully
mechanised cperations using our ultra low
profile {ULP} equipment. We will incorporate a
variety of additional safety, efficiency and
employee friendly measures in these shafts to
improve the working environment for our
employees. We are currently carrying out
development at Hossy and Saffy with stoping
scheduled to start early in 2007, K4 will come
into production in 2008,

Wherever possible we are looking at ways to
modernise the remainder of our shafts based
on the production fife remaining and the cost
of re-engineering the operation. Solutions
could include using the full fleet of ultra low
profile equipment, parts of the fleet in
partnership with conventional mining and
innovations such as the DDT jigs. We remain
on track to meet our 50% mechanisation
target by 2010.
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Baobab shaft, Limpopo

During the year the Limpopo operations have
continued to increase production as we have
re-engineered the operations to develop them
on a mechanised basis and introduce long-hole
stoping in the mine. Although production
increased substantially on the previous year,
the budgeted build up in production was
impacted by a lower than optimal development
rate which was historically applied in the ming
and also bad ground conditions when we
encountered an unexpected targe pothole in
the final quarter of the year.

Production

In 2006 the operations at Limpopo were
re-engineered to convert from conventional to
mechanised mining. Production increased
from 212,000 tonnes mined the previous year

{10 872,000 tonnes this year. We finished the

year around six months behind our plan to
ramp up to the 120,000 tonnes per month
level. We intend to reach this level during the
second half of the 2007 financial year. Main

! setbacks were insufficient ore reserves as a

result of potholes and at times poor ground
conditicns. The focus remains on opening up
more of the reserves to provide mining flexibility.

Costs

We recorded costs for the full year at a C1
level per ocunce in concentrate of R3,891.

This is a 5.1% reduction on 2005 but was
impacted by the slower than expected ramp
up of production in the mine. We are targeting
C1 costs for the 2007 financial year per

PGM ounce in concentrate of around

R3,000 to R3,500.

Limpepo

Continuous improvement

Six Sigma remains the biggest contributor to
continuous improvement for Limpopo.
Dedicated Black Belt faciltators are assigned to
Limpopo and all members of the senior
management team were trained as Green Belts
during the year. We will continue to roll out
training to relevant employees during 2007. Key
projects included reduction of lost blasts,
improved long hole blasting and improved
control of protective clothing and equipment. A
project for the design and use of a harness for
employees working in steep dipping slopes
won a Highly Commended Safety Award at the
Chief Executive's 2006 SHEC awards.

People

During 2006 we substantially improved cur
safety performance at the mine with our LTIF
rate reducing to 8.14 per milion man hours
worked. The intent is to reduce this by a
further 30% during 2C07.

Mechanisation and automation

Good progress has been made with the
conversion from conventional to mechanised
mining. The development of a semi-mechanised
longhele mining method using 25 degree
diagonal ralses, is fundamenta! to the safe
mining of the upper levels. Mining on the tower
levels is planned to be fully mechanised. The use
of technology has proved to be extremely
effective at Limpopo, so much so that we will ba
mining on a fully mechanised basis from below
the 430 level. Through the use of four spiral
declines and the focus on finessing the current
mix of our ultra low profile mechanised fleet with
our more cenventional equipment we are
working towards achieving the optimal mix of
mechanised and conventional equiprent at our
Limpopo operations.




.lepopo is very dlfferent
from our; Marlkanalmlnes
with.a; steeply mchnedlore
body dlppmg at around 58
:degrees ‘The. mlnejwas
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Common to- thelshallow
mines in South Afrtca 'ThlS
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Base Metal Refinery

The Process Division experienced a year of
mixed fortunes. Positive improvements in
operational performance were overshadowed
by the operational difficulties experienced at
the No. 1 Furnace following its rebuild in
February, the bottleneck problems at the BMR
and exacerbated by the fire at the PMR in
September. The minimised impact to
production is a testimony to the success of
the mitigation plans that were implemented.
An intensive capital programme aimed at
minimising operational variance, process de-
kottlenecking and risk management has been
instituted for execution in 2007 and 2008.

Smelter

In January we successfully completed the
planned rebuild of our No. 1 Furnace on time
and on budget. In April we detected a leak in
the Furnace adjacent to the matte tap holes.
We shut the Furnace down 1o assess the
incident and discovered it had been caused by
the failure to weld the base plate when the
Furnace was initially installed. Repairs wera
conducted quickly and effectively over an 11
day shutdown {matte tap to matte tap) and we
achieved stable Smelter operations for the
fourth quarter of the financial year.

A slag plant upgrade was successfully
commissioned in August 2006 and this is
expected to play a significant part in optimising
the management of recycle material within the
Smelter operation in 2007.

We commissioned the re-building of our
Merensky furnace in the second half of 2006.
This vessel which was the forerunner to the No.
1 Furnace is currently scheduled for
commissioning in February 2007 and wil
provide us initially with an alternative to the No. 1
Furnace. Once we have completed work to de-
bottleneck our gas handling capacity and other

Precious Metal Refinery

support systems we will be able to run both the
Number 1 and Merensky Furnaces side by side.
These two vessels will give us capacity of
around 1.4 million ounces of Platinum per
annum Ly 2010.

Base Metal Refinery (BMR)

Woe have started to see the success of our Six
Sigma project to de-bottleneck the BMR this
year with all-time records being set in the
tonnes of matte milled (Up 9.2%} and tonnes of
nickel sulphate crystals produced (up 16.0%).

We will continue to work to de-bottleneck the
BMR in 2007 and have committed capital to
allow us to make some necessary upgrades to
the plant. This will allow us to support our
production growth profile.

Precious Metal Refinery {PMR)

We continue our drive to convert the manual
processing operations over to the new PMR
automated standard during the year. This
process will be concluded by the end of 2007.

During the early hours of 5 September 2006 a
fire broke cut within a draft lbooster fan at the
PMR. Emergency services were rapidly and
efficiently deployed so that the fire was safely
contrglled, extinguished and necessary repairs
undertaken within 54 hours. Operations were
able to return to normal successfully.

Costs

The Process Division recorded costs on a

C1 basis of R384 per PGM ounce sold for the
20086 financial year. This was an increase of
47% on the previous year and was impacted
by the Smelter outages, additional costs of
running the Pyromet furnaces during the
period and the iower than expected
throughput. In total these added around

R80 per ounce to the Division's unit costs.




/

J

ar.y mem:s

- i
an extenswe

g rebmld Ve ﬁﬁrﬂggam

{3 several Monthes %
plannlng thelrebuild]
mvolved replacinglalloiithell

Copper wafflesiwithinithel

furnace rhejfurnacejthen
) needed to oelreg brickedfand]

brought br%c’
piannlng wast
th

17 Lonmin Plc Annual Review 2006

www.lonmin.com




neview o1 Vperations
Shared Business Services

i ki

Roofbolting at 1B shaft, Marikana

Since its successful launch in March 20086, the
Shared Business Services function has grown
in strength with the implementation of
infrastructure, in the form of a new Enterprise
Resource Planning systern, the SAP system,
and the creation of a Centre of Excellence
(CoE) focusing on Procurement as well as
taking the Six Sigma programme under its
wing.

Six Sigma

Our Six Sigma programme delivered a net
EBIT benefit of R33C million for the year in line
with our target. The majority of our projecis for
this year were focussed on increasing
throughput. Integral ¢ the success of Six
Sigma this year was the successful selection
of projects addressing the critical issues for
our business such as benefit leakage and long
project cycle times as well as improved
execution of better sustained solutions.

The programme has become self sustainable
with five of the six trainee Master Black Belts
now fully certified and able to train and mentor
Black Belts and Green Belts as well as
continue the integration of the Six Sigma
methodology across the business. A further
significant milestone was achieved in 2006
when our Six Sigma team won the Global Six
Sigma Award in the Manufacturing category.

We are targeting an additicnal net EBIT benefit
from the Six Sigma programme of R400
million for the 2007 financial year.

18 Lonmin Ple Annual Rgview 2006
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4B shaft, Marikana

New infrastructure

In March we started the implementation of our
SAP system and, as is common with
enterprise wide system implementations of
this nature, we experienced some teething
problems. We remain on track for our
scheduled completion date. We are confident
that as we embed the system throughout the
organisation we will see the benefits from
standardisation, improved controls, reliable
information and improved reporting.

Procurement infrastructure

The Procurement CoE was created in order
to consolidate all plant and mine spend,
standardise acress various commedities and
rationalise the supply base. The consolidation
and standardisation of spend has resulied in a
significant improvement in negotiation power
and has allowed us to pursue initiatives to
reduce acquisition costs. The Procuremant
CoE successfully completed its first reverse
auction process this year for fuel and
lubrication.

The Procurement CoE is engaged in various
sourcing initiatives, including ore
transportation, chemicals and grinding media.
We are expecting to deliver more
breakthrough projects next year.




Reverse
Fuels’
Auction

After completing the supply
market analysis and
considering possible market
strategies we decided to
auction the Fuels and
Lubrication business through
an Internet reverse auction.
The use of this technology
was a first for us and was
identified as a fair and
auditable environment in
which to collect final quotes.

 Various other non-commercial

" aspects were also considered
in the adjudication process. -+
and a final recommendation
was drawn up to award the
Fueis business to Masana
Petroleumn Solutions and the
Lubrication business to Shell:

>lubrication costs; and:y
22%'standardisation on.
lubrication commodities:

* R ] IR A T
decision:to'purchase the. =
fuel.infrastructure from.the
T T ) . h s T
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Growth Options

Projects

20 Lonmin Plc Annual Review 2006

Committed growth and pre-feasibility projects (equity ounces)
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K3 shaft, Marikana

i We have built an exciting growth profile into
i the Lonmin business to allow us to target 1.4
¢ million cunces of Platinum production in 2012.

Part of this growth comes from the completicn

of our Limpopo phase Il and Pandora projects.

Beyond 1.4 million ounces we are looking to
build additional eptionality to take our
production to 2 milion ounces per annum.

Options to achieve this growth could be
provided by our strategic investments and

high quality exploration portfolio.

Limpopo

The Limpopo Il project covers two properties
i contiguous to our existing Limpepo
operations. The Dwaalkop property in which

Lonmin has a 50% interest alongside

Mvelaphanda Resources and Docrnviei which

is 100% owned by Lonmin, QOur effective
interest in the entire project would currently be

| around 75%. The pre feasibility on this project
! will be completed by the end of March 2007,
We currently expect first production from

Limpopo Il in 2009 reaching full annual

production of arcund 125,000 Platinum
i ounces, with 93,000 Platinum ounces for

Lonmin's account in 2012, The steeply dipping
reef at Limpopo Il is ideal for mechanised long
hole stoping. This method is already being

successiully employed at our existing

Limpapo operations.

Pandora

i The Pandora project is located to the east of

i our existing operations at Marikana. The

: project is a joint venture between Lonmin

i [42.5%), Anglo Platinum (42.5%), Mvelaphanda
: Resources (7.5%}) and the Bapo Ba Mogale

Mining Company {7.5%). Lonmin is the

manager of the project. Pre-feasibility on the
¢ Pandora project will be completed by the end

i . Pandora {pre-feasibility)
Limpopo Phase 2 {pre-feasibility)

[j Limpopoe Phase 1 Growth
Marikana Growth

- Limpopo Phase 1

Bl /arikana Base Profile

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

of March 2007. First production is currently
expected in 2010. At full production which is
expected in 2012, Lonmin's 42.5% share in
this project has the potential to contribute
around 55,000 Platinum ounces per annum.

Loskop

The Loskop project is a joint venture with
Boynton and is located on the Eastern Limb of
the Bushveld complex. We have delineated an
Inferred Rescurce on the property of some

1.8 million ounces (2 PGE plus Au). Additional
drilling completed during the year is expected
10 increase this resource and we have
commenced a scoping study on the property.

Metallurgical Expansion

In February we announced we were
commissioning a feasibility study to look at
increasing our metallurgical capacity to around
2 million ounces of Platinum per annum. We
made a decision in the second half of the
20086 financial year to re-commission our
Merensky furnace and this vessel will be
available from February 2007. Initially this
furnace will run as an alternative to the
Number one furnace but we intend to de-
bottleneck some of the peripherat systems
which suppaort the Smelter to allow both
furnaces to run simultaneously. This de-
bottlenecking plus continued work to expand
our Base Metal Refinery capacity will allow us
to reach 1.4 million Platinum ounces of
capacity by 2010. We are also currently
conducting a scoping study on further
expansion of our metallurgical capacity to
reach the 2 million Platinum ounce level. Our
initial estimates indicate such an expansion
would require a capital spend of between
US$300 and US$H350 million.




Growth Options
Investments

Department:
Minerals and Energy

REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

{1

Announcement of granting of new arder mining rights from left to right: Debbie Ntombela (Chief Director, Mineral Regutation, Department of Minerals and Energy (DME)),
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Ronnie Ntuli (Chairman, Incwala Resources), Sandile Nogxina (Director General, DME), Jacinto Rocha (Deputy Director General, Minera! Regulation, DME),
Albert Jamieson (Lonmin), Zanele Mavuso Mbatha (Chigl Executive, Incwala Resources), Honourable Minister of Minerals and Energy, Buyelwa Sonjica, Brad Mills,
Khumo Seopela (Lonmin), Peter McElligott (Lonmin), Alistair Ross {Lonmin)

Incwala Resources (Pty) Limited
{Incwala Resources)

We continue to hold a 23% stake in our
empowerment partner Incwala Resources.
Incwala Resources is an 18% shareholder in
our South African operating subsidiaries
Woestern Platinum Limited and Eastern
Platinum Limited and through this investment
has an 18% interest in cur entire value chain
from our mines at Marikana and Limpopo to
the processing side of our business,

Qur initial equity investment in Incwala
Resources was US$90 million and on a see
through basis this stake is currently worth
US$410 million (14 November 2006).

During the year Incwala Resources made
important changes to their Board with the
appointment of Ronnie Ntuli as Chairman and
Zanele Mavusc Mbatha as Chief Executive.
We will continue to work closealy with Incwala
Resources in the future to explore business
opportunities beneficial to both companies.

Platmin Limited {Platmin)

During the course of the year we acquired
a stake in Platmin, a Canadian domicited
exploration junicr with PGM prejects in
South Africa.

Platmin listed on the UK Alternative Investment
Market and Toronto Stock Exchange in August
2006 and Lonmin now helds a 22% stake in
the company. Our investment is currently
valued at US$85 million (14 November 2008).
Platmin, through its subsidiary Boynton, is our
joint venture partner at Loskop. The Company
has attributable measured and indicated
rescurces of 2.6 million ounces (2 PGE plus
Au) and 14.1 million ounces of inferred
resources (2 PGE plus Au).

Further growth
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Growth Options
Exploration
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Canada

We have joint ventures with both Inco and
Wallbridge covering some 13 properties
around the Sudbury Basin. We have made
excellent progress with our projects during
2006 recording some promising drill results
and we hope to delineate resources on the
more advanced properties during 2007, We
will continue ¢ build up towards a critical
mass of resources to allow the establishment
of a mill and concentrator designed for optimal
PGM recoveries.

Tanzania
¢ Our Luwumbu and Mibango projects are joint
ventures with Goldstream Mining.

! We accelerated drilling on Luwumbu this year

i to follow up a prormising drill hole (5.36 g/t
over 16.4m) completed late in the 2005 field
season. Drilling adjacent to this discovery has
had success by intersecting the PGM horizon
although over narrower widths than in the

i discovery hole. Detailed interpretation will

¢ follow the full results of the step out drilling

i and regional auger sampling programme.
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Crilling at Mibango has followed up on
promising geophysical targets and has
intersected massive nickel sulphide
mineralization the first holes returning values of
8.25 metres at 1.03% nickel and 3.46 metres
at 1.83% nickel. Further core has been
sampled and analytical results are awailed.

Gabon

Monts de Cristal is 100% owned by Lonmin. It
is an early stage project on a 90km long
layered intrusion covered by equatorial forest.
The initial surface sampling for PGMs has
been encouraging and preliminary results
indicate that Platinum values are higher than
Palladium values which is unusual for PGM
deposits outside of the Bushveld. We plan to
commence stratigraphic and target drilling in
2007.

At our 100% owned Koumba gold project, we
have completed the detailed soil sampling of
the target area and are currently interpreting
the results to develop potential drill targets for
shallow gold mineralisation.




Key Performance Indicators

Safety - Lost Time Injury Frequency rate per million man hours worked

As a company we are committed to Zero Harm to our employees and we also regard safety
performance as a lead indicator of the health of our business. Lost Time Injury Frequency rate

is measured per million man hours worked and reflects all injuries sustained by employees and
contractors. A Lost Time Injury is when the injured party is unable to return to work on the next shit.

EBIT - Earnings before Interest and Taxation

As for any business one of our key measures of success is how successful we are in generating
operating profits (or 'EBIT"). Reported EBIT is defined as revenue and other operating expenses
before net finance costs and before the share of profit of associates and joint ventures.

Figures for the years 2002 to 2004 in the chart opposite are as prepared under UK GAAP. For
2005 and 2006 the financials are prepared under IFRS, Details of the nature of the changes under
IFRS ¢an be found in Note 35 to the Accounts in the Annual Report.

Free cash flow

We believe that a key metric of how successful we are as a business is ultimately the amount of
cash we produce. We measure this by looking at our free cash flow. We define our free cash flow
as cash flow from operations less interest and tax paid, less net capita! expenditure and less
dividends paid to cur minority. We believe this measure indicates what cash we have which is free
to fund equity dividends or make returns to shareholders, to pay down debt or to make
discretionary investments.

Financials for 2002 to 2004 are as prepared under UK GAAP. For 2005 and 2006 the financials
are prepared under IFRS. Details of the nature of the changes under IFRS can be found in Note
35 to the Accounts in the Annual Report

Sales - PGM ounces sold

We are committed to growing the size of our business and track this both through locking at our
production growth but also at the number of ounces of metal we sell. The number of cunces sold
is directly linked to the revenue the business produces. We consider that number of PGM cunces
sold is a key parformance indicator of the business and is measured by including both our refined
production sales but also sales of PGM ounces in concentrate.

Refined production - PMR production (PGM ounces)

Lonmin is an integrated minge to market operation and we produce refined metal for sale to our
customers. One of cur key objectives is to ensure that all the ore we mine is processed and
refined in house thus allowing us to realise the highest possible margin on these ounces. Every
ounce we sell before it reaches final product represents a loss of margin to the business. We
therefore believe that refined production measured in PGM ounces from our Precious Metal
Refinery is a key performance indicator. This measure has been depressed in recent years as a
result of the unplanned cutages we have had to manage with our Smelter operations. These have
led to us selling metal in concentrate to be refined externally which carries a lower margin than an
ounce we refine ourselvaes.

Marikana Costs - C1 costs of own production net of by-product credits

One of our differentiating features is our low cost position. This is key to allowing us to operate
profitably for far longer than cur peers through any down cycle. In 2004 we adopted a more
transparent way of measuring our costs and now track cur C1 costs which are defined as cash
operating costs per PGM ounce sold of own production net of by-product credits. By-product
credits relate to our base metal production. Although we obviously track our cost performance at
Limpopo given the current size of this operation we do not consider this to be a key performance
indicator for the business.
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Our Partner Communities
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Mission vision eye test at Seroophata Primary School

During the last year we have continued to work

to develop a new relationship with the
¢ communities who host our operations. In

January 2005 we began our community
engagement at Lesedi by Night, a nightclul in

Wonderkop next to our Marikana operations.
i Al this meeting we gathered together key

stakeholders from the local communities, the
Bapo Ba Mogale Tribal Authority, provincial
and local government, uniens and Lonmin
management ¢ begin the process of creating

a naw way of working together based on trust
i and integrity. This process created the

concept of the Greater Lonmin Community, or

GLC, which is the area surrounding our
¢ operations, and home to around 250,000

people.

The community engagement process has
¢ continued to evolve during this year intc a
i forum called the Greater Lonmin Community

Lentswe or Voice, This grcup, which numbers

around 150 people, has been working to
i create a Charter for the GL.C to shape the

future of the Community in 2040. We have
reproduced the GLC Charter on the opposite
page. This Charter powerfully represents what

i the local communities want to see created, in

partnership with Lonmin, as they take control

of developing a viable and prosperous future
which will survive post the closure of the

mines in the area. The work of the Lentswe

£ group continues to develop projects in the

near and medium term which will allow the

Majakaneng Primary School

2040 Charter to be fulfiled. These projects are
supported by the Lonmin Development Trust
and further details can be found in our
Sustainable Development Report 2006.

We celebrated the completion of the 2040
GLC Charter with a visit from Archbishop
Emeritus Desmond Tutu. Archiishop Tutu
visited our operations at Marikana and the
local communities from 2 to 4 October 2006.
His visit included a trip 1o our 4B shaft,
dedication of a new clinic we are building in
conjunction with the Department of Health in
Wonderkop, attending a prize giving at the
Rekgonne Bapo School for special needs
children and participating in a Lentswe
session. We also held a concert to celebrate
the progress we have made so far in
devetoping a new way of working with our
lecal communities. We were honoured to
have the Archbishop join us in celebrating
the completion of the first phase of our
community engagement.

We were very pleased this year to achieve a
score of 4.25 in our annual Community
Perception Survey. This indicates an approval
rating of 60.7% and is an improvernent of 39%
over the previous year. This shows the progress
we have made in engaging with the Greater
Lonmin Community. We will continue to work
during this financial year to develop and cement
further our relationship with the communities
both at Marikana and in Limpopo.
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Board of Directors
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Executive Directors

1 Brad Mills (52)

Chief Executive

Appointed as a Director and Chief Executive in
March 2004, Holds a first degree in geclogy
and a masters degree in minerals economics
from Stanford University. After working in
exploration and business development for
Magma Copper, he held a variety of senior
roles for BHP following that company's
acquisition of Magma. One of the architects
of the merger of BHP and Billiton in 2001, he
subsequently headed up strategy for the
combined group before becoming head of
BHP Billiton’s base metals division. Brad is a
LS national.

2 lan Farmer (44)
Chief Strategic Officer

Appointed a Director in 2001 and has

responsibilities for the Company’s business
development, exploration and marketing

. activities. A chartered accountant, he joined the

Company in 1986 and transferred to a Group
company in Zambia in 1990. In 1995 he was
appointed finance director of Lonmin Platinum
in South Africa, which position he relinquished
upon his transfer to London in 2001, He is

the current president of the International
Platinum Association and a non-executive
director of Incwala Resources (Pty) Limited,

which holds a minority interest in Lonmin's

South African operating subsidiaries. lan has
both South African and British nationality.

3 John Robinson (52)

Chief Financial Officer

After reading economics at Cambridge
University, John qualified as a chartered
accountant whilst working for Thomsen
McLintcck & Co, now a part of KPMG. He
joined the Company in 1979 as a financial
analyst and held a subsequent post as a
finance executive working with the mining
operaticns. Appointed as an associate director
in 1992, he subsequently joined the Board as
Finance Director in 1999. He played a pivotal
role in the sale or closure of numerous
companies, particularly from 1997 onwards,
helping ta shape Lonmin into a focused mining
company, John is a British national.

Non-executive Directors

4 Sir John Craven (66}

Chairman

Appointed as an independent Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Board in 1997.
Currently chairman of Fleming Family and
Partners Limited, an independent, privately-
owned investment house, he was previously
the group chief executive and chairman of
Morgan Grenfell Group pic and a member of
the Board of Managing Directors of Deutsche
Bank AG after that company’s acquisition of
Morgan Grenfell. Sir John is also a director of
GEMS Oriental and General Funds |, i and Ill
and lan Fleming Publications Ltd. He has held a
number of non-exacutive directorships,
including Reuters Holdings plc, and is a non-
executive director of Incwala Resources (Pty)
Limited and a director of Patagonia Gold Plc.
Sir John holds both British and Canadian
nationality and was knighted for his services to
banking and to the City.




5 Roger Phillimore (57)

Deputy Chairman and

Senior Independent Director

Appointed an independent Non-executive
Director in 1997. Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees, and a
member of the Audit Committee. Formerly
joint managing director of Minorco, he is
currently a non-executive director of Aber
Diamond Cerporation. Roger holds both
South African and British nationality.

& Peter Godsoe (68)

A chartered accountant and banker with

an MBA from Harvard, he was appointed an
independent Non-executive Director in 2001,
He is a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees of the Board.
Formerly chairman and chief executive officer
of The Bank of Nova Scotia, he is also a non-
executive director of Barrick Gold, Sobeys,
RCI and Ingersoll-Rand Company. Peter is a
Canadian national.

7 Dr Sivi Gounden (48)

Appointed an independent Non-executive
Director in September 2005. An engineer by
profession, Dr Gounden joined the South
African Government in 1994 and in 1999 he
was appointed director-general of the newly

in June 2003, he was appointed as chief
executive officer of Baterman NV, a global
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established Department of Public Enterprises.

process engineering company. Dr Gounden is
currently a trustee of the Deutsche Bank Africa

Foundation and a non-executive director of
Grindrod Limited, a company listed on the
Johannesburg Stock Exchange. He served as
a non-executive director until July 2005, of
Anglo American Corporation of South Africa.
Siviis & South African national.

8 Michael Hartnall (64)

Appointed an independent Non-executive
Director in May 2003. He is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and also sits on
the Risk & SHEC Committee. A chartered
accountant and former finance director of
Rexam Plg, he is also a non-executive
director of BAE Systems pic. Michael is a
British national.

9 Karen de Segundo (60}

Appointed an independent Non-executive
Director in April 2005 and a member of the
Audit Gommittee. Formerly chief executive
officer of Shell International Renewables and
chief executive of Shell's global Gas & Power
business, she is currently a member of the
supervisary board of Ahold NV and a non-
executive director of Merrill Lynch New Energy
Techneology Plc, Ensus plc and Péyry Group
Qvyij of Finland. Karen is a2 Dutch national.

Experienced
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Operational Statistics

S year review

Units 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Mining
Tonnes milled! Marikana Underground (000) 11,859 11,102 11,121 11,418 11,260
. Marikana __ Opencast {000} 2,308 2,444 3,283 2,790 -
. B _ Limpopgo Underground (000) 887 214 N/A N/A N/A
- Limpopo Opencast {000) 14 - N/A, N/A N/A
o Total (000) 15,168 13,760 14,404 14,208 11,260
Tonnes mined Marikana Underground {000) 11,942 11,047 11,070 11,450 12,346
_ Marikana __ Opencast _ (000) 2,032 2,653 2,730 2,880 -
_ Limpopo Underground  (000) 858 212 N/A N/A N/A
Limpopo OCpencast {000} 14 - N/A N/A N/A
Tota! {Q00) 14,846 13,912 13,800 14.330 12,346
UG2 to Merensky Ratio (%) 72.9 74.3 82.4 81.6 78.3
Noble metals in matte  Marikana {kq) 56,098 53,290 55,031 54,295 46,557
Noble metals in
concentrate Limpopo (kg) 3,526 801 N/A N/A, N/A
Yield into matte {g/t} 3.84 3.81 3.82 3.83 4.3
Metals in concentrate  Marikana  Platinum  _foz) 966,733 930,373 N/C N/C N/C
Palladium (0z) 433,699 402,748 N/C N/C N/C
Rhodium {0z) 137,220 129,872 N/C N/C N/C
Total PGMs {oz) 1,861,179 1,766,908 N/C N/C N/C
- Limpopo _ Platinum (oz) 50,404 11,567 N/A N/A N/A
. Pallagium {0z) 38,170 9,217 N/A N/A N/A
Rhodium (0z) 7,845 1,305 N/A N/A N/A
. Total PGMs {07) 113,364 25,672 N/A N/A N/A
Lonmin
L Platinum Platinurm {0z) 1,017,137 941,940 N/C N/C N/C
o Palladium (o) 471,869 411,965 N/C N/C N/C
L Rhodium (0z) 145,065 131,177 N/C N/C N/C
Total PGMs 0z} 1,974,543 1,792,580 N/C N/C N/C
Metallurgical production
Marikana
o refined Platinum (oz) 739,277 830,911 833,822 932,867 757,451
o Palladium 0z} 323,275 360,753 358,705 417,418 350,792
_ Rhodium {oz) 87,674 93,445 90,012 140,514 113,549
o Total PGMs oz} 1,352,037 1,510,553 1,491,760 1,757,757 1,467,525
Marikana
_ concentrate  Platinum 0z) 158,114 73,985 82,935 - -
_ Patladium {oz) 77,630 38,345 38,341 - -
- Rhodium {0z} 37,855 24,40 23.082 - -
- Total PGMs (0z) 341,643 167,955 184,808 - -
Limpopo
concentrate Platinum {e4) 50,404 11,524 N/A N/A, N/A
Palladium {02) 38,170 9,043 N/A N/A N/A
L Rhodium (ez) 7,845 1,320 N/A N/A N/A
Total PGMs {0z) 113,364 25,741 N/A N/A N/A
Lonmin
_ Platinum Platinum {0z) 947,795 916,420 916,757 932,867 757,451
Palladium oz) 439,075 408,141 387,046 417,418 350,792
Rhodium {oz) 133,374 119,256 113,094 140,514 113,549
Total PGMs oz} 1,807,044 1.704,249 1,676,568 1,757,757 1,467,525
Capital expenditure (R millions) 1,207 1,180 1,230 1,294 1,558
& millions) 182 190 187 62 150
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Units 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Sales Lenmin
Platinum Platinum {0z) 952,682 912,844 941,146 903,077 757,958
Palladium {0z) 442,630 402,425 405,329 405,073 349,243
Rhodium {0z} 135,449 117,844 126,723 131,752 108,194
Total PGMs {oz) 1,817,624 1,692,517 1,761,171 1,728,387 1,415,112
Prices
Average price received per ounce Platinum (R) 7,283 5,366 5,356 5,053 5,357
(&) 1,084 856 816 645 501
Palladium (R} 1,999 1,184 1,485 1,698 3,759
& 299 189 297 212 as1
Rhadium (R} 26,106 10,494 4,876 4,201 9,123
&) 3,897 1,661 745 529 850
Basket price of PGMs and base metals ($/kg) 30,916 19,979 17,072 14,618 13,662
Marikana - cash costs own production
Cash Costs Mining (R) 2,030 1,889 1,696 N/C N/C
) Smelting and refining (R) 384 261 242 N/C N/C
Shared business services R) 460 347 316 N/C N/C
Movement in
physical stock (R) {33) (11} 165 N/C N/C
Cost per PGM ounce sold before by-product credits R 2,841 2,486 2,419 N/C N/C
Base metal credits R (400) (243) {233) N/C N/C |
C1 ¢ost per PGM punce sold net of by-product credits (R} 2,441 2,243 2,186 N/C N/C
Improved recoveries (R - (118} (29) N/C N/C
Smelter repair R - 47 - N/C N/C
Stock accounting change R) - 91 - N/C N/C
Other EBIT items: Depreciation and amortisation (R) 227 253 232 N/C N/C
Insurance proceeds (R) - (83) - N/C N/C
Restructuring (R) - 23 - N/C N/C
Other (R) - 12 26 N/C N/C
C2 - costs per PGM ounce sold own production R 2,668 2,468 2415 N/C N/G |
Cash cost per refined ounce of PGM sold (inc royalties) (R} N/C N/C N/C 1,974 1,863
(%) N/C N/C N/C 251 176
Cash cost per refined ounce of PGM sold (exc royalties) (R) N/C N/C N/C 1,969 1,847
() N/C N/G N/G 250 174
Cash cost per refined ounce of
PGM produced {exc royalties) Underground (R) N/C N/C N/C 2022 1,776
(%) N/C N/C N/C 257 168
Opencast (R N/C N/C N/C 1,801 2,726
&) N/C N/C N/C 229 257
Total R) N/C N/C N/C 1,996 1,780
(%) N/C N/C N/C 254 168
Limpopo — cash costs own production
C1 cash cost per PGM cunce in concentrate (R 3,891 4,102 NAA N/A N/A
Average exchange rates (£/8) (.55 0.54 0.56 0.62 0.68
(R/3) 6.63 6.28 6.60 7.90 10.70
Closing exchange rate {£/%) 0.53 0.57 0.55 0.60 0.64
(R/$) 777 6.36 6.48 6.97 10.54

Notes:

1 Excluding slag
N/A Not applicable
N/C Mot calculated
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Summary Financials

Summary Consclidated Income Statement
for the year ended 30 September

2006 2005
Underlying' Special- Total Underlying' Special Total
Continuing operations Sm $m Sm Sm m $m
Revenue 1,855 - 1,855 1,128 - - - 1128
EBITDA? 911 12 923 429 (12) 417
DCepreciation and amortisation {81) - {81) {67) - (67)
Operating profit/{loss)® 830 12 842 362 (12) 350
Net finance expenses (22) (206) (228) (26) (8) (34)
Share of profit of associate and joint venture 19 - 19 3 - 3
Profit/(loss) before taxation 827 (194} 633 330 {20) 319
Incorme tax expense? (280} 78 {202) {129) 1 (118)
Profit/{loss) for the year 547 (116} 431 210 (9) 201
Atftributable to:
— Equity shareholders of Lonmin Plc 445 {132) 313 168 (10) 158
- Minority interest 102 16 118 42 1 43
Earnings per share 312.1¢ 219.5¢ 118.5¢ 111.5¢
Diluted earnings per share® 307.7¢ 216.4¢ 118.3¢ 111.3¢
Dividends paid per share 87.0¢c 72.0c
Summary Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 30 September
2006 2005
Non-current Current Total Non-current Current Total
$m $m Sm $m Em $m
Property, plant and equipment 1,463 - 1,463 1,339 - 1,339
Goodwill and intangible assets 441 - 41 419 - 419
Investments in asseciate and joint venture 113 - 113 91 - 9
Financial assets (available and held for sale} a8 6 104 15 16 31
Working capital® - 322 322 - 124 124
Net debt’ (501) 43 {458) (509) (76} (5685)
Financial derivative liabilities® (268) (4) {272) (41) - (41)
Net current tax payable - (88) (88) — 24) (24)
Deferred tax liabilities (294) - {294) (344) - (344)
Provisions {39) - (39) (42 - {42)
Other sundry net asseis? 20 - 20 36 - 36
1,033 279 1,312 964 40 1,004
Equity interest 1,089 838
Minority interest 223 166
1,312 1,004
Notes:

1 Underlying earnings are calculated on profit for the year excluding movements in the fair value of the embedded derivative associated with the convertible bond,
exchange on tax balances, profit on the sale of Marikana houses, an adjustment 1o the interest capitalised in prior years and, for 2008, the effect of a change in the
South African tax rate on the opening deferred tax balance and regrganisation costs as disclosed in note 3 to the accounts.

2 EBITDA is operating profit before depreciation and amartisation.

3 Operating profit is defined as revenue and other operating expenses before net finance costs and before share of profit of associate and joint venture.

4 The income tax expense relates to overseas only and includes exchange gains of $82 million {2005 — losses of $2 million) as disclosed in note 7 to the accounts.

5 The calculation of diluted EPS includes adjustments for the movements in fair value on the embedded derivative within the convertible bond subject to the limitation
under IAS 33 — Earnings per share, that this cannol thereby creaile a figure exceeding basic EPS.

6 Working capital includes inventories, trads and other receivables and trade and other payables.

7 Met debt comprises cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts repayable on demand and interest bearing loans, and barrowings andg convertible bond grossad up

for capitalised fees.

8 Financial derivative liabilities include the fair value adjustment for the embedded derivative in the converticle bond as non-current and for 2006 a current derivative
liability in respect of forward price agreements for by-product metals.

9 Cther sundry net assets comprise employee benefits and non-current other receivables.

30 Lonmin Plc Annual Review 2006




Summary Consolidated Cash Flow
for the year ended 30 September
2006 2005
Sm Sm
Cash flow from operations 722 377
Interest and finance costs {31} (27)
Tax paid (185} {79)
Trading cash flow 506 271
Capital expenditure (182) (190)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 28 -
Dividends received from associate - 2
Dividends paid to minority {62) (27)
Free cash flow 290 56
Acquisitions! (14} (212)
Financial investments (36) 1
Shares issued . 15 6
Equity dividends paid (124} (102)
Cash inflow/{outflow) ) . 131 (251)
Opening net debt (585) (272)
Exchange 4) (2
Net gebt in subsidiaries acquired - {60)
Closing net debt (458) (585)
Trading cash flow (cents per share) 354.9 191.2
Free cash flow (cents per share) 203.4 39.5
1 2005 comparative includes $15 millien on non-current intangibie assets acquired in 2005.
Consolidated Group Five Year Financial Record
for the year ended 30 September
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
IFRS IFRS" UKGAAP' UKGAAP UKGAAP
$m $m $m $m $m
Income statement:
Revenue 1,855 1,128 1,030 779 697
Operating profit {excluding associate and joint venture) 842 350 304 298 333
Underlying cperating profit (excluding associate and joint venture) 830 362 262 298 333
Profit before taxation 633 319 290 291 332
Underlying profit before taxation 827 339 290 269 332
Attributable profit for the year 313 158 125 74 185
Underlying attributable profit for the year 445 168 137 123 150
Basic earnings per share (cents) 219.5 111.5 88.4 525 1215
Underlying earnings per share (cents) 31241 1i8.5 96.9 872 98.5
Balance sheet:
Non-current assets — property, plant and equipment 1,463 1,339 1,370 983 887
Non-current assets — other 677 559 133 292 294
Net current assets/liabilities) 279 40 13 79 {6)
Net debt (458) (585) (275} (197) (155)
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,089 838 744 645 671
Equity shareholders’ funds per share (cents) 764 591 525 457 476
Caost of dividend paid 124 102 102 101 101
Dividends per share paid (cents) 87.0 72.0 72.0 72.0 72.0
Dividend in respect of the year per share (cents) 100.0 72.0 72.0 72.0 72.0
Cashflow:
Cash flow from operating activities (trading cash flow) 506 279 324 227 181
Free cash flow 290 56 100 68 {7)
Trading cash flow per share {cents) 354.9 191.2 229.2 161.0 118.9
Free cash flow per share {cents) 203.4 39.5 70.7 48.2 {4.6)
Footnotes:
i For the years ended 30 September 2002 to 2004, the information has been presented on a UK GAAP basis. The nature of the adjustments that would be required 1o
restate this informalion on an IFRS basis are presented in note 35 to the financial statements.
i The 2003 and 2002 figures were restated in 2004 to show the investment in the Lonmin Employee Share Ownership Plan as a deduction from equity shareholgers’
ii jrut?edtsi.alan::e sheet as at 30 September 2005 has been restated following the finalisation of fair values arising on the acqguisition of Southern Platinum Corporation as
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Information

We would like to thank all

those employees and
community members
whose photographs
appear in this document.

Front cover photograph
reproduced with
permission from
Georgia Wiseman

Designed and produced by

Emperor Design Consultants Ltd

Photography by Kevin Rudham
Printed by Corporateink

Printed on Revive Special Silk

environmentally-friendly paper using

vegetable cil based inks.

Al least 30% of the fibre used
in making Revive Special Silk
comes from well managed forests

independently centified according to
the rules of the Forest Stewardship

Council and 30% is from post
consumer recycled waste paper.
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i Company Secretary and

Registered Office
Rob Bellhouse BSc FCIS
Lonmin Plc

! 4 Grosvenor Place

London

OSWIXTYL

! United Kingdom

¢ Tek  +44 (0)20 7201 6000
i Fax: +44 (0)20 7201 6100
i E-mail: contact@lonmin.com
i www.lonmin.com

Registered in England and Wales
: Company number 103002

Investor Relations

Alexandra Shorland-Ball
¢ (Vice President, Investor Relations &
¢ Communications)

Stockbrockers

United Kingdom:

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
20 Moorgate

Londen

EC2R 6DA

Tel:  +44 (O}2C 7588 2828

Fax: +44 (0)20 7155 9000

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Centre

33 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

Ei4 5LB

| Tel +44 (0)20 7986 4000

Fax: +44 {0)20 7986 2266
South Africa:

JPMorgan Equities Limited

1 Friker Road
llovo

Johannesburg 2196

South Africa

Tel:  +27 {O)11 507 0430

Fax: +27 {0)11 507 0502

North America:
BMO Capital Markets
1 First Canadian Place

! 5th Floor PO Box 150
: Toronto

i Ontario M&X 1H3

i Tel: +1 416 359 4001

Fax: +1 416 359 4417

i Web: www.bmo.com

A

K3 shaft, Marikana

External Auditors
KPMG Audit Plc

PC Box 695

8 Salisbury Square
London

EC4Y 8BB

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 (0)20 7311 1000
Fax. +44 (0)20 7311 3311

Registrars

Lioyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

UK Callers:

Tel: 0870 6800 3970

Fax: 0870 600 3980
international Callers:

Tel:  +44 (0)121 415 7047
Fax: +44 (0)1903 833371
Web: www.shareview.co.uk

Computershare Investor Services 2004
Pty Limited

Postal address:

PO Box 61051

Marshalltown 2107

South Africa

Tel:  +27 (0)11 370 5000

Fax: +27 (0)11 688 5217 or 7707

Physical address:
70 Marshall Street
2001 Johannesburg
South Africa

ADR Depository

The Bank of New York

ADR Sharehclder Enquiries Dept.
PO Box 11258

Church Street Staticn

New York

NY 10286

USA

US Callers:

Tel:  1-888-BNY-ADRS (Toll freg)
International Callers:

Tel: +1 212 815 3700

E-mail: shareowners@bankofny.com

ISA Provider

Rensburg Sheppards investment
Management Limited

Corporate PEP and ISA Administration
The Plaza

100 QOld Hall Street

Liverpool

L3 6AB

Tel:  +44 (0)151 237 2160

Fax: +44 (00151 255 1742




Our mission

To grow and build our portfolio
of high quality assats.

To deliver the requirements of the
South African broad based socio-
economic Mining Charter and we
welcome the oppartunity to
transform our business.

To build a value-based culture,
which is founded on safe work,
continuous improvement, common
standards and procedures,
community involvement and one
that rewards employees for high
performance.

Lj’\&ww

Sir John Craven
Chairman

November 2004

| Lonmin Charter

We respect the communities and nations that host our
operations and conduct business in a sustainable,
socially and environmentally responsible way.

We are successful when

Qur employees live and work
safely and experience the persona
satisfaction that comes with high
performance and recognition.

Our shareholders are realising
a superior total return on their
investment and suppaort our
corporate sustainability values.

The communities in which we
operate value our relationships.

We are meeting our commitments
to all business partners and our
suppliers, contractors, partners and
customers support our Charter,

/74_4&/&%@1

Bradford A Mills
Chief Executive

LONMIN

We are Lonmin, a primary producer of Platinum
Group Metals. We create value by the discovery,
acquisition, development and marketing of
minerals and metals.

Our values

Zero Harm
We are committed to Zero Harm
to people and the envircnment.

Integrity, honesty and trust
We are committed, ethical people
who do what we say we will do.

Transparency
Open, honest communication and
free sharing of information.

Respect for each other
Embracing our diversity enriched by
openness, sharing, trust, teamwork
and involvernent.

High performance

Stretching our individual and team
capabilities to achieve innovative
and superior outcomes.

Employee self-worth

To enhance the quality of life for
our employees and their families
and promote self-esteem.
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